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One. Letter to Shareholders

Dear shareholders, ladies and gentlemen:

Gamania Groupbs 2022 NIbX8DHilliond madntiding the eperatianelevel a s
of the previous year. I n particul ar -branted and ma i
continued to achieve good revenue performance; the operating gross profit was NTD 4.68 hillion,
wherein opering profit was NTD 1.76 billion and the afteax profit attributable to parent company
owners amounted to NTD 1.28 billion, a yeamryear increase of 16%. It is mainly due to the
successful adjustment of the operating structure, resulting in the impeavef profitability of the

main business. The effect of business layout became more obvious, and the operating revenue and r
profit after tax ranked second in history, with an EPS of NTD 7.29.

Looking back on 2022, the flagship APP beanfun! undenadatgescale revision. Through module
reorganization and optimization of the underlying logic framework of the big data project, the

Company wi | | i mprove user experience and stre
with multi-party arts an@ntertainment partners, including phenomelevel entertainment programs,
New Year 0s Eve event s, and arts and cultur al

the conversion of traffic between virtual and real scenarios, and prameogeawth of new customers.
In 2023, the Company will launch a social function with high conversion and high adhesion to build a
social platform that is most close to the attitude and culture of the new generation.

The | ongevity of tlekstgame beaichmess,a MmMawp hi gh
products fALineage MO and other games have bee
steadily to the Groupbs revenue. Il n 2023, t he
quality game experience. It is expected that 1~2 new products will be launched to inject new
momentum.

Under the dynamic and changeabl e e-oommeraenante n t
media businesses worked together separately to graduallg disi f y t he Groupos

and enrich the Groupobs user profil e. GASH e
promoted the transformation plan based on entertainment transformation and -“ookard

technologies. The pandemic andhe i terative devel opment of A
transformation and information security needs
security services have been favored by the market. In 2023, DIGICENTRE COMPANY will enter
SoutheasAsi a and | ead the export of Tai wands inf

specializes in digital marketing and distribution advertising services, and has insight into customer



needs, which nearly doubled its revenue during the more thesyiar pandemic.

Gamania Group has been sparing no effort in practicing ESG (environmental, social, governance)
Besides winning the Bronze Award at the 4th Annual Enterprise Environmental Protection Award
(AEEPA) from the Environmental Protection Adnstration, we independently completed the
greenhouse gas inventory and published the 2021 Gamania Group ESG Report. Gama Garden w
founded in 2012 by Gamania Group with the original intention of creating a friendly workplace where
employees can live in pea of mind. As it celebrates its 10th anniversary this year, it has become a

benchmark for Taiwands corporate nurseries. G
people to defy challenges and take risks, celebrates its 15th anniversary watidadw initiative
ARGoNexto to create positive soci al influence.

In 2022, Gamania Group overcame the challenge of C@wDand strived for progress while
maintaining stability. In 2023, the Group will focus on improving its operational resilience and
trarsforming its subsidiaries to increase market share and influence of various services. It will also
deploy pare nt ert ai nment content and its own |P, ar
beanfun!

We would like to thank all of you for your trustagguidance in Gamania Group. The ppahdemic
era is full of both uncertainties and opportunities. Based on our commitment to sustainable
development, we will continue to amplify the diversification and synergy of the Group, and share the

Gr o u p 6 s gresplts with allishareholders.

| wish you
The best in all your endeavors and happiness anebelly of you and your loved ones!

Chairman and President

Liu, Po-Yuan



Business Report
1. 2022 Business Plan Implementation Results
The operating income rgss operating profit, net profit before tax and net profit after tax for
2022 are detailed below.
Unit: NTD 1,000

ltem 2012

Operating income 11,388,021
Operating gross profit 4,682,110
Operating profit 1,758,562
Pretax net profit 1,708,448

Net profit attributable to the
1,279,696

owner of the parent compa

2. Analysis of Financial Income and Expenditure and Profitability
Refer tofill. Financial Analysis of Past Five YearsnderfiSix. Financial Overvie@ for
details.

3. Status of Research and Develarh
Refer to the descriptions about R&D accomplishments ufid&cope of Operatianunder
fiFive. Overview of Operatiarfor details.

4. Expected Sales Volume and Rationale
The Company has different measurement units given its numerous types of opecatmg i
and has not prepared financial forecasts, so there are no statistics on the expected sales.

5. Impacts from External Competition, Regulatory Environment, and Overall Operational
Setting
(1) Impacts from External Competition and Overall Operational Setting
The popularization of smart phones and mobile devices has contributed to the rapid
growths in the production value brought about by games and has also attracted
accession of foreign game service providers at the same time. As a result, the
competition onthe domestic gaming market is getting fiercer and fiercer. The external
environment, international trade disputes, and the global pandemic, however, impact
global economic growths and add uncertainties to the operational setting. In light of this,
besidescontinuing to run large weknown IP games, the Company is proactively
transforming to be a comprehensive wesed enterprise. Centering gaming consumers,
respective businesses are connected to bring growth momentum for the Company.
(2) Impacts from Regulaty Setting



As far as the regulatory setting is concerned, besides complying with national policies
and regulatory requirements, respective units, namely finance, sales, and auditing, of
the Company are paying close attention to changes in important paiaieaws in the

nation at any time and are precisely keeping track of the latest information so as to
adjust the Companyés internal system an
smooth corporate operations.

ChairmaniLiu, PoYuan President.Liu, PoYuan Chief Accounting Officer: Su, Hsihlung



Two. Company Profile

Established onjune 12, 1995

Company History:

1.

Merger and acquisition activities in the most recent year and until the annual report
publication date: None.

Massivetransaction or conversion of shares by directors, supervisors or dominant
shareholders holding over 10% of the stakes in the most recent year and until the
annual report publication date: None.

Re-organization activities in the most recent year and uh& annual report
publication date: None.

Significant changes in operations and business contents in the most recent year anc
until the annual report publication date: None.

Management changes and other important events that may affect the rights and
interests of shareholders and their influence on the company in the most recent year
and up to the annual report publication date: None.

Reinvestments in affiliates in the most recent year and up to the annual report
publication date: Please referltdnformétion of Affiliates on pag&32.

Other Information:

1995 A The Company was established under the nanfiEwfSoft Co., Ltdd
and dealt mainly with information and software services.
Released the first seffiade produciCONVENIENT STORB, which
was wel received on the market with unprecedented sales.

The Company officially changed its name to Gamania Digital
Entertainment Co., Ltd. (Gamania).

Gamania Digital Entertainment (HK) Co., Ltd. was established.
Brokered and released the online gdinieeaged and rewrote the
history of the gaming industry of Taiwan.

Released the digital recreational magaZidéNIA ¢; 200 thousand
volumes were sold as soon as it was available on the market.
ACONVENIENT STORB was awardedBest Strategy Game by an
IndependenDevelopeo by the Taipei Computer Association.
Released the sefhade produciCONVENIENT STORE 2.
ACONVENIENT STORE 2was awardedBest Strategy Game by &
Independent Develop&by the Taipei Computer Association.
fiLineag® was awarded@Best Otine Game by the Taipei Computer
Association.

Gamani abs Corporate I dentity

I n T a iiTepd® Nasonal Design Awaod

Listed in Taiwan under the ticker symbol of 6180.

Gamania Digital Entertainment (Beijing) Catd. was established.
The selfmade online gamBCOCOCANb was introduced to the
market in Taiwan along withiGame Caias its sound track.

1999

2000

2001

2002

> > P> D> P> D> D> D>y D>y D

2003



2004

2005

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

2011
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>~

>~

> > > >

Gamani abs Corporate I dentity
Award for creativity.

fiHero: 10® was awadled the Animation Prototype Award at the 20
International Class Content Prototype Awards.

Taiwan Index became part of Gamania (and the name was chan
fiGameast@).

Brokered and released the online gdiMapleStory, which became
the fird free online game in Taiwan that changed the habits of ple
Brokered and released the online gdiM@binogo.

Attended the Tokyo Game Show for the first time where five of th
Company's selinade online games, includifgucent Hear made
theirdebut.

Brokered and released the recreational online g&nezy Arcadeé.
Brokered and released the online gdi@eazyRacing KartRideéy
which became the largest recreational game in scale in Taiwan.
fLucent Head won thefilnternational Digital Cotent Prototype
Awardo in the digital content series of contests of Taiwan.
Released the sefhade online gamdd.ucent Heam andiiSenMoD@.
AlLucent Hear, in particular, was awardd@est Game of 20@8n
Japan.

Gamani a was name ¢ 100Bnards of RO08T a i w
Brokered and released in Taiwan the online gé@munter Strike
Onlined which started the fad of FPS shooting games.

fiGamania Cheer Up Foundatimwas set up to encourage young
people taidream hard and be yourself

Formed the Espors teanfiGama Beaisand became officially
devoted to Esports.

Gameastor brokered and released the online g&ise/ordd.
Gamania Digital Entertainment (United States) Co., Ltd. was
established.

Gamania received diDutstanding award from Branding diwan in
2009.

The original animatiorfiHero: 108, a product of collaboration with
Cartoon Network under US Warner Bros. and France Moon Scoc
played in over 100 countries around the world, including the US,
UK, and France through Cartoon Network.

Attended the Tokyo Game Show and showcased eight of the
Company's selinade games, includirfiCore Blazé andiiDIVINA 0.
The comprehensive platforfiBeanfunb made its official debut and
was commissioned one after another in Taiwan, the US, Europe,
China, and Hong Kong.

Released the sethade online gamd®IVINA ¢, iROA online,
fiHero: 108®, andfiKoihime Musa.

Gamania Digital Entertainment (Europe) Co., Ltd. was establishe
ATWO TIGERS CO., LTDbwas established in Taiwan afiredog
Studia in Hong Kong.

Gash Point Card Digital Technology Co., Ltd. was established an
upgraded t&iGASH+0to diversify business in repsective areas.
Released the first iPhone gafitéero: 10& to officially secure
presence on the global iOS platform.
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2012

2013

2014

> > > > > >

> >

>

Organizedhe large product release conference Gamania Game ¢
in Taipei that gathered representatives of 110 media companies i
around the world to try the games and to cover the show.

fWeb Koihime Musowon the 2012 GAME STARBest Selfmade
Web-basedGame Silver Award

Gama Bears won the national championship in Taiwapdgts
five-yeariSFO andfiCrazyRacing KartRider

The crossndustrial collaboration of the original animatitiMig
Saicb and the GTV trendy dranfan Timewith Youo started the
fiSquarehead Liom fad. A series of commodities were introduced.
The said trendy drama won tAerogram Marketing Awaialof the
Golden Bell Awards.

Founded the corporate childcare facififgamaGardemthat is based
on the corporate essenceftive to play and to live up tdigaming is
to learn happily and learning is the game of acquiring knowfedge
Gama Bears won the Taiwanrsgorts fiveyear national
championship.

Brokered and released the cute online ga@razy Shooting Bubble
Fighteioto showcasgopularity.

Listed i n Chidopd0d Cdvhpamiaszdar theeYoung
Generationin 2013 and topped the list of counterparts from Taiwe
Gama Bears won the national championship in Taiwapdgts
six-yearfiCrazyRacing KartRidér

Attended China Joytmaximize the distribution network and solici
business.

The two popular gamd#¥/abinogb andfiElsword won the Bronze
Award infiPopular Online MMORPG Game of the YéandiiOther
Popular Online Game of the Yéan the 2013 Bahamut Game Awai
Attended he Tokyo Game Show; the R&D Company PlayCoo
Corporation successfully attracted international attention with thr
its selfmade games, includin@Pocket Valkyria.
FoundediMIMIGIGI o to take charge of the mobile phone busines
For the first game, it lokered the international masterpiddants vs
Zombies for Android Traditional Chinese. In tofdt,was downloade
more than 600 thousand times.

Brokered and released the popular scifi acfidhantasy Star Online
20.

The free server edition dfi¢ classic longdived online game
fiLineage® was introduced; it became one of the most popular gan
of the year in Taiwan. A headcount of more than one million peog.
signed up for the first time.

fiDragon Poked, the famous Japanese card game was intrdduce
The public funeraising platform by the name 8#WEBACKERSO
was introduced to provide entrepreneurship teams with diversifie
opportunities and cultural and creative, gaming, animation, desig
audiovisual, technology, and public interest proposalsvaleome.
Reinvested iriiJollywiz Digitalo to officially set foot in ecommerce.
Established the online audiovisual new entertainment media plat
ACOTURED to bring new perspectives for online entertainment.
EstablishediGash Point Payto secure thiregparty payment

7



2015

2016

A

>\

> > >

> >

opportunities.

The Group proactively transforms towards becoming a comprehe
web-based enterprise. Thi&amania 20 exhibition was held in
Huashan 1914 Creative Park so that the general public got a che
feel for themselves theamprehensive webased daily life services
provided by the Group.

Listed consecut i v éiloy 100 @Qomgahies éor
the Young Generatiam 2015 and topped the list of counterparts fi
Taiwan.

Introduced the popular RPG gaiiifeinger Knights.

Introduced the mobile phone editiBRocket MapleStoiyof the supe
popular RPG online ganfdaplestory.

Introduced the mobitlend dual platform gamLineage Eternal Life.
Announced collaboration with the Japan mobile game leader Gui
to jointly enter the markets in Taiwan, Hong Kong, and Macao.
Gash Point Pay received the official business license to run as ai
exclusive electronic payment institution for domestic O20 physic
store payment service and joined hands with Taiwan Taxi, E.SUM
VENTURE CAPITAL CO.,LTD., TAIWAN SECOM CO., LTD., and
FamilyMart, among others to jointly expand the scope of applicat
for the payment service and to deploy comprehensively on the
electronic payment market.

Jollywiz establishe@)STaiwal to enter the Chinaeommerce
platform Tmall Global with quality historical store products.
COTURE introduced the talent sh@@amania 20 Top Million Star
the very first multiscreen reatime interactive audiovisual
entertainment show.

Introduced online exchange marketplaédP iSwapuld to start a nev
shared economic model.

fiGash Point Card Digital Technology Co., Iédhanged its name to
fiGash Point Co., Ltd.

IntroducedfiAzion Corporatiod andAiMERCURIES DATA
SYSTEMS LTDoto be the strategic partnersfi@digicentre andto
jointly create the great future for cloud data.

Invested iMNOWnews to further media deployment.

Joined hands with the Japan mobile game leader GungHo and
introduced the popular Japanese RPG chessthgaednobile game
fiSummons Boards it was well received among the million players
and members.

Brokered and released the popular FPS classic online game exte
ACSO2 Counter Strike Online2more than 500 thousand people
signed up in the first month after it was introduced to reignite the
passon for FPS games.

Introduced the original classic mudased social networkingriented
mobile gaméPLAN-SO;, it combined the e
talent showiPLAN-SO while creating an innovative videgame
interactive entertainment model. The game wasrdoaded more the
a million times.

fiGash Point Pay Co., Ltichanged its name fiGAMA PAY CO.,

8



2017

A

LTD.o.
AGAMA PAY o officially went online to comprehensively promote t|
scope of electronic payment. The goal is to become a leading br:
electronic payrant in Taiwan.
The masterpiece of COTUR¥amania 20 Top Million Stawon the
fiBest Variety Show Awardlof the 52 Golden Bell Awards and was
the first new online media to be honored with the awards in Taiw:
The Gamania Group was officially relocatedts new headquarters
Neihu and turned over a new leaf as a comprehensivéassxl
enterprise.
Introduced the redime communication softwa@BeanGobwhich
meets the three communication requirements of intuition, dating .
events, and redefinesetmetworking model of the new generation t
provide the most interesting and trendy communication experient
Listed i n Chidopd0d Cdvhpamiaszar theeYousng
Generationin 2017, the best ranking in history, and topped the lis
counteparts from Taiwan. The Group continued to live up to its cc
essence dilive and work in peace and happingasile building a
quality workplace with benefits.
ReceivediOutstanding Issuer of Government Uniform Invoice (@&
Award from the Ministry oFinance in 2017.
Obtained the exclusive dealership of the mobile game masterpie:
NCSOFTiiLineage M for Taiwan, Hong Kong, and Macao. It was
released to the market concurrently in Taiwan, Hong Kong and v
on December 11 and the number of memberg wero 2.43 million
within only 20 days. The highest record was over 1.11 million pec
active in one single day and more than 400 thousand people onli
the same time; both were the new records on the gaming market
Meanwhile, it had been topping th@S list of best sellers and the
Google Play list of highest revenue for three weeks in a row.
For the classic flagship online garfidaplestory, the yearnedor
10-year altprofession fiveturn contents were introduced. The
popularity was unprecedented.
As part of its internationalization strategy, GASH cooperated with
Japan cash flow platform BitCash to reach out to the world.
Fundraising for the first nostalgic game magazifetro Game
Timed of WEBACKERS rendered more than NTD 7 million raised
the highest record in the fuprdising history of game publications ir
the world.
WEBACKERS focused on fundhising for the ACG industry and
introduced the charity brand WeGamersLove; it was the single e\
that broke the one million record in fuindising.
COTURE introduced Boy's Love drariiBark Blueand Moonlight;
the innovative theme triggered heated discussions online and it v
viewed 15 million times.
Jollywiz obtained the exclusive dealership of the international bre
Vita Coco in Taiwan. The crogsorder ecommerce operation reachu
out to the largest-eommerce platform Lazada in Southeast Asia.
Jollywiz ventured with sisters and form@jolly Digital Corporation
Ltd.0to become ®ommerce social media capable of producing its

9



2018

2019

A

own media contentunning its own eeommerce platform, and
managing its own brand.

Listed i n Chidopd0d Cdvhpamiaszar theeYousg
Generationin 2018.

The Group took part in the Taipei Game Show, spearheatihgage
Mo, with subordinate businesses, rdynGASH, COTURE, GAMA
PAY, and Swapub. Starting with games, new AV media, mobile pe
and secondhand exchange marketplace were combined. The
deployment covering various types of mobile applications facilital
the Group to grow toward being a comprehemsvebbased
enterprise.

GASH released its new business model for the gaming industry ¢
the Asia Blockchain Summit for the first time in the third quarter, f
[1O (Initial Item Offerings), which triggered inquiries from a lot of
game operators.

The nobile shopping platform centering on networkingemmerce
AJollyBuyo; the innovative growshopping model and its combinati
with Beanfun! allowance spending successfully boosted brand
awareness.

The media business took a step further. In the thirdeuaf 2018,
Nownews officially became a subsidiary of the Group; it is positic
to be the engine for original contents of Taiwan and contributes t
more robust foundation of the Group while the latter grows to be
comprehensive webased enterprise.

The original dram#@Ghost High Schodlof COTURE was nominate
for Mini-series, Actor, and Supporting Actress of the Golden Bell
Awards.

The first Corporate Social Responsibility Report of Gamania won
Golden Award in théiCorporate Sustainabijyi Report Awardé of the
12th Taiwan Corporate Sustainability Awards.

Li sted i n Chidopd0d Cdvhpapiaszdar theeYousg
Generation for the 14" year and ranked 23 the besever in history.
The Gr oup 06 sfiGaria@addedwanahe 1¥€Taiwan Interiol
Design Award in 2019 for its public space, demonstrating that the
corporate benefits had reached new heights.

Continued with théExpedition to South Pobeproject of Gamania
Cheer Up Foundation. First, a smidlouth Pole Adventure
Exhibitiondo was held in the headquarters of the Gamania Group il
Neihu where challenges countered in the south pole expedition
preparations were released to the public. It was recognized by 2(
Germany Iconic Awards. Cooperated with Discovery in 2019 and
produced the adventure science documeriiarpedition to South
Poled and held the first special exhibition on the south pole adver
at the end of the year entitl&@o! Gd South Polé Theme Ticket
Exhibition to encourage the young generation to lb@dfor their
dreams.

Obtained exclusive dealership for Taiwan, Hong Kong, and Mace
the endgamegiLineage REMASTEREDandfiDragon Nesiand
mobile game$World of Dragon Nest ASinTale®, andiKomori
Lifed and deployed the market for mild to sevdieersified players t

10



2020

A

maximize the game player base.

Entertainmentdusiness compariyjjollyBuyo was online, targeting
ACG (Anime, Comics and Games) populations, with PiLi Puppet
Show, Kadokawa, Tong Li and Beast Kingdom participating.
Meanwhile, multiplesocial shopping services and the painless sto
platform were launched to provide complete 2C and-2Bremerce
services.

The joint venture WalkerMedia was established with Taiwan
Kadokawa. Technological innovation was applied to travel and fo
information, creating a onstop fulfilling intelligence website for
those who love to travel and enriched contents were introduced i
Beanfun! In the future, it will be planned to combine membership
both for maximized synergistic effects in daily life erderinent
services such as intelligence/information, games, and payment.
DIGICENTRE rendered fruitful results in overseas deployment. It
branch office HyperG was established in Singapore and it collabc
with the Israel information security company Relglan providing
new services. Domestically, on the other hand, it successfully en
the medical care and national defense fiedls. The cloud informati
security service continued to grow.

Gamania Group celebrated its’2&nniversary by holding ¢honline
exhibition iCheckpoint Challengeand releasing its #5anniversary
fimAL et 6 s dabthefsame timetThe film depicted the brave
of Gamania in innovation and the journey it had taken on in being
industrial leader as well as historjtbe cyber industry of Taiwan th
has covered generations.

The 2019Go! Go! South Polespecial exhibition of Gamania Chee
Up Foundation won the 2020 Germany Red Dot Design Award fo
being thefiBest of the BestfiBrands & Communication Designthe
2020 Good Design Award, and 2020 Golden Pin Design Award, a
many other special honors.

The Gamania Group took part in thé"IRiwan Corporate
Sustainability Award screening and widBustainability Report
Silverd andfiExcellent Sustainability Exampl€lalent Developmet
The Gamania Group took part in the fifth Sports Enterprise Certif
screening and received tfi2020 | Sports Enterprise certificatidn
symbol from the Sports Administration, Ministry of Education.
Listed i n Chidopi®CoMpagies for the &dusg
Generation for the 14" year and also the only enterprise selected
from the industry of Taiwan.

One of the finalists for the second Annual Enterprises Protection
Award.

Gamania has been devoted to corporate governance ovenghiermn
and hopes to strengthen communications with stakeholders and
information disclosure by improving the function of its Board of
Directors, setting up the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee, independent directors, and corporate governance
supevisors, creating maximum shareholder equity and realizing
sustainable corporate operation.

The Group created two rounds of the plaiygeractive Live Show
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2021

A

fiGamania Online Carnivalvhere resources throughout the Gama
Group, namely games, paymentammerce, and daily life portal
Beanfun! were combined to provide impressive game contents a
supervalue preferred deals. The hope was to converge the
membership flow throughout the Group with the jgatertainment
audiovisual live broadcasting and imprdteir involvement for
synergistic effects brought about by crissiness collaboration.
GungHo Gamania brokered the virtual life habit formation mobile
gamefiKomori Lifed that was released by Shanghai Ruluo Networ
Development and Shengqu Games and ittwéicially online on
both platforms in Taiwan, Hong Kong, and Macao.

The Group obtained the exclusive dealership of the Traditional
Chinese version (for Taiwan, Hong Kong and Macao) of the
brandnew pinball RPG mobile game World Flipperdeveloped
between leading Japanese game developer Cygames and our
subsidiary Citail. We also partnered with leading South Korean ge¢
developer Kakao Games to jointly operatefifibe Legendary
Moonlight Sculptod, an IP game adapted from a famous fantasy
novel.

The adossborder ebusiness compariyollywiz Digitalo announced t
enter Vietnam and introduced the brand new ebmsger ecommerce
platformfitt CHOICED. It is expected to introduce 10 to 15 domesti
and international brands in the initial stage, and wikketite Vietnan
market with other brands. In addition, Jollywiz was recognized wi
five-star rating by Tmall again in 2020 and became the first Taiwe
capital enterprise to gain the honor consecutively.

In response to the sudden increase in the demanebfiing from
home in 2020, DIGICENTRE in the first quarter focused on the
fAmazing Thor Smart and Safe Office solutidhat could be quickly
set up to provide support while taking care of information security
the same time. Meanwhile, it worked witte Israel information
security company Reblaze on robotic flow authentication to perfo
outside an enterprise big data analysis and continuous monitorin
threatening intelligence for cyber information security and risk
assessment, which has becomew solution trend.

The videofiDare to Challengef or t he cel ebr at
anniversary won the affirmation of the Brands and Communicatic
Design category of the Red Dot Design Award in 2021.

Rated the top-20% among TPEXsted compares at the 7th
Corporate Governance Evaluation.

Won the Bronze Award at the 3rd Annual Enterprise Environment
Protection Award (AEEPA), the highest honor for environmental
protection in Taiwan.

Nominated for thé&Top 100 Most Admired Companies of the Mex
Generation by Cheers Magazine for 16 consecutive years, and is
only game developer on the list.

Summer School organized by the Gamania Cheer Up Foundatiot
online for the first time in @21. Based on the theni®are to Lift the
Restrictions) we actively broke the limits on time, space and
qualifications for adventurving youth, in order to develop their
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adventuring power and enrich their mountain knowledge through
e-learning and online experience.

The 2021 Gamania Winter Carnival was heldaotlaboration with
Syntrend Creative Park, the center of ACG, to create an event fol
gamers through online merge offline (OMO). The live webcast cr
a new record of 16,000 concurrent viewers and a reach of over 1
million persons. The offline activitiedy integrating Syntrend
Creative Par k, Gamaaommetcsanano b i
e-payment resources, attracted over 6,000 visitors within 3 days
the crowd control policy for pandemic control, and also boosted t
conversion rate and sales obsidiaries including GASH mall,
GamaPay and JollyBuy.

The 2021 Gamania Summer Carnival combined the ACG, music,
novel domains for the first time to broadcast different

panent ert ai nment contents over
studio, for 5 comecutive days. Besides attracting gamers and
audiences from different social groups, the event created over 5
million views and a reach of nearly 1.7 million persons in total,
creating a new record for the event.

fiMapleStory, one of Ga ma phitanew high again.
Besides cultivating new users from younger age groups, the tear
lifted the brand status to tli'end maker of PC gamem 2021 to
constantly raise the user confidence index. Additionally, with new
characters includingMo Xuan andKaino and a number of largecale
versionschange events for the 16th anniversary, the monthly, que
and annual revenues respectively hit a new high.

The branenew pinball RPG mobile gant&Vorld Flippen
co-developed between leading Japanese ganmaamr Cygames ar
our subsidianCitail, andfiworld of Dragon Negt a classic IP from
Eyedentity Games of South Korea, both of which are representet
Gamania, started service in Taiwan, Hong Kong and Macao.
Gamania Group established the branesv Literature Star and Comic
Star platforms to enter the electronic (digital) literature and comic
markets, turning beanfun! into the unique platform app that offers
electronic literature and comics contents in Taiwan. The Group a
integrated game-eommerceand payment services to complete thi
deployment for media production, OMO exhibition, and domestic
overseas channels to build an unprecedented content IP ecosyst
Tai wandés original works, <crea
commercialization mecimésms for works, and accelerate value
creation for Taiwanbés origina
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2022

A

At the oneyear anniversary of Literature Star and Comics Star un
Gamania Group, the Group will continues enhancing the creative
energy of domestic comics and literaur

Gamania Group received a total score of 2.4 points in the 2021 E
evaluation by the international evaluation agency FTSE Russell (
highest FTSE Russell evaluation score is 5 points).

Gamania Group received a total score of 16.7 points in the 2031
evaluation by the international evaluation agency Sustainalytics (
lower the Sustainalytics evaluation score, the better), and was ra
a low risk enterprise.

Gamania Group received a total score of 50.73 points in the 202
disclosure score @dloomberg, an international financial informatio
company (the higher the Bloomberg ESG disclosure score, the b
Gamania Group was rated tof26% among TPEksted companies .
the 8th Corporate Governance Evaluation.

Gamania Group won the Bronzevard for two consecutive years at
the 4th Annual Enterprise Environmental Protection Award (AEEF
the highest honor for environmental protection in Taiwan.
Gamania Group has completed greenhouse gas inventory and
inspection, ahead of the regulatory autiot i es 6 t i me
requirements, and is actively implementing the goals of net zero
carbon emissions and climate and environmental issues.

In 2022, the Gamania Cheer Up Foundation launched a new initi
callediiGoNexb to continue supporting two yag people with a big
dream: Taiwan mountaineer Lui, Chulign successfully climbed th
world's third highest peak Kanchenjunga without oxygen, and Tal
football teenager Yuan, Yurgheng made his debut in the Europes
Football League. The Group officigllaunched thé&Shore to Top
project, leading Gamania Summer School students to hike 50
kilometers to challenge the National Greenway in the mountains
seas; at the end of the year, we also invited top marathon runner
jointly complete the preliming study of theiShore to Top super
marathon track, advocating the spirit of fearlessness and adventt
The Group's curated braiiid022 Gamania Carnival Spring Festiva
Editiono brings together three major entertainment elements: mus
cuisine and game3he online live streaming program created nea
million total views, breaking the records in previous years, and di
beanfun!, Gamania payment, leisure shopping and performance
growth during the 22 day event.

The Group's curated brafid022 Gamani&arnival Summer Call
launched a new brand identity, injected the elements of original
entertainment film and television ffAtomic Youtho for the first time,
with the Group's services and online activities organized by bean
beanfun! under Gamania Gq@! launched a new serviééun
Markeb to create a legitimate authorized IP digital collectible
platform, and also provided B2B and C2C digital commodity trad
platforms for collectibles, game props, virtual goods and other
treasures.

The talent shoviiAtomic Youtld jointly produced by Gamania Grou
and Wildfire Entertainment was officially aired, and integrated wit
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the Group's diverse digital capacity, such as the launch of the Atc
Youth digital collectiomAtomic Energy Bo by Music Point GASH
through crossborder cooperation to deeply integrate typical
entertainment film and television content with digital services, an
create a new digital entertainment model.

One of the key products under Gamania GréyzpleStory has
created a new high in o@ion. The team continues to strengthen-
brand's youthfulness management to expand its user base, and
collaborated with welknown idol groups both domestically and
internationally in 2022.

The Group obtained the exclusive dealership in Taiwan, Hong Kc
and Macau ofiTree of SaviorMobile Remaké of South Korean
gaming giant IMC Games developed by Kim Seung kyu, the fath:
AROo.

GASH, a subsidiary of Gamania Group, officially launched the
fiBlockchain BaaS (Blockchain as a Service)-stap integrabn
serviced to provide partners with technical support and consulting
services in aspects of production contracts, casting websites anc
community integration marketing.

Gamania Group, in collaboration with Taipei Pop Music Center,
integrated music and digi technology and jointly released the
fiChang, YuSheng Special Exhibition Digital Collectiofor thefiFly
Me to the Moon & Baci special exhibition, and introduced a new
music element to the Group's pantertainment landscape.
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Corporate Governance Report

Organizational System:

(1)

Organizational Structure:

Global Busines
Development
Division

Shar ehc
. . meetin
Audit Committee eeting
Compensation and L B_oard of
Remuneration Committ: Directors
Nomination ) i
Committee | Audit Office
Chief Executive
Of ficer
Innovation Chief Strateg) Chief Brand Chief Human Chief
and R&D of fic Marketing Financial Resources Operating
| ) Center . -
Center Office Of ficer of fic Office Officer's
i i beanfun! i .
Interr_wal Informgtlor Strategic Braduct ggtgggeirli Legal Business
Service Service Deploymen e Division | i
L L L Research an( R&D Division Unit
Division Division Division
Development
Division - i
Strategic Fund S;:géeu%f
— R&D — Managemer Operation
Division Division Division
Product ﬁﬁg:’nﬂg:gg Information
— Strategy | Managemen —1 Technology
Division Division Division
Product
—1 Developmen
Division
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(1 Major Departments and Their Scope of Operation:
Unit Task and Responsibility
. , Prepares the overall strategic goals of the Gemgbcentrally manages and supervises the implementatid
Chief Executiyv .
Group business as a whole.
Audit Office Plans and implements the internal control system.

Chief Operating Officer's Office

Centrally plans and implements operations involving-gache and mobilgame products, membership
expansion, and platform creation as well as supervise operations at respective departments.

Optimizes the corporate financial structure, draws up corporate financial strategies, scheduleg corpor
funds, determines investment direction, manages risks, processes accounts, and produces and analy

Chief Financi alg . :

financial and accounting statements and reports.

The Legal Division is responsible for reviewing contracts and compliance.

Promotes horizontal integration of subsidiaries and develops big data application within the group. Gu
Chief Str at ecgy|focus projects between subsidiaries or the group and other companies and review project business si

and monitors various group data foe tteference of judging business strategies.

Human Resources Office

Plans and implements recruitment, educational trainings, compensation and welfare, and employee r
throughout the Group.

Brand Center

Communicates the essence of Gamania as a brahceinforces brand depth. Takes charge of breladed
affairs such as brand identity, brand image, branding, branded goods, and Group cultural disseminati
order to maintain consistency of the brand internally and externally.

Enterprise Communiti&an
Office

Takes charge of the Groupds public relations,
holds luncheons with the media and press conferences, releases Group news and accepts interviews
media, maintains media relat&mmonitors daily news, and manages crises.

Original Creation Center

Responsible for product content creation and related commercial cooperation within the Group.

Strategic Deployment Division

Takes charge of related operational affairs between the Graliputside parties as part of strategic
collaboration.

beanfun! Product Research an
Development Division

Plans beanfun! app products and develops their features.

Information Service Division

Takes charge of integrating related application and developrth r esour ces t o cou
operation direction and helps define strategic development and technical research for new services.
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Takes charge of planning fixed assets, purchases, contracts and documentation,patidacsafety,
among other logistic and administrative resources, assisting in other services and measures such as
business tours, employee cafeterias, and the fitness room, and centrally managing related properties
the corporate buildiopin Neihu.

Internal Service Division

Searches for, approaches, and negotiates business development, collaborative opportunities with res
subsidiaries, gaming dealership and business to support with business operation, collects dnarket an
competition information, shares new trends, maintains relations with contractors and customers.

Global Business Development
Division
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Information of Directors, Supervisors, President, Vice President, Assistant Vice President,
and Heads of Various Departments and Branches:

) Directars
April 22, 2023
Other managers,
g directors, or
g g Shares held when Shares held l_)y Shares held in someon supervisors who a
3 Gender 2 Shares held now spouse and ming the spouse or a
= @ elected ) elsés name . o
F m 4 child(ren) relative within the
o @ % Initial date second degree off 4
= g " o P
Position 3 Name 2 5 of Background Positions served at the Company and other kinship ]
Q Age - o | . companies at present )
@ 5 S |inauguratior n n n » =
@ Q o Py %
3 & 2 38 23 | wE | 88 wE 58 h o
a = Number of | £ @ Numberof | 53 g3 =3 g3 =3 2 g 2
<3 B shares | =3 shares <3 | 58 | =8 58 =3 23|38
3 g g S o5 | S2 ® g Sa A
=} -~ =3 =3 = =3 = =3 5
= « « « «
@
Chairman and CEO o
Male the Company 3
4 Executive Manager of @
2 FULLJIHN Machinery 2 g
Chairman |R.O.C| Liu, Po-Yuan 2020.06.17 ® | 1995.04.01| 19,372,202 | 11.04 17,491,305 9.97 0 0 13,800,000 7.75 Refer to Note 1 for details None 5 =
% Department of &2
51-60 2 Mechanical Engineerin N
Hwa Hsia University o 3
Technology B
—
. =3
RoC/  Wanin - ® | 2017.06.08 15,101,000| 86 | 15101000 | 8.6 0 0 0 0 - -
International <
&
Director 2020.06.17 None None
| Chairperson and
Representativ| Male President of Wanin
R.O.C Hsiao, 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 International Chairpeson and President of Wanin Internationg
ChengHao | 49 59
Ling Tung University
Chairman and CSO of WISTRON
_ CORPORATION
Male President of ACER | chairman of Wiwynn Corporation
o INCORPORATED ) i o
Li g Chairman of Wistron Digital Technolo
Director |R.O.C HsierTl\)Iin 2020.06.14 ® | 2020.06.17 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Bachelor of Electronic| Holding C None None
9 % Computer and Contro| olding om.pany
3 Engineering, National Independent Director of ELAN
61-70 Chiao Tung University MICROELECTRONICS CORPORATION
Independent Director of Powerchip Semicondud
Manuacturing Corporation
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Other managers,
g directors, or
g 8 Shares held when Shares held l_)y Shares held in someon supervisors who a
3 Gender =3 Shares held now spouse and ming the spouse or a
o @ elected ) elsés name . o
F m 4 child(ren) relative within the
o @ 2 Initial date second degree off g
- 3 @ 3 Positions served at the Company and other kinship @
Position & Name Q 5 of Background p 3
Q. Age - o | } companies at present ]
7} 5 S, |inauguratior| o o o " =
3 E |8 535 58 | w2 |88 z 53 o & |7
o < Number of | £ 3 Numterof | &g | 33 | S35 %3 53 g | & | &
53 B shares | =3 shares ~2 | 8% | =2 23 =3 = | 3 S
<] = S o S0 | @ ®Q S o o Q S 15 @ 2
3 2 g Sa |og | =g (= Sg E 2
o - > > = =] = =] 5
= « « « «Q
@
CLOUD 3
COPIOUS )
R.O.C INVESTMET - ;D 2020.06.17 1,005 0 1,005 0 0 0 0 0 - -
N LIMITED 8
Director 2020.06.17 ¢ None None
Managing Petner of Managing Partner of Tongli ]_aw Firm )
Representativ] Male Tongli Law Firm Indgpendent Director of Jinli Group Holdings
RO.C|  Chen, 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Limited ,
ShihYing Master of Laws, Independent Director of Yonggu Group Co., Ltd
51-60 University of Sheffield
Chairman and President of BORA
PHARMACEUTICALS CO., LTD.
Directorof WELLPOOL CO., LTD.
Chairman of UNION CHEMICAL &
PHARMACEUTICAL CO., LTD.
Male Chairmanof Baolei Co. Ltd.
Chairman of Bao En International Co., Ltd.
) . ._|Independent Director of BIONET Corporation
Chalrmoe?nBz(i)ngAPremde Chairmanof Rui Bao Xing Investment Co., Ltd.
= PHARMACEUTICALS Cha!rman of Boradealth Inc. ) )
Independen ) 13 CO.. LTD. Cha!rman of B_ora‘PharmacleutlcaI Laboratories
Director R.O.C| Sheng, Ba¢Si 2020.06.17 ® | 2017.06.08 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 ! Chairman of Jia Xi International Co., Ltd. None None
% ._|Chairman of Bora Management Consulting Co.,
) Bachelor of Economic Ltd
3 . : .
Cacl)iffct.:rqil;?régszle Chairman of Bora Biotech Ltd.
Y |chairman of Synpa&ingdom Pharmaceutical Cd
Ltd.
41-50 Chairman of TWi Bitechnology, Inc.
Chairman oBora Pharmaceutical and Consume|
Healthinc.
Person in charge of Bora Pharmaceuticals USA|
Person in charge of Bora Pharmaceuticals Serv|
Inc.
= President of SHUNG Y|Chairman of STARTRII CO., LTD.
Independent g TRADING CO., LTD. |Director of Shun Yi Investment Co., Ltd.
Direc’;)tor R.O.C/ Lin, RueiYi | Male |[2020.06.17 ® | 2017.06.08 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Director of SHUNG YETRADING CO., LTD. None None
S Master of Business |Director of Lien Chen Automotive Co., Ltd.
3 Administration of  [Director of Yue Ye Motors Corporation
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Other managers,
g directors, or
= o Shares held by . supervisors who a
o
3 Gender % Sharglser;teelg when Shares held now spouse and ming Share;sheeslignmseomeon the spouse or a
F m 4 child(ren) relative within the
° @ e . second degree of
= Q 3 | Initial date - o P
Position @ Name 2 5 of Backaround Positions served at the Company and other| kinship g
<. Age - g inauguratiorl 9 companies at present ]
T 3 = 9 %) %) > (%) - (%} b )
3 S ® 28 28 |wE | BB w E 8 I | =12
o c Number of | = g Numberof | &3 | 23 | 5@ = g3 3 & 2
S o shares | =3 shares =32 | 88 |52 23 =3 = | 3 S
z $2 £ o & L2 o = £2 ] ® )
3 = g ea | g | S8 @ 5 Sa S e
o - > > = =] = =] 5
o « « « «Q
George Washington |Independent Director of Bora Pharmaceuticals
5160 University
Chairperson of Bai
Male 4 Chuan International |Chairman of Bai Chuan International Investmen
=) Co., Ltd.
Independen Chen, 18 Investnr:e_nt co. Ld. Director of Bora Pharmaceduticals N N
Director R.O.C KuanPai 2020.06.1 2 202006.17 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Chairman - _ one one
® Independent Director of Merdes Data
g Master of University off Systems Ltd.
51-60 Southern California

Note 1: Chairman of Gamania Digital Entertainment Co., Ltd., Chairman of Gamania Digital Entertainment (HK) Co., LtdarCbfa@amania Digital Entertainment (Beijing) Co., Ltd., Chairman @ratp
representative) of Foundation Digital Entertainment Co., Ltd., Director (corporate representative) of Taiwan Esportso_eamlieGhairman (corporate representative) of Digicentre Company Limited,
Chairman (corporate representative) of JollyBugital Tech. Co., Ltd., Chairman (corporate representative) of Two Tigers Co., Ltd., Chairman of Gash Point (Japan) Qicectad of Gash Point (Hong
Kong) Company Limited, Chairman of Gash Point (Korea) Co., Ltd., Chairman (corporate repregesftatitand Co., Ltd., Chairman (corporate representative) of Ants' Power Co., Ltd., Director (corporate
representative) of R@One Commercial Production Co., Ltd., Chairman (corporate representative) of Coture New Media Co., Ltd., Chairman of Hoyenlirement Company Limited, Chairman of Gamania
Holdings Ltd., Chairman (corporate representative) of Gamania International Holdings Ltd., Chairman (corporate repjexfe@tatiamia China Holdings Ltd., Chairman of Gamania Sino Holdings Ltd.,
Chairman (corporate representative) of Gash Point Co., Ltd., Chairman (corporate representative) of Gamania Asia Investmenti@armad of Gamania Cheer Up Foundation, Chairman (corporate
representative) of Conetter Comarketing Co., Ltd., Chairman (@gpmpresentative) of Webackers Co., Ltd., Chairman of Xiang Sheng Investment Co., Ltd., Director of HaPod Digital fé&hunltoly
Chairman (corporate representative) of Jollywiz Digital Technology Co., Ltd., Director of Achieve Made Internatipdbifctor of Gungho Gamania Co., Limited, Chairman (corporate representative) of
Beango Co., Ltd., Chairman (corporate representative) of Circo, Inc., Director (corporate representative) of the Chirecfeosif Store Marais Co., Ltd., Directdr Bigicentre (HK) Company Limited,
Director (representative of corporate investor) of Union Splendid Management Co., Ltd., Supervisor (corporate reprefeiattha)g I.P. Holding Inc. Supervisor of Polysh Co., Ltd., Supervisor
(representative of cporate investor) of Newbloom Venture Co., Ltd., Chairman (representative of corporate investor) of Bjolly Digital Corptat@imairman (representative of corporate investor) of

Nownews Network Co., Ltd., Director (representative of corporate inyesit8eishi Technology Co., Ltd., Director (representative of corporate investor) of
Director (representative of corporate investor) of Pili International Multimedia Inc.

Union Splendid Management Cad, Ltd., an

Note 2: If the chairperson and presidenaprequivalent role (highestnking officer) are the same person, the spouse of each other, or relatives of the first degree of kinship, state ldgitheasynnecessity, and

countermeasures as below:
(I) The industry that the Company is in is chany quickly. Chairman Liu, R¥uan also serves as the President for the purpose of enhancing the operational efficiency and boostingaldoigicapability

given his broad perspective, trend insights and flexible strategic approaches which ararfaheimlustry, so as to create maximum value for the Company and give back to shareholders.
(I1) To strengthen corporate governance, the specific measures taken by the Company are as follows:

21



1. The Company has established functional committeesand selec out st andi ng
2. Independent directors of the Company are also members of the Remuneration Committee,

governance.

3. Each year, the Company plans at least two sessions of continuing study for Board members to strengthen board competency.

4. In 2019, the Board approved the establishment of the Corfwatal Responsibility Committee and voluntarily prepared the Corporate Social Responsibility Report to strengthen corporate

governance.

5. Only the Chairman and President are the same person in the Company. No other directors are also employees afiyhe Comp

Major shareholders of institutional shareholders

professionals in different
Audit Committee, Nomination Cdrmptbesatninternal meetings to strengthen corporate

INVESTMETN LIMITED

Name of institutional _ o Holding
Major shareholders of institutional shareholders ,
shareholder ratio
Huang Xin Investment Co., Ltd. 44.08%
Hsiao, ChengHao 20.40%
Li, Yu-Chi 9.96%
Yu Xin Investment Co., Ltd. 8.18%
WANIN INTERNATIONAL | FANTASY TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. 5.55%
CO., LTD. JOYDEVELOPCY.LTD. 2.43%
Pu Yi Enterprise Co., Ltd. 1.52%
Xun Yeh Investment Co., Ltd. 0.88%
Te Kao Investment Co., Ltd. 0.82%
Cheng Yuo Investment Co., Ltd. 0.75%
CLOUD COPIOUS :
Tang, JunJie 100%

fields

to

be

independe

Major shareholders of major corporate shareholders The information of other corporate investors is not published and thus not disclosed.

1. Disclosure of the expertise of directors and independehicelependent directors
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Disclosure of the expertise of directors and independence of independent directors

Expertise and Experience

Fulfilment of Independence (Note)

) ) Number of
Industry Experience Professional Competence public
. @) - companies
Position Name % L= @ | =la _ 7} holding
= S =1 .
S § = %1 2 % gg w3 % § %1 CED =z 4 | 5|6 |7 |8|9]|10|11)|12 independent
= (@] — . .
332 |23 |5 Eakcele |2 |2 & |5 directorship
o822 |3 |2 |2 RBE8¢S|3 |2 |%|>|& |
Q = 3 S | = |3 |» 8 2 concurrently
g RS S | ® “3|38 2 g
= < a ®
D >
Chairman |Liu, Po-Yuan 0 o 0 0 0 0|06 |0 0| 606|090 0
Hsiao,
ChengHao,
Director |Representative| 0 0 0| O 0 0 0| 06|06 |06 |0 |60 0
of Wanin
International
Director |Lin, HsienMing 0 0 | O 0 0 | O 0| 6|06|0|0|06|06|06]|0 2
Chen,
ShihYing,
_ Representative . o o o o o . « - « - -
Director 0 0 o] 0 0| 0|O0|O0O|O0O|O0C|O0]|O 2
of Cloud
Copious
Investment Ltd.
Independer] . o N N . . o o N o o o o o o
. Lin, RuetYi o] o] 0 0 0 0 o] o] 0 0 o] o] (o] 1
Director
Independer . . N N N . o o o o o o . o o o
.p Sheng, Bacbi o] o] o] o] o] o] 0|0 |0O0|O0O|O0O|O0|O0|O0O0]|O 1
Director
Independer . . . - N - o o . y . . . . .
.p Chen, KuarPai 0 o] 0 o] 0 0| O0|O0O|O0|]O0|]O0]|O 0| O 1
Director
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Notes:

(1) Not an employee of the Company or any of its affiliates.

(2) Not a director or supervisor of the Company or any of its affiliates (The same does not apply, however, to independergetitgetny the Company and its parent company or subsidiary or a subsidiary that
shares the same parent company according todherAhe local laws and regulations.)

(3) Not a natural person shareholder that holds by himself/herself or by his/her spouse or minor child in someone else's themd #af all circulating shares of the Company or is on the Top 10 shareholding list

(4) Not the spouse, a relative within the second degree of kinship, or a direct blood relative within the third degree of Kiesimanagers listed under (1) or those listed under (2) and (3).

(5) Not a director, supervisor, or employee of an instinal shareholder directly holding at least 5% of the circulating shares of the Company or that ranks Top 5 in shaatibalditigat assigns a representative to
serve as director or supervisor of the Company according to Paragraph 1 or 2 oRArtitlae Company act (The same does not apply, however, to independent directors set up by the Company and its parent
company or subsidiary or a subsidiary that shares the same parent company according to the Act or the local laws@rsl)regulati

(6) Not a director, supervisor, or employee of another company with the number of directors in the Company or shares em¢ifietcowmating for a majority that is controlled by the same person (The same does not
apply, however, to independent directorsugeby the Company or its parent company or subsidiary or a subsidiary that shares the same parent company accordiog tioethecatlaws and regulations.)

(7) Not a director, supervisor, or employee of another company or institution whose chajemaral manager, or someone assigned with similar responsibilities is the same person or the spouse of that of the Company
(The same does not apply, however, to independent directors set up by the Company and its parent company or suhdidi@grgrtiaas shares the same parent company according to the Act or the local laws
and regulations.)

(8) Not a director, supervisor, or manager, or shareholder holding at least 5% of shares of a specific company or institufiicenttially or commercigl related to the Company (The same does not apply, however,
if the said specific company or institution holds at least 20% yet less than 50% of the circulating shares of the Cortpperepaddent directors set up by the Company and its parent coormarsidiary or a
subsidiary that shares the same parent company according to the Act or the local laws and regulations.)

(9) Not a professional providing services or consultations on business, legal affairs, financial affairs, and accountiogngaityeo€its associated enterprise such as auditing that have brought about rewards
accumulatively yet to exceed NTD 500 thousand, or the owner, partner, director, supervisor, manager, and his/her spleugepfiatorship or collaborative companyrtitution. This, however, does not
apply to the Compensation and Remuneration Committee, the Public Acquisition Review Committee, or the Special MergesisiiodsA€gmmittee fulfilling its duties in accordance with the Securities
Transaction Act othe Business Mergers and Acquisitions Act, among others.

(10) Not the spouse or a relative within the second degree of kinship to any other director of the Company.

(11) None of the conditions indicated under Atrticle 30 of the Company Act.

(12) Not a govenment agency, corporation, or its representative set forth in Article 27 of the Company Act.
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2. Board Diversity and Independence
(1) Board diversity

The current Board has seven directors, including three independent directors.

0 The Comp an ythbh diversifeaidngpdlidy absut the composition of the Board of Directors in its
fiCorporate Governance Best Practice Principlesecruit outstanding entrepreneurs and professionals with
abundant experience in finance and operation.

T h e Co megtablished theanemination committee to establish the selection criteria and review process
of directors and managers.
Al l members of the Board have background and expert
industrial knowledge, leadership adélcisionmaking capability, which can give professional advice to the
Company.
0O The basic composition of the Board of Directors ar
the target rate of 100%

a. The number of directors concurrendlgrving as employees is less than two.
b. Independent directors have served less than three terms.

c.All directors are ROC nationals.

d. The ages of directorangeamong all age groups.

e. All directors have experience in at least one industry and grofed abilities in three fields
for at least ten years.

(@4

O«
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Basic Composition
Seniority as an
. Also an Age independent directo
Position  |[Name . : employe
NationalityGende of the Fewer 3.9 |Overd
41-50|51-60|61-70|than 3
Company years| years
years
Charman |Liu, Po-Yuan 0 0
Hsiao, ChengHao,
Director  |Representative of Wanin o]
International
Director |Lin, HsienMing 0
Chen, Shihying,
Director  |Representative of Cloud Republic Male 0
Copious Investment Ltd. of China
Indepenent i, reivi 5 5
Director
In_dependersheng, Baebi 0 0
Director
In.dependerchen’ KuarPai 0 0
Director
(2) Board Independence
0 The current Board have seven director syt40bonfal udi
directors.
0 None of the conditions as -39fthe Seeulities amd Exchanged\ct s p h s

found on the current Board, and no director is the spouse or kindred of the second tier.

26

ng

3

q



(1)

President, Vice Presidertssistant Vice President, and Heads of Various Departments and Branches:

April 22,2023  Unit: share
Shares Managers who arg
held by Shares held in the_ spouse or a
Shares held spouse . relative within the
.~ | someone else's nar|
and minol second degree of
- child(ren) kinship
= Elected
Position| S Name |Gendel (Inaugurate 2 Z 2 2 Main experience/education |Current positions at other compan Remarks
2 d) Date = 3 = ?’é - 5
< Numberoff =2 | @ iz 2| Numberof <2 2 g | 8
S XL Sa @, g
shares | =2 | o = &| shares | <= = 3 S
(.g % (.g (5_2‘ = @ (ﬁ_
AR 2 °
| o ©
Executive Manager of FULLJIHN
Chief Machinery Refer to
Executivg R.O.C|Liu, Po-Yuan| Male |1995.04.0117,491,308 9.97 | O 0 |13,600,000 7.75 Department of Mechanical Refer to Note 1 for details None Note 3
Officer Engineering, Hwa Hsia Universit for details
of Technology
Underwriting Department of Yuan
Chief su Securities
Financial R.O.C, Hsi ' Male |2002.05.13 880,533 | 0.50 | 0 | O 0 0 Masterds Degr eg Refer to Note 2 for details None None
. sin-Hung - L .
Officer of Business Administration,
University of Houston
Assistant Specialist on Data
Chief Wu Management, International
. R.O.C. ' Male |2000.05.08§ 8,777 0.01 0 0 0 0 Department of Fubon Bank None None None
Auditor ChangHung )
Graduate Schoool of Accounting
Eastern MichigatJniversity
Ocer:gm Chien Head of Mobile Development
peralinfe o.c. . ' Male |2015.01.01 95,937 0.05 |781| O 0 0 Division of Gamania None None None
Officer in Chih-Hao . .
Taiwan EMBA, Royal Roads University

Note 1: Chairman of Gamania Digital Erteenment Co., Ltd., Chairman of Gamania Digital Entertainment (HK) Co., Ltd., Chairman of Gamania Digital Entertainnjieg} (Bej Ltd., Chairman (corporate

representative) of Foundation Digital Entertainment Co., Ltd., Director (corporate repiigegofafaiwan Esports League Co., Ltd., Chairman (corporate representative) of Digicentre Company Limited,

Chairman (corporate representative) of JollyBuy Digital Tech. Co., Ltd., Chairman (corporate representative) of Two.Tigelrs Clmairman of Geh Point (Japan) Co., Ltd., Director of Gash Point (Hong
Kong) Company Limited, Chairman of Gash Point (Korea) Co., Ltd., Chairman (corporate representative) of Indiland Chailrtéhn Ccorporate representative) of Ants' Power Co., Ltd., Directqofete

representative) of R@One Commercial Production Co., Ltd., Chairman (corporate representative) of Coture New Media Co., Ltd., Chairman of Boyenzte@ent Company Limited, Chairman of Gamania
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Holdings Ltd., Chairman (corporate representatdféamania International Holdings Ltd., Chairman (corporate representative) of Gamania China Holdings Ltd., ChairmanaS@entéidings Ltd.,
Chairman (corporate representative) of Gash Point Co., Ltd., Chairman (corporate representative) ofAS@mawnéstment Co., Ltd., Chairman of Gamania Cheer Up Foundation, Chairman (corporate
representative) of Conetter Comarketing Co., Ltd., Chairman (corporate representative) of Webackers Co., Ltd., ChaanwaBhng Investment Co., Ltd., DirectbHaPod Digital Technology Co., Ltd,
Chairman (corporate representative) of Jollywiz Digital Technology Co., Ltd., Director of Achieve Made International {{@¢ipr@f Gungho Gamania Co., Limited, Chairman (corporate representative) of
Beango Co., Ltd Chairman (corporate representative) of Circo, Inc., Director (corporate representative) of the China Post, DirecdvafeidCo., Ltd., Director of Digicentre (HK) Company Limited,
Director (representative of corporate investor) of Union Spleldidagement Co., Ltd., Supervisor (corporate representative) of Watching I.P. Holding Inc. Supervisor of Polysh Co.ebidorSup
(representative of corporate investor) of Newbloom Venture Co., Ltd., Chairman (representative of corporate invésitgripa@ital Corporation Ltd., Chairman (representative of corporate investor) of
Nownews Network Co., Ltd., Director (representative of corporate investor) of Beishi Technology Co., Ltd., Director {e¢fmesérorporate investor) of Union Splentlidnagement Co., Ltd., and Director
(representative of corporate investor) of Pili International Multimedia Inc.

Note 2: Director of Gamania Digital Entertainment (HK) Co., Ltd., Supervisor of Gamania Digital Entertainment (Beijigy).CDirector of Achieve Made International (BVI), Director (corporate representative) of
Digicentre Co., Ltd., Supervisor of Jollybuy Digital Technology Co., Ltd., Chairman of Gamania Cheer Up Foundation,dbilegtapbee Entertainment Company Limited, Chairman (catpor
representative) of Two Tigers Co., Ltd., Chairman of Gash Point (Japan) Co., Ltd., Director of Gash Point (Hong Kong) Gomitpdn@hairman of Gash Point (Korea) Co., Ltd., Director (corporate
representative) of JSDWAY Digital Technology Co., Lt8upervisor of Webackers Co., Ltd., Supervisor of Chuangmeng Marke Co., Ltd., Supervisor of Coture New Media Co., Ltdn Cbgionate
representative) of Gamania Branch Mobile Payment Co., Ltd., Supervisor of onetter Comarketing Co., Ltd., Rirpotratéaepresentative) of Jollywiz Digital Technology Co., Ltd., Director (representative
of corporate investor) of Nownews Network Co., Ltd., Director (representative of corporate investor) of Gungho Gamainiéeeh Director (representative of garrate investor) of Hyperg Smart Security
Technology Pte. Ltd., Supervisor of | Media Technology Co., Ltd., and Supervisor of Ciirco Inc.
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(11 If the chairman and president or an equivalent role (higlaeging officer) are the same person, the
spouse beach other, or relatives of the first degree of kinship, state the reason, rationality, necessity and
countermeasures as below:

Gamania is operated in a rapidly changing industry. With a macroscopic view, vision, and agility, Chairperson Liu,
PoYuansee t hrough the industrydos future and takes up the p
and decisiormaking in order to maximize value and benefit shareholders.

Our specific measures for strengthening corporate governance ar@as:foll

1. The Company has set up functional committees for which independent directors and members that are the best of
their kind in the industry are selected to reinforce the function of the Board of Directors.

2. The independent directors of the Compaaketpart in the Compensation and Remuneration Committee, the
Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and important internal meetings for reinforced corporate
governance.

3. The Company plans at least 2 continuing education courses for the membeBoafdtef Directors each year
to reinforce the function of the Board of Directors.

4. In 2019, the Board approved the establishment of the ESG Committee and voluntarily prepared the Corporate
Social Responsibility Report to strengthen corporate governance.

5. Only the Chairman and the President are the same person in the Company. No other directors are also employees
of the Company.
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Remuneration paid to Directors, Supervisors, President and Vice President in the Past Year:

(1)

Remuneration for generahd independent directors

Unit: NTD thousand: 1,000 shares

Remuneration for directors . Related remuneration to those who are also employ
Ratio of the Ratio of th g0
sumof A, B,| Salary, atio otthe sum & o
Retirement| Remunerati( Operational C, D, and bonus, and| Retirement|Remuneration for employe ofA, B, C,D,E, 23
Reward (A) | and pensio n for expenditurel aftertax net | special |and pensio (G) FG andaf_teg—tax @9
(B) directors (C (D) profit (%) | expenditre (F) (Note 1) net profit % 5 & g
(E) BgZ
~2 = ~2 ~2 ~2 _2 = Al NEEE:
Position Name ®9 ® 3 ®9 ®9 g ® g 28 companies =g 8
4 =23 |4 |=3| 4 |=23| 4 |=3 = =3 - |=3 | 4 | =3 |The Compan| included in — 50 % 20
> |35 |2 |25 2 |25 =2 |25 =3 25 > |35 | 2 |25 ] i = w=3|35>
) gm ) %QJ ) %QJ ) %QJ ) %QJ ) %QJ o) %QJ the financial ) @35 mg_—_‘h
o |a2|o|a2|olaz|o|a2| o |a2|0o |az|o a2 statement | O |28 (258
=] @ D o o D ] @ D ] @ D ] Qo D o o D o @ D o 5 = w0,
S |23 |g2 3 |22 |3 |42 3 |ag2|3 |23 |42 3 123383 25
© 515 |85 |05 |85 | D |85 | D 25 | o |25 | T |85 ° 252 2
2 |22 |8 80| 8 |g2| 8 (8o 8 8o | 2 |Ba |2 |Ba |Cash|Stock Cash|Stockl & |283| =5
2 dc |2 |Bdc | 2 T | 2 oc | 2 o c 2 dc |2 |Bc 2 Qo D 0
3o 35 3a 35 35 358 3 o | value|value| value| value =c| og
22| |23 22 22 22 28 22 5| 98
= = - = = = S = o| o
Chairman |Liu, Po-Yuan 0 0 0 0 [10,28010,280 50 | 50 | 0.81| 0.81 |8,467|8,467| O 0 |118354 O 0 0 | 1072| 10.72| ©
Wanin Internationa|
Director  |Representative: 0 0 0 0 |5,1405,140| 20 | 20 [ 0.40| 040 | O 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.40 | 0.40 0
Hsiao, ChengHao
Director  |Lin, HsienMing 0 0 0 0 |5,1405,140| 30 | 30 [ 0.40| 040 | O 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.40 | 0.40 0
CLOUD COPIOUS
INVESTMETN
Director [LIMITED 0 0 0 0 15,140 5,140 50 50 | 041| 041 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.41 0.41 0
Representative:
Chen, ShikYing
Independent] .
Dir%ctor Sheng, Babi 1,800( 1,800 O 0 12,300 2,300| 50 50 | 0.32| 0.32 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.32 0.32 0
Independent |, . e
DirF:ctor Lin, RuetYi 1,800( 1,800, 0 0 1(2,3002,300] 50 | 50 [ 0.32| 032 | O 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.32 | 0.32 0
Independent] .
Dir?actor Chen, KuarPai 1,800( 1,800 O 0 12,300 2,300| 50 50 | 0.32| 0.32 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.32 0.32 0
Note 1: The remuneration to employees is stmate.
Note22The Companyds policy, system, standards and str uct umeébasedon the responsibdites; rsksrtiené¢ doranmtmento

1. The Company's Articles of Incorporation set forth thatremuneration to directors shall not exceed 2% of annual profits.
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22Pursant to the Company6s Procedures for Distributi on ptedffor €moumgpaton ® ditedtoosnwheeem diffeferg mu ne r a
weighting base on his/her contribution to the Company. The remuneration to independent directors is authorized to the Boandsdbbaetdrmination where the independent

directords participation in the Coangddomsstsandnterealirsdusirystandards wikbe vakeh inteacapdnt. t hei r contri but
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Remuneration bracket table

Director's Name

Bracket by which remuneration is paid to individu
directors of the Company

Sum of the first 4 types of rewards (A+B+C+

Sum of the fist 7 types of rewards
(A+B+C+D+E+F+G)

The Company

All companies reported in
the financial statement (I

The Company

All companies reported in th
financial statement (J)

Below $1,000,000.00

$1,000,000.00 (inclusive) ~ $2,000,000.00 (exclus

$2,000,000.00 (inclusive) ~ $3,500,000.00 (exclus

$3,500,000.00 (inclusive) ~ $5,000,000.00 (exclus

Sheng, Bagbi, Lin, RuetYi,
Chen, KuarPai

Sheng, Bagbi, Lin, RuetYi,
Chen, KuarPai

Sheng, Bagbi, Lin, RuetYi,
Chen, KuarPai

Sheng, Basi, Lin, RuetYi,
Chen, KuarPai

$5,000,000.00 (inclusive) ~ $10,000,000.00
(exclusive)

Representative of Wanin
International: Hsiao,
ChengHao

Lin, HsienMing
Representative of CLOUD
COPIOUS INVESTMETN
LIMITED.: Chen, ShihYing

Representate of Wanin
International: Hsiao,
ChengHao

Lin, HsienMing
Representative of CLOUD
COPIOUS INVESTMETN
LIMITED.: Chen, ShihYing

Representative of Wanin
International: Hsiao,
ChengHao

Lin, HsienMing
Representative of CLOUD
COPIOUS INVESTMETN
LIMITED.: Chen, ShikYing

Representative of Wanin
International: Hsiao,
ChengHao

Lin, HsienMing
Representative of CLOUD
COPIOUS INVESTMETN
LIMITED.: Chen, ShikYing

$10,000,000.00 (inclusive) ~ $15,000,000.00

) Liu, Po-Yuan Liu, Po-Yuan - -
(exclusive)
$15,000,000.0 (inclusive) ~ $30,000,000.00
(exclusive) i i i i
$30,000,000.00 (inclusive) ~ $50,000,000.00
(exclusive) i i i i
$50,000,000.00 (inclusive) ~ $100,000,000.00
(exclusive) i i i i
Above $100,000,000.00 - - Liu, Po-Yuan Liu, PoYuan
Total 7 7 7 7

(I  Remuneration for supervisors: The Company has no supervisors.
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(Il Remuneration for President and Vice Presidents
Unit: NTD 1,000

Bonuses and Ratio ofthe sum 2
Pension (B) . Reward for Employees (D) of A,B,C,Dan¢ 3 C5P @)
Salary (A) Special ) 1523
(Note 1) (Note 2) aftertax earning| & @ =
Allowances (C (%) 20 3
: o8 9
— - - All companies - oo &

= = = : ; = Qg
Position Name = > 52| o § S| - 2 S 2 The Company llnclu.ded in the = 3 S 2|z 3, 3
® |[22q|® |2caq|® |B2a financial statement| 3 |3 2 5|® 3 3
QO |28 100|228 |0 |28 O 228883
S [«83|S |283|3 |2&3 S 283|335
5 2858 |5 |858 |5 |& 58 | Cash|Stock Stock | 5 23582 ¢o 5
2 €35 83 (5333|8533 value | value Cash valuf value 2 337|833
2 330 |2 |Ean|2 |33 o0 < gmmgﬂig

= 2 = 2 Il

PresideniLiu, Po-Yuan
Vice Su, 13,544| 13,544 | 108 | 108 0 0 125,318 0 125,318 0 10.86 | 10.86 | None
President Hsin-Hung

Note 1: The required amount to be set aside according to the Labor Standards Act for the Pension Fund (B).
Note 2: The emuneration to employees is an estimate.
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Remuneration bracket table

Name of General Manager and Vice General Manager

Bracket by which remuneration is paid to individua

President and Vice Presidents of the Company The Company Al companies included ithe
financial statement

Below $1,000,000.00 - -
$1,000,000.00 (inclusive) ~ $2,000,000.00 (exclusive) - -
$2,000,000.00 (inclusive) ~ $3,500,000.00 (exclusive) - -
$3,500,000.00 (inclusive) ~ $5,000,000.00 (exclusive) - -
$5,000,000.00 (inclusive) ~1$,000,000.00 (exclusive)
$10,000,000.00 (inclusive) ~ $15,000,000.00 (exclusiy Su, HsinHung Su, HsinHung
$15,000,000.00 (inclusive) ~ $30,000,000.00 (exclusiy - -
$30,000,000.00 (inclusive) ~ $50,000,000.00 (exclusiy - -
$50,000,000.00 (inakive) ~ $100,000,000.00 (exclusiv - -
Above $100,000,000.00 Liu, Po-Yuan Liu, Po-Yuan
Total 2 2
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(V)

Names of managers assigned with
di stribution: The Company expec
remuneration for 2022 dsllows

Unit: NTD 1,000

Position

Proportion of
total amount tg
net profit after

tax (%)

Name | Value in stock| Value in cash Total

President

Liu,
PoYuan

Vice

President

0 125,318 125,318 9.79
Su,

Hsin-Hung

(V)

(V1)

For TWSE/TPEXisted companies wdse individual or consolidated
financial statements of the past three years showtaftedeficits or
whose corporate governance evaluation of the last year came in the
last bracket or whose transaction method was once changed or which
were once stoppeddm trading or whose listed status has been
terminated or which had other conditions that were determined by the
corporate governance review committee as unqualified for the
evaluation in the past year up to the date the Annual Report was
printed, the remueration of the Top 5 supervisors in value shall be
disclosed separatelyone.

Compare and describe separately the analysis of ratios of the total
remuneration paid to directors, supervisors, the President and Vice
Presidents of the Company in thespavo years by the Company and
all companies in the consolidated statements to-&ftenet profit

and describe correlation among the remuneration payment policy,
standards and combination, remuneration establishment procedures,
and management efficacpérisks in the future.

1. The compensation structure for the directors and supervisors of the
Company is fixed: The ratio to the annual-ee net profit is adopted as
the remuneration.

2. The compensation structure for the President and Vice Presigentfie
Company includes fixed items (such as salary and benefits defined in the
personnel management regulations) and variable items (such as bonus,
employee remuneration (stock/cash), and employee stock option).

3. Fixed items mentioned above shallintain the mean competitive level of
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the Company in the industry in principle. For the variable items, on the other
hand, corporate profitability and personal performance are considered as a
whole. The performance is evaluated by the goal fulfillment rate,
profitability, operational efficacy, contribution, and future potential as a
whole. Related goals and weights are to be defined after the overall
economic and environmental changes, the internal operational plan, trends in
the industry, and risks in thattire are evaluated.

4. The Company has set up its Compensation and Remuneration Committee.
Related procedures for defining and reviewing the remuneration are to be
enforced according to applicable laws and regulations.

Analysis of the proportion in thetaf-tax net profit of the total amount of

rewards paid to the directors, supervisors, the president, and vice president(s) of
the company by the company and all companies listed in the consolidated
financial statement in the last two years

The Compa All companies included in
Title pay the financial statement
2021 2022 2021 2022
Reward for Presidet ), oo | 13 g 12.35% | 13.8%
and Vice President
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V. Status of Corporate Governance

() Operational Status of the Board of Directors:
In the most recentearand as of the publication date of the annual report, the board
of directors held six meetings, and the attendance of directors is as follows:

atﬁac;:g:lnce Attendance Actual
Position Name through attendance Remarks
(seated) N
frequency proxy (seated)(%)
Chairman | Liu, Po-Yuan 6 0 100
Wanin International
Director | Representative: 3 3 50
Avan Xian
Director | Simon Lin 4 2 67
CLOUD COPIOUS
INVESTMENT
Director | LIMITED 6 0 100
L None
Representative:
Alex Chen
Independent oo Baesi 4 1 67
Director
Independent| | . ‘o eiyi 6 0 100
Director
Independent -~ kuarPai 5 1 83
Director

Other details to be documented:

I. Does the operation of the Board of Directors hdyen@tters listed in Article 18 of the Securitie:
Exchange Act? [) Other than the afementioned matters, other board meeting resolutions
have been opposed or reserved by independent directors with records or written statel
place: None.

[I.  Recusal of directors upon conflicts of interest in proposals being discussed:

(D Implementin accordance with Article 15 of the Rules of Procedure for Board Meetings
Company; Directors who have a personal interest in meeting matters either with thems
their legal representatives shall explain the important content of their indrisst current
board meeting. If there is a risk of harm to the Company's interests, they shall not par
in the discussion and voting, and shall avoid voting during the discussion and not re
other directors in exercising their votinghts.

(I Recusal due to conflicting interests i1
follows:
Date of the
B(_)ard of Name Contents of the proposal Reason for the Remarks
Direc recusal
Meeting
Excused and
Junl16, Liu, , Elir:]bt:lc;nrofaer: pi Ioony ete Director and dldp;(r)tti:]ake
2022 Po-Yuan managers for 2021 Manager discussions
and voting
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lll. Information about the evaluation cycle, duration, scope and approach, and content of the e\
of Board self (or per) evaluation:

U]

(1

External evaluation

1. According to the performance evaluation method for the board of directors of the
Company, evaluated by an external professional independent institution shall be cari
at least every three years.

2.0n May 3,2022, the board of directors of the Company passed a resolution to evalue
operation of the board of directors and functional committees yithean Corporate
Governance AssociationAfter interviews with the Chairman, independent directors
(conweners of functional committees), corporate governance supervisor and audit
supervisor, the experts and scholars issued an evaluation report.

3. The matters recommended by the external evaluation agency have been evaluated |
responsible unit; there i need for adjustment except for the alreswyroved reporting
system, and other matters have been planned for improvement.

Internal evaluation

1.Th e C o mpveasyrdsdor Evaluating the Performance of the Board of Dirédiass
been approved bie board meeting. As is required, the performance evaluation for th
Board of Directors shall be completed before the end of the year, and the performan
evaluation results shall be filed before the end of the first quarter of the coming year,
submitted to the board meeting for reporting.

2The evaluation of the Boardds perfor ma
completed. It included the questionnaire ss$essment of seven directors (including th
independent directors) andtheemt nal questionnaire suryv
and Audit Office).

3. The result of performance evaluation of the Board and functional committees in 202:
AExcellenceé.

4. The results of performance evaluation will serve as a reference foerfioenpance,
remuneration and felection nomination of individual directors.

IV. Reinforced assessments of functional objectives of the Board of Directors and impleme
status of the objectives of the specific year and the most recent year:

(1

(I

()

Everyyeat he Companyds boar d me e tiRulesgof Rroresluredfc
Board Meetings to effectively build a board governance mechanism and optimize
supervision function.

The Company has established a remuneration committee responsddsibing the Board ¢
Directors in regularly evaluating and setting the salary and remuneration of directo
managers, as well as regularly reviewing the policies, systems, standards and struct
performance evaluation and salary and remuneratiairectors and managers.

The Company has set up the Audit Committee to take charge of supervising the Com
the fair presentation of financial statements, the appointment and dismissal ¢
independence and performance of certified pulticountants, effective implementation
internal control, compliance with laws and regulations, and control of existing or pof
risks.

(IV) The Company has set up the Nomination Committee to take charge of proposing &

suitable candidates fahe director or higlranking managerial openings to the Board
Directors (including those of subsidiaries) and reviewing in advance the canc
recommended by shareholders or the Board of Directors by law and submitting the
results and the refence list of candidates to the board meeting.
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(I

Implementation of Board Evaluations:
External evaluation

Scope of Evaluated Highlights of Evaluation results Remarks

evaluation period evaluation

Overall Board | August 1, 2021 | Composition, Overall review: External

of Directors to guidance, 1. The Company proactively established iS5G | evaluation unit;

and Functional| July 31, 2022 | authorization, Committe®, prepaed a sustainability report, an( Taiwan

Committees supervision, had it verified by a third party. Corporate
communication, | 2. The Company voluntarily established the Governance
self-discipline, Nomination Committee Association

internal control
and risk
management of
the Board of
Directors

3. The Chairman of the Company values the
institutionalization of corporate governance, an

the board members possess divgnsdessional

expertise.

Suggestions

Improvement Plan

1.1t is suggested that

independent directors b
able to simultaneously
receive accusation
messages through the
same channels.

This is under the
assessment of the
Company.

2.1t is suggested that the

Company establish a
clear notification system
for occasional major
events.

The Company
plans to set up a
risk management
committee and
include incident
management into
the management
items.

3.1t is suggested that the

Company leave written
records aftereparate
meetings of internal
auditors and certifying
CPAs with the Audit
Committee.

Written meeting
documents will be
retained in the
future.

4.1t is suggested to

formulate risk
management policies,
and the Board of
Directors shall supervisg
and review lhe
implementation of the
Company's overall risk

management.

The Company
plans to set up a
risk management
committee and
formulate relevant
management
plans.

Experts and
scholars:
Executive
Committee
Member and
Convener
Ho, PeiChu

Executive
Committee
Members:
Lu, RongHo
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Internal evaluation

Evaluation Evaluated Scope of Evaluation o .
. . Highlights of evaluation
cycle period evaluation method
(1) Involvement in corporate
operations
Internal (2) Th e B o ar déansking
quality

assessment of
the Board of
Directors

(3) Composition and structure 0
Board of Directors

(4) Election of directors and
continuing education for ther

(5) Internal control

(1) Mastering of the goals and
mission of the Company

(2) Awareness of the duties of a
director

Selfassessmen (3) Involvement in corporate

of the Board of operations
Directors (4) Management of internal
members relationship and
communication

(5) Director's professionalism
and continuing education

(6) Internal control

(1) Involvement in corporate
operations

Remuneration (2) Awareness of the diais of

Committee Member s func.tiqnal committeeg
Audit Committee internal (3) De0|§|onmak|ng _quallty of
o seltassessment functional committees

Nomination (4) Composition and election of
Committee members of functional
committees

(5) Internal control

Board of
Directors

January 1
through
December 31,
2022

Every year

()  Operational status of the Audit Committee and participation of
supervisors in theperations of the Board of Directors

1. Status of operations of the Audit Committee

In the most recent year and up to the date of annual report publication, the
Audit Committee held five meetings, and the attendance of independent
directors is as follows:

Actual attendance Actual seated
Position Name (seated) Remarks
rate (%)
frequency
Convener Lin, RuetYi 4 80
Member Sheng, Ba&si 4 80 None
Member Chen, KuarPai 5 100
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Other details to be documented:

Objections, reservationsy material recommefations expressed by independent directors

the Audit Committee: None.

Conditions as stated in Article Blof the Securities and Exchange Act: None.

Other than the abovementioned, matters unapproved by the Audit Committee but passe

over twothirds of all directors: None.

The Audit Committee held committee meetings on March 10, 2022, May 3, 2022, Augus

2022, November 3, 2022 and March 9, 2023.

The subjects of discussion were as follows:

Proposal: Approval of issuance of the Statenoémiternal Control System based on the
selfevaluation results of the internal control system during January 1 and Dec
31, 2021.

Proposal: Approval of the Companyds fin

Proposal: Approval of earnings distribution for 2021.

Propaal: Highlights of the annual tasks of Audit Committee for 2022.

Proposal: Approval of the independence assessment of CPAs and their accounting firm

2022.
Proposal: Approval of the Companydés con
Proposal: Approvab f t he amendment to the Company
Proposal: Approval of the amendment to
Implementation of Internal Audit.
Proposal: Approval of the Companyo6s cas
Proposal: Approveof the purchase of the equity of Gamania Digital Entertainment (HK) (
Ltd..

Proposal: Approval of capital reduction in cash and refund of share capital of Gamania
Holdings Ltd., Gamania International Holdings Ltd. and Gamania China Holdin
Ltd.,theCompany 6s subsidiari es.

Proposal: Approval of the Companyds con

Proposal: Approval of the Companyés con

Proposal: Approval ahe Company's renewal of game agency.

Proposal: Appoval of the provision of endorsements and guarantees for subsidiaries.

Proposal: Approval of the Plan to | mpro
Production

Proposal: Approval of the internal control system during January 1 and Decembe23]1,
and the issuance of the Statement of Internal Control System based on the
self-evaluation results.

Proposal: Amendments t o tiPrecedaresdonAtquisition or t
Disposal of Assets.

Proposal: Approval of the amendmenttotte@p any 6 s i nt er nal Co

Approval of the amendment to Companyod R

Proposal: Approval of the Companyés 202

Proposal: Approval of the Chemp.anyébds 202

Proposal: Approval of change of the Con
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Proposal: Approval of the independence assessment of certifying CPAs and their accou
firm for 2023.

Proposal: Approval ofthepri@p pr oved of t he Companagndthe
provision of norcertification services to the Company and its subsidiaries by th
CPAs®6 accounting firm and the firmb

Proposal: Approval of the key tasks of the Audit Committee for 2023.

OAll proposals mentionedoave were approved by the Committee.

V. For the recusal on conflicts of interest among independent directors, state the names of
independent directors, details of the proposals, reasons for the recusal, and status of
participation in the voting procegsone.

VI. Communication between independent directors and the chief internal auditor:

() Each month the internal audit unit submits an audit report to independent directors
review, and communicates and discusses with them immediately on atigmaésut
the report. Each year the internal audit unit also holds the corporate governance m
to communicate with independent directors and CPAs. After the Audit Committee is
established, the audit unit reports to independent directors at theGaundiittee
meeting based on the needs of specific proposals.
(I Independent directors and the internal audit unit usually communicate with each ar
by email, phone, or fae®-face discussion as necessary.
2. The communication between independengciors and the chief internal
auditor is good; a summary is as follows:
Opinions
Date of Nature of L from
. . Focus of the communication .
meeting meeting independent
directors
Mar 10, Corporate | 1. The chief internal auditor reported and None
2022 governance communicated the performance of internal
meeting audits and internal control operation in 2021
2. The chief internal auditor reported and
communicated the internal audits planned fc
2022.
Mar 10, Audit 1. Reporting of audit operations carriedt. None
2022 Committee | 2. Report on the Statement of Internal Control
System for 2021.
3. Amendment t o iintemal Contrg
Systeno andiiRules for Implementation of
Internal Audit
May 3, Audit 1. Reporting of audit operations carried out. None
2022 Committee
Aug 4, 2022 Audit 1. Reporting of audit operations carried out. None
Committee
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Opinions

Date of Nature of . from
, . Focus of the communication .
meeting meeting independent
directors
Nov 3, 2022 Audit 1. Reporting of audit operations carried out. None
Committee | 2. Reporting of the Audit Plan for 2023.
3. Amendment to the Con
Systemdb ARul es for |
Internal Audit.
Mar 9, 2023| Corporate | 1. The chief internal auditor reported and None
governance communicated the performance of internal
meeting audits and internal control operation in 2022
2. The chief internal auditaeported and
communicated the internal audits planned fc
2023.
Mar 9, 2023 Audit 1. Reporting of audit operations carried out. None
Committee | 2. Report on the Statement of Internal Control

System for 2022.
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3. Communication between independenediors and CPAs:

(1)

(2)
3)

Each quarter, CPAs communicate the audit or review results of the
financial statements of the quarter and the requirements of the relevant
laws and regulations at the Audit Committee meeting.

Independent directors and CPAs usuatijnmunicate with each

another by email, phone, or fateeface discussion as necessary.
Communication between independent directors and CPAs is good; a
summary is as follows:

Opinions
Date of Nature of — from
. . Focus of the communication .
meeting meeting independen
t directors
Mar 10, Corporate | 1. CPAs fully communicated the audit results and |  None
2022 governance audit items of the 2021 financial statements.
meeting 2. CPAs discussed and communicated on the
independence and regulatory updates.
Mar 10, Audit 1. Gave a presentation on the status for None
2022 Committee Ai ndependently prepar
2. CPAs explained the 2021 consolidated financial
statements.
3. Discusssion and communication on the key tash
of the Audit Committee for 2022.
4. Discussion on the independence of the certifyin
CPAs and their accounting firm for 2022.
May 3, Audit 1. Gave a presentation on the status for None
2022 Committee Ai ndependently prepar
2. The CPAs expl ai ne ddated {
financial report for Q1 2022.
Aug 4, Audit 1. Gave a presentation on the status for None
2022 Committee Ai ndependently prepar
2. The CPAs explained t hi
financial report for Q2 2022.
Nov 3, Audit 1. The CPAs explained th¢ None
2022 Committee financial report for Q3 2022.
2. The plan to i mprove t
financial statement preparation.
Mar 9, Corporate | 1. CPAs fully communicated &haudit results and kel None
2023 governance audit items of the 2022 financial statements.
meeting 2. In response to the neassurance service provisiol
in the International Code of Ethics for
Accountants.
Mar 9, Audit 1. Gave a presentation on the status for None
2023 Committee Aidependentl|l y preparin
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Date of
meeting

Nature of
meeting

Focus of the communication

Opinions
from
independen
t directors

. Tracking of the Company's quarterly unqualified
. CPAs®6 explanation of t
.Proposal: Change of t

. Discusson and communication on the key tasks

. Discussion on the assessment of independence

. Proposal: Approval of the pri@pproved of the

financial report progress.
financial statements.

CPAs.

the Audit Committee for 2023.

the certifying CPAs and their accounting firm for
2023.

Companyobs c eor2023 andtheg |
provision of norcertification services to the
Company and its subsi
accounting firm and t
alliance firms.

4. Supervisorsoé participation

SuUpe&Visors.
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(V)

Principles for TWSE/TPEX Listed Companies and the Reasons:

Corporate Governance Implementation Status and Deviations from Corporate Governaftadiest

Operation Deviation from
Corporate Governan
BestPractice
Evaluation item ves | No Summar Principes for
y TWSE/TPEX Listed
Companies and
reasons
I. Does the company establish and disclose its
corporate governance principles in accordgn v The Canpany ha®stablished and disclosed them. No difference.
with the Corporate Governance Best Practice
Principles for TWSE/TPEX Listed Companies

[I.  Shareholding Structure and Shareholder Eqy

() Does the company establish internal Vv ()  The Company has set up the Investor Relations
operating procedures for handling Department and has someone to takegehaf
shareholder suggestions, questions, dispu addressing suggestions provided by or disputes
or lawsuits and implement tipgocedures? involving shareholders.

(1)) Does the company have a list of major Vv (I There are exclusive unit and people to take charge.
shareholders that have actual control over
Company and a list of ultimate owners of
those major shareholders?

(Il Has the company established and Vv (1) For the internal control system of the Company, the No difference
implemented risk management and firewal are theiParent/Subsidiary and Affiliate Management '
mechansms with its associated enterprises Guideline® and hefOperating Procedure for

Transactions Involving Specific Companies, Group
Businesses, and Related Padigsgovern financial an
operational activities with its affiliates afidupervision
and management of subsidiadésin place for the
sound riskcontrol mechanism and firewall with the
affiliates.

(IV)  Has the company established internal ruley V (IV) The Company has defined its Ethical Code of Cond

against insiders trading with undisclosed

to govern the behavior of related people and applicq
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Operation

Evaluation item

Deviation from
Corporate Governan
BestPractice
Princiges for

Yes| No Summary TWSE/TPEX Listed
Companies and
reasons
information? details and information have been disclosed on the
CompanyO0s website.
[l Composition and Responsibilities of the Bo ) 6The Company has establ
of Directors board composition in thBCorporate Governance
(D Did the company establish and implement| V Best Practice Principlédo recruit outstanding
diversity policy and defined management entrepreneurs in differemdustries and
goals? well-experienced professionals in finance and
(11 Does the company voluntarily establish ot V business operations. We have also established a
functional committees in addition to the nomination committee and the criteria and review
Compensation an@emuneration Committe¢ process for selecting directors and officers.
and the Audit Committee that are establish 0The current Board has
as required by laws? (including three independent directors). No
(Il Has the Company established standards a V independent directors hold their position for less t
method for evaluating the performance of three terms to ensure detached independence.
Board of Directors, and does the Company oAl I member s of t he Bo a|Nodifference.
implement the performance evaligat background and expertise in business operations
periodically and submit results of the management, ricimdustrial knowledge, leadership
performance evaluation to the Board of and decisiormaking capability, which can give
Directors, and use them for reference whil¢ professional advice to the Company.
deciding compensation and rewards for 0OBasic composition and
individual directors and nominating them fg experience and expertise of the Board: 100%.
a second term in office?? (1) Less than 2 directors are also employdeke
(IV)  Does the compamggularly evaluate the \% Company.

independence of CPAS?

(2)

3)
(4)

No independent directors hold their position {
over three terms.

All directors are ROC nationals.

Directors distribute in all age groups.
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Evaluation item

Operation

Yes

No

Summary

Deviation from
Corporate Governan
BestPractice
Princiges for
TWSE/TPEX Listed
Companies and
reasons

(5) All directors have at least 10 years of experiq
in a particular industry and exjise in at least

three fields.

Position

Name

Diversified professionalism

Making
judgment
about

Accounting
and
financial

operations| analyses

Operationall ~ Crisis
managemer| managemer|

Industrial
knowledge

Internationa
market
views

Leadership

Decision
-making

Chairman

Liu, PoYuan

<]

<]

(<]

(<]

(<]

(<]

(<]

Director

Avan Xian,
Representative
of Wanin
International

Director

Simon Lin

Director

Representative
of CLOUD
COPIOUS
INVESTMENT
LIMITED: Alex
Chen

Independent
Director

Lin, RuetYi

Independent
Director

Sheng, Bai

Independent
Director

Chen, KuarPai

6

6

¢}

¢}

¢}

¢}

6

(1) On March 7, 2019, the Board of Directors of the
Company approvethe voluntary establishment of a
functionalcommittee (Corporate Social Responsibili
Committee), which has now been renamed ESG
Committee, and oBecember 24, 2020, the Board of]
Directors approvethe voluntary establishment of a
functional committee (Nomination Committee).

(1) The Company hassablished regulations and metho
to evaluate Board performance, and evaluate its
performance on an annual basis to serve as a refer
for the remuneration and-gdection nomination of
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Operation Deviation from
Corporate Governan
BestPractice
Evaluation item ves| No Summar Princiges for
y TWSE/TPEX Listed
Companies and
reasons
individual directors.
(IV) The Company evaluates the independericeRAs
regularly and reports the results to the Audit Comm
and board meeting for resolution.
IV. For TWSE/TPEX listed companies, is there a| V The Company has set up responsible people to take cha
appropriated (combined) unit or person for corporate governanaelated affairs. The Board of Directo
corporate governance to take charge of relat al so designated in 2020ttt
matteers (including without limitation providing and Chief Financial Officer Su, Hsldung to serve as the
directors and supervisors with materials head of corporate governance and to take charge of cor
required for them to carry out their tasks, taki governancegelated affairs, including organizing meetings No difference
care of board meetings and shareholders' the Board of Directors, the Audit Committee, and the '
meetings as required by law, registering the Compensation and Remeration Committee, and
company and changing registeretbmrmation, sharehol dersd meetings, h
preparing minutes of board meetings and receive continuing education, providing materials require
shareholders' meetings)? for directors to perform their duties, and helping the dire
comply with laws and regulations, etc.
V. Has the company established a communicat| V The Company has set up related departments and
channel and build a designated section on it communication channels in honor of its corporate social
website for stakeholders (including but witho responsibilities.
limitation of shareholders, employees,
customers, and suppliers, etc.), and set a No difference.
stakeholder area on commpawebsite, and
properly respond to corporate social
responsibility issues that stakeholders are
concerned about?
VI. Does the company designate a professional | V The Company has designated KGI Securities Co., Ltd. g

shareholder service agency to deal with affait

stock affairs agent.

No difference.
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Operation Deviation from
Corporate Governan
BestPractice
Evaluation item ves| No Summar Princiges for
y TWSE/TPEX Listed
Companies and
reasons
relating to shareholders meetings?
VII.  Disclosure of Informatin
() Has the company established a corporate | V The Company has set up its corporate website antbsksc
website to disclose information regarding i the information as required.
financial, business and corporate governar
status?
(1 Does the company adopt other ways of Vv We have set up a corporate website in Chinese and Eng
disclosing information (e.g., maintaining ar versions, designated responsible personnel gather and
English website, appdiimg responsible disclose information about the Company, enforced the
people to handle information collection anc spokesperson system, and posted investor conferertbe (¢
disclosure, creating a spokesperson systel corporate website. No difference.
webcasting investor conference on compa
website)?
(1)  Does the Company announce and declare V |We have published and reported the annual financial
Annual Financial Statement within 2 month statements and the financial statements for
after afiscal year ends and announce and Q1, Q2, and Q3, and the status of monthly operations b
declare the financial statements for the firs required deadline.
second, and third quarters and operational
status of each month than the required
deadline?
VIII. Is there any other important infoation \% Al | of t he C o m@a rcovéred bye nap

available to facilitate a better understanding ¢

the companyds corpor
status (including without limitation employee

rights, employee wellness, investor relations,

supplier relations, rights of stakeholders,
continuing edaation of directors and

Insurance, National Health Insurance, and Group Insu
and are entitled to benefits under each of the prog
Meanwhile, there are the Employee Welfare Committee
the Pension Fund Supervisory Committee in place t
aside he employee welfare fund and the pension fun

required by law, to hold employee communication mee

No difference.
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Evaluation item

Operation

Yes

No

Summary

Deviation from
Corporate Governan
BestPractice
Princiges for
TWSE/TPEX Listed
Companies and
reasons

supervisors, the implementation of risk
management policies and risk evaluation
standards, the implementation of customer
relations policies, and purchasing insurance
directors and supervisors)?

periodically, to set up

children, and to prepare details about distribution of bon

employees so that the Compacan share its profits with

employees. People with disabilities are hired and the c

foundation is established to encourage young people to

hard to realize their dreams in honor of corporate S

responsibilities. Meanwhile, industrial vikshops organize

by the competent authority are proactively participate
and investor conferences are held from time to time.

Company also has the Investor Relations Departmen

website t o provi de rel a

reference.

Opeation at the Board of Directors:

1. Directors of the Company unfailingly recused
themselves from proposals with which they have a
conflict of interest.

2. The Company has established its Rules of Procedur
Sharehol dersdé6 Meet i thgms :

3. The Company has established its Rules of Procedur
Board of Directorso Meet
them.

4. The Company has purchased liability insurance for
directors, and the shargq
inclusion of liabilityinsurance for supervisors in the
Articles of Association and reporting to the Board aft
the insurance renewal or change.

5. Except for absences due to unexpected or important
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Evaluation item

Operation

Yes

No

Summary

Deviation from
Corporate Governan
BestPractice
Princiges for
TWSE/TPEX Listed
Companies and
reasons

work, all directors participated in the supervision and
discussion of the refed proposals throughout each bg

meeting.
Continuing studies for directors in 2022:
Position Name Date Organizer Course title ) Hours
involved
Global Risk
. . | Securities and Awareness
Chairman | Liu, PoYuan |2022.11.03 Futures Institute (Opportunmgs and 3
Challenges in the
Next Decade)
2030/2050 Green 3
. Industrial Revolution
i Lin Taiwan Corporat Public Relations
Director HsienMing 2022.09.3¢  Governance Princi
Association |Principles for 3
Handling Corporate
Legal Events
Wanin Global Risk
. International | Securities and Awareness
Director Represntative: 2022.11.09 Futures Institute (Opportumtu_es and 3
Avan Xian Challenges in the
Next Decade)
Accounting Practical Measures f
. Research and Improving Three
(I?feCprLeSLeJrgatlve 2022.08.09 Development Lines of Defense of 8
Foundation Internal Control
Director COPIOUS Global Risk
:_'\I"?A/E.SETDMENT s iti d Awareness
| Securities an -
Alex Chen 2022.11.03 Futures Institute (Opportumtu_es and 3
Challenges in the
Next Decade)
Discussion on Key
Issues of Integrating 3
M&A in the Process
Independen] . N Taiwan Corporat{of Enterprise M&A
- Lin, RuetYi 2022.11.14 Governance [How Do Directors an|
Director o - )
Association [Supervisors Supervig
Companies for Bette 3
Risk Management a
Internal Control
Taiwan Corporatq .
ndependent shengBaosi 2022.10.04  Governance [RoK Managementarl - 5
Association
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Evaluation item

Operation

Deviation from
Corporate Governan
BestPractice
Princiges for

Yes | No Summar .
y TWSE/TPEXx Listed
Companies and
reasons
Global Risk
Securities and Awarenessﬂ
2022.11.09 (Opportunities and

Futures Institute

Challenges in the
Next Decade)

Independen
Director

Chen, KuarPai

2022.06.24

Taiwan Corporat
Governance
Association

Initial Personal
Response to CFC:
Understanding
Yourself and Others

2022.09.24

Taiwan Securitieg
Association

Enterprise
Sustainability and
ESG Development
Trends

2022.11.03

Securities and
Futuresinstitute

Global Risk
Awareness
(Opportunities and
Challenges in the

Next Decade)

IX. Status of improvement on the Corporate Governance Evaluation results in the most recent year: Through continual immnpoeatent ¢
governance, th€ompany is rated top-B0% among TPEksted companies in the 8th Corporate Governance Evaluation.
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(V)  Composition, Responsibilities, and Operations of the Remuneration
Committee, If Available

The Company has established the Remuneration Committeecember 12,
2011.AcAcording to the Committeebds artic
have three members, including one convener, appointed by resolution of the
Board. The duties of the committee inclu@ieEstablish and periodically

review the polig, system, standard, and structure of the performance

evaluation, salary, and reward of directors and offi&rBeriodically evaluate

and determine the salary and reward of directors and officers and submit the
recommendations to the Board for discussio

1. Expertise and experience of members of the Remuneration Committee
March 31, 2023

Quialification Numper of qthe
public offering
companiewith

Expertise and Fulfillment of memt?lirifh'p n
and
Remuneration
Name Committee
Independen{ Lin, |All members are independent director 1
Director RuetYi |For their qualifications, experience an
Independen{ Sheng, |independence status, please refer to 1
Director Bao-Si [fiDisclosure of Information on the
Independen{ Chen, |Expetise of Directors and Independen 0
Director | KuanPai |of Independent Directoof the annual
report.

2. Operational Status of the Compensation and Remuneration Committee
(1) The Remuneration@nmittee has 3 members in total.
(2) Term of current members: From June 17, 2020 to June028, b
the most recent year and up to the date of annual report publication,
the Committee held 3 meetings, and the member attendance and
proposals discussed as follows:
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) Ratio of
o Attendance in Attendance ,
Position Name attendance in | Remarks
person through proxy
person (%)
Sheng,
Convener i 2 1 67 None
Bao-Si
Lin,
Member o 3 0 100 None
RuetYi
Chen,
Member . 3 0 100 None
KuanPai

Other details to be documented:
The Remuneration Committee held meetings on March 10, 2022, June 16, 2022 an
March 9, 2023 and discussed the following proposals:

(1)

(2)

0 All proposals mentioned above were approved by the Committee.

Advice of the Remuneration Committee rejected or revised by the Board: None.
Resolutions of the Remuneration Committee with objections or reservations by mer
with records or stateents in writing: None.

Approval of the distribution of remuneration for directors and employees for 20
and 2022.

Approval of the dethis of di stri bution of remurt
remuneration for managers for 2021.
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(VI) Composition, duties, and operations of the Nomination Committee

We established the Nomination Committee on DecemberQ24),. Zccording

to the Committeeds articles of organ
four membersincluding the chairperson and three directors, including one
convener and over one half of members being independent directors. The duties
of the committee includet. Establish and periodically review the number and
gualifications of directors and seniofficers.2. Recommend eligible
candidates for the Companyés (al so i
officers, review by law the candidates recommended by shareholders or the
Board in advance, and submit the review results and the refersinae li

candidates to the Board.

1. Professional qualifications and experience of members of the Nomination

Committee
March 31, 2023
ualification
N ) _ Fulfillment of
Status Expertise and Experiencg
Independence
Name

Convener | Liu, PoYuan |All members are independent directors. For the
qualifications, experience andindependence sta

please refer téDisclosure of Information on the
Member _|Sheng, Baci Expertise of Directors and Independence of
Chen,

Member _ Independent Directoéof the annual report.
Kuan-Pali

Member Lin, RuetYi

2. Status of operations of the Nomination Committee
(1) The Nomination Committee has four members in total.
(2) Term of current members: From December 24, 2020 to Jun®28, 2
In the most recent year and tapthe date of annual report
publication, the Committee held two committee meetings, and the
member attendance and proposals discussed are as follows:
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Ratio of
o Attendance Attendance ,
Position Name _ attendance in | Remarks
in person through proxy
person (%)
Convener| Liu, Po-Yuan 2 0 100 None
Member | Lin, RuetYi 1 1 50 None
Sheng,
Member i 1 0 50 None
Bao-Si
Chen,
Member _ 2 0 100 None
Kuan-Pai

Other details to be documented:

The Nomination Committee held committee meetings on March 10, 2022 and Nove
3, 2022, and discussed the following proposals:

(1) Approval of thequalification review of directors and senior managers

0 All proposals mentioned above were
Advice of the Nomination Committee rejected or revised by thedBdéone.
Resolutions of the Nominatiddommittee with objections or reservations by members
with records or statements in writing: None.
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(VIl) Sustainable Development Implementation Status and Deviations from Sustainable Development
BestPractice RAnciples for TWSE/TPEX Listed Companies and the Reasons:

Status of Implementation

Objective

Yes

No

Summary

Status and causes of
inconsistency with the
Sustainable Developmen
Best Practice Principles fg
TWSE/TPEX Listed
Companies

Has the company se&ablished &
governance framework and a fulpart)
time unit for sustainable developme
with the senior management authoriz
by the Board to handle the relat
matters? What is the status of Bog
supervision?

Governance framework for promotilsgstainable
development
To strengthen and promote CSR and sustainab
development, the Board establishediG&R
Management Committé@n March 7, 2019and
renamed it th&ESG Committe@ and establisheq
the fOffice of Sustainability Plannirign 2021.
TheAESG Committeeis chaired by the
Chairman, with the Chief Financial Officer
serving as the convener, and senior managers
assigned to coordinate and manage various ES
task groups.
Board authorization and supervision:
(1) To implement sustainable viEopment
strategies and enhance operational efficiency
on November 12, 2021 the Boapproved the
establishment of th@Office of Sustainability
Planning under thedESG Committe@to
promote and integrate all ESG task forces.
ESG Committee meeting held at least once &
quarter.
(2) ThefESG Task Teamis managed by the head

of the Group Chief F

No difference
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Objective

Status of Implementation

Yes

No

Summary

Status and causes of
inconsistency with the
Sustainable Developmen
Best Practice Principles f¢
TWSE/TPEX Listed
Companies

the Group Chief Stra
Corporate Communication Office, the Humar
Resources Office, the Foundation, anel th
Administrative Service Office to implements
the corresponding ESG tasks.

(3) The Office of Sustainability Planning reports
the status of ESG implementation to the boat
meeting at least once a year. (November 3,
2022), with irregular submission of vareu
special projects to the board meeting.

(4) The Board of Directors fully authorizes and
guides the sustainable development strategy
implementation proposed by tB8G
Committee includingfiformulating and
implementing the ESG sustainable strategy
roadnapo, fpreparing the ESG sustainable
repord, figreenhouse gas inventory and
inspectiom, finet zero carbon reduction
floptimizing the evaluation results by
institutional investor§ fpromoting social
welfare activities, etc.

Does the Comany perform risk
assessments when dealing with
environmental, social, and corporate
governanceelated issues that concern

Boundaries of risk assessment
In consideration of the financial materiality and
industrial connection, the boundaries of risk

assessment covdre Companyand the

No difference
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Status of Implementation

Status and causes of
inconsistency with the
Sustainable Developmen

Objective Yes | No Summary Best Practice Principles fq
TWSE/TPEX Listed
Companies
the Compangs operations according to subsidiaries listed in Chapter 1 of the 2022 ES(
the materiality principle, and has it Report emphasizing business locatioTaiwan
defined related risk management polici with a consolidated revenue accounting for up t
or strategies? 100% of the total.
2. Strategies and standards of risk assessment fo
related material issues
ESG task forces propose to the ESG Committe
and the board meeting the strategies and actiof
plans baed on the Compai@y sustainable
development strategies and by integrating the
industry® characteristics and international
sustainabilityissues.
lll. Environmental Issues
() Has the company developed an Vv The Company emphasizes environmental protectior No difference
appropriate environmental managemel issues. Besides establishing and implementing gree
system, given its distinctive procurement and energy management, it has comp
characteristics? the 2021 greenhouse gas emission goal and inspec
and conducts annual inventory and inspections.
(I Does the company make efforts to Vv We are in an industry that does not produce hamard{ No difference

enhance energy efficiency and use
recycled materials to reduce
environmental impacts and burdens?

waste or air pollution. However, as the construction
operation of data centers need to consume a high
volume of electricity, we have built the energy
monitoring and management system at the headqua
building. The system is composed of three

interconnected aspects: design, operation, and
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Status of Implementation

Status and causes of
inconsistency with the
Sustainable Developmen

Objective Yes | No Summary Best Practice Principles fq
TWSE/TPEX Listed
Companies
improvement and analysis of energy conservation.
(I17) Does the company assess the present] V We have assessed the Companyresent and future | No difference
future potential risks and opportunities potential risks and opportunities of climate change.
climate change and take the relevant
countermeasures?
(V) Did the company produce statistics on| V We have disclosed the GHG emissions, water No difference
the GHG emissions, water consumptio consumption, and the total weight of waste in the la
and the total weight of waste in the las two years and their management policies.
two years, and ésblish policies to
reduce GHG emissions and water
consumption or other waste managem
policies?
IV. Social Issues
() Has the company developed related Vv We have established the relevant regulations and | No difference

management policies and procedures
accordance with applicable laws and
regulations and the International Bill of
Human Rights?

organized educain and training in accordance with t
17 Sustainable Development Goals of the United
Nations and in conformity with the internationally
recognized standards including the UN Universal
Declaration of Human Rights (UDHR), UN Global
Compact (UNGC), United &tions Guiding Principles
on Business and Human Rights (UNGPs), and
International Labour Organisation (ILO).

61



Status of Implementation

Status and causes of
inconsistency with the
Sustainable Developmen

Objective Yes | No Summary Best Practice Principles fq
TWSE/TPEX Listed
Companies
(1) Did the company establish and Vv We have established the relevant employee welfare| No difference
iImplement reasonable employee welfa measures and reflect our operational performance @
measures (including remuneration, lea achievements in the employeeemuneration.
and other beneB) and appropriately
reflect its operational performance or
achievements in the employse
remuneration?
(1l1) Does the Company provide employees V 1. Besides establishing the Safe Working Rules, th¢ No difference

with a safe and healthy work
environment as well as periodic safety
and health education?

. In terms of employee health, we have ahause

. Additionally, we arrange annual health checkups

4. The Company won the Taiwan i Sport certificatio

Group performs work environment monitoring ar
holds traning on occupational safety every six
months to ensure the safety of employee workpl

fithess center and hire professional coaches to g
yoga, aerobic sport and circuit training courses
every day 6r employees to choose.

and quarterly ossite health consultation services
for employees in excess of the regulatory
requirements. Currently, we are progressively
replacing office desks with standing des$is
employees to adjust desk height according to thg
sitting postures to solve their musculoskeletal
problems in order to build a healthy and sound
workplace environment.
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Status of Implementation

Objective

Yes

No

Summary

Status and causes of
inconsistency with the
Sustainable Developmen
Best Practice Principles f¢
TWSE/TPEX Listed
Companies

mark by the Sports Administiah, MOE from
2016 to 2023.

(IV) Has the Company established an

effective training program that helps
employees develop skills over the cour
of their career?

We provide a welkquipped learning environment an
a wellplanned educatiomd training framework
covering orientation training for new employees,
professional development training, and hierarchical
training (Gamanian). Every year we organize talks g
irregular seminars (Gamania Classroom, Gamania
Content) supported withlearnng (Gamania
Resource) to implement education and training. We
also fund employees to take external training course
In 2022, a total of 248 employee training courses w¢
held, and a total of 257 classes with 16,761 hours w
organized irhouse for 5,36persons. The total annua
training expenses totaled NT$3,641,874.

No difference

(V)

Does the company handle customer
health and safety, customer privacy,
marketing and labeling issues relating
products and services in compliance w
the relevant lawand regulations and
international standards, and has it
established policies and grievance
procedures to protect the rights and
interests of consumers or customers?

1. We have established and implemented mechani
and processes relevant to our sewvicased on the
nature of business of individual products in
accordance with the legal requirements and
international standards, in order to ensure
protection for the rights and interests of consumg
or customers.

2. Our customer service center also off2dx7
services round the year. In response to different
product needs, we have also arranged various

No difference
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Status of Implementation

Status and causes of
inconsistency with the
Sustainable Developmen

Objective Yes | No Summary Best Practice Principles fq
TWSE/TPEX Listed
Companies
service channels (telephone lines, a message bq
on the official website, instant messengers, and
smart chatbot).
We designate the Internal Service Bign to promote
and implement the related affairs and have establist
the supplier management policy.
(V) Does the Company define suppl| V We designate the Internal Service Division to pron| No difference
management policies and require t and implement the related affairs and have establi
suppliers follow applicable regulations the supplier management policy.
issues such as emohmental protection
occupational safety and health, or hun
rights of workers and how are thg
implemented?
V. Did the company prepare and publish | V We have prepared our ESG reports in accordq No difference
reports such as the sustainability repor with the GRI Standardsandhave the affirmatior
in accordance with the internationally report issued by a thirgarty verification body
accepted reporting standards or We also publish reporelatedinformation on the
guidelines to disclose the compény MOPS at the same time.
nortfinancial information? Are there Report affirmation unit:
opinions from &hird-party qualification The 2022 annual report was affirmed by KPMG
unit to validate or guarantee the said Taiwan; for the verification scope and the
reports? standards followedplease visit
https://esg.gamania.conw download ESG report
for previous years.
VI. If the company has established its own Sustainable Development Best Practice Principles with reference to the Sustlm@blenDev
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https://esg.gamania.com/
https://esg.gamania.com/

Status of Implementation Status and causes of
inconsistency with the
Sustainable Developmen
Yes | No Summary Best Practice Principles fq
TWSE/TPEX Listed
Companies

Objective

Best Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEX Listed Compamikesse state the differences in the operation from its best practice prindiple
difference.

VII. Other important information that helps understand the promotion of sustainable development:

() The Company cares about industrial safety, environmeratgiion, safety, and health and has respective units to promote and e
them.

(I) The Company has created many job opportunities and was selected as origapb tH@0 Most Desired Enterprises of the New
Generation. We have established an employesfare committee, implemented a pension system, and handled various related n
The Company arranges employee training courses, employee travel and group insurance, and regular health checks with @m
harmonious labor relations.

(1) The Gmpanys Employee Welfare Committee has been proactively taking part in and calling upon employees to take part in v
charity sale and caring events for years to help related social welfare groups.

(IV) The Company established fi&amania Cheer Up kEoadatiordin April 2007 and has been caring for young people and encouraging
them to go for their dreams in addition to a variety of public interest projects enforced.
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(V1) Fulfillment of Ethical Corporate Management and Deviation from Ethical Corplatagement Best
Practice Principles for TWSE/GTSM Listed Companies and the Reasons

Operation Deviation from Ethical
Corporate Manageme
Assessed Item ves | No Summary Best Practice Principle
for TWSE/TPEX Listed
Companies and Reaso
l. Establishmenof Ethical Corporate Management
Policy and Proposal Vv () The Company has formulateghplicable No difference
(M Hasthe Company defined ethical corporate regulationsand policies on ethical corporate
management policies approved by the board management that have been approved by tf
meeting, and declared its ethical corporate board meeting. Both the Board DBirectors anc
management policies and procedures in its ruleg the management adhere to the principle of
external documentss well as the commitment of] ethical corporate management in order to
its Board of Directors and senior management t¢ maximize the shareholder equity.
implementing the management policies? Vv (I The Company has set up the exclusive unit
(I)  Has the company establish an evaluation promote ethical corporate management und
mechanism for the risk of unethical behavior, an the Board of Directors, th&hief Executive
regularlyanalyzed and evaluated businessvi@tis Officer® Officed. It is responsible for defining
within the scope of business that pose a high ris and supervising the implementation of the
unethical behavior, and established a plan to pre ethical corporate management policy and
unethical behavior accordingly whiel least cover, preventive solutions and reporting to the Bo
the preventive measures for behaviors under of Directors periodically on the implementat
paragraph 2, Article 7 of thi#thical Corpoate status. Relateregulations and information
Management Best Practice Principles for have been disclosed on the corporate webs
TWSE/GTSM Listed Companie?
(IlY)  Has the company established operating procedy V (I The Company has set up the exclusive unit

behavior guidelines, and disciplinary and appeal

systems for violations in its plan to prevent

promote ethical corporate management und

the Board of Directors, th@&Chief Executive
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Operation Deviation from Ethical
Corporate Manageme
Assessed Item ves | No Summary Best Practice Principle
for TWSE/TPEX Listed
Companies and Reaso
unethical behavioimplementedhem,and Officeré Officen. It is responsible fodefining
regularly reviewed and revised the disclosure pl; and supervising the implementation of the
ethical corporate management policy and
preventive solutions and reporting to the Bo
of Directors periodically on the implementat
status. Related regulations and information
have been disclosed orethorporate website.
Il. Consolidation of Ethical Corporate Management
(D Does the Company evaluates ethical corporate | V () The Company has a rating mechanism in plNo difference
management records of parties it does business for current customers and suppliers. The rig
with, and has it stipulated ethical conduct clause and obligations of both parties as well as th¢
business contcas with them? confidentiality clausare detailed in a busine
contracts entered into.
(I)  Has the company established a dedicated unity V (I The Company has established a dedicated
the board of directors to promote ethical corpora thefGroup CEO Officé, under the Board of
management, and regularly (at least once a yea Directors to take charge of the promotion ar
reported to the board meeting itgethical related planning. It reports the ethical corpo
corporate management policies, prewx@amplan for management picy, the preventive solution a
unethical behaviors, and the supervisodn monitoring and implementation status to the
implementation? board meeting at least once a year.
(Il Has the Company established policies to prever| V (I The Company already has the Guidelines fq

against conflicts of interest, provided appropriate
channels for filing related complaints and

implemented the policies accordiyg

Recusals in Cases of Conflicting Personal
Interests for Group Employees in place. Any

conflict of interest can be reported to the
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Operation Deviation from Ethical
Corporate Manageme
Assessed Item ves | No Summary Best Practice Principle
for TWSE/TPEX Listed
Companies and Reaso
respective supervisor.
(IV) Has the company created effective accounting g V (IV)  The Compangs Audit Office sets respective
internal control systems to consolidate ethical routine, noAroutine, exceptional, and
corporate management and have those systemg impromptu audit plans each year and report
audited by either internal auditors or CPAs on a the Board of Directors how audits are
regular basis? performed.
(V)  Does the Company holdternal and eternal Vv (V)  The Compay holds internal and external
training on ethical corporate management regulz educational trainings on ethical corporate
management periodically.
lll.  Whistle-blowing System of the Company
()] Has the compangstablished substantial reportin¢ V The Company has established the Operational No difference
and incentive systems to provide convenient Procedures and Guidelines dghi€al Corporate
reporting channels and assign appropriate persc Management Best Practice that cover thorough
to investigate reported matters? whistleblowing measures, the standard operating
(11 Has the company established any standard ope| V procedure and confidentiality mechanism for the
procedures, subsequent measures to be adopte investigation of reported matter, applicable measu
the investigation is completed, or confidentiality to protect the whistleblower. External wihettlowing
mechanism$or handling reported matters? is under the charge of the dedicated unit under the
() Does the company assure employees who repo| V Board of Directors, the Audit Office while internally

on malpractices that they will not be improperly
treated for making suateports?

the responsible unit is the Human Resources Offic
which plans and operates related whistleblowing
systems. If a report matter is founda® true, the
responsible unit will report it along with how it will g

handled and the subsequent corrective actions to t
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Operation Deviation from Ethical

Corporate Manageme

Assessed Item ves | No Summary Best Practice Principle
for TWSE/TPEX Listed

Companies and Reaso

Board of Directors. Related regulations and
information are already disclosed on the corporate

website.

No difference

IV. Reinfarced Information Disclosure
(h Has the company disclosed information regardir| V The Company has disclosed information regarding
its ethical corporate managemeninciplesand ethical corporatenanagement principles and
implementation status on its website and the implementation status on its website and the MOP
MOPS?
V. If the company has its own Ethical Management Principles established according to the Ethical Corporate Management8éxiriRiptds fo
TWSE/TPEX ListedCompanies, please describe the differences between its implementation and the piNaiges:
VI. Other important information that helps understand the implementation of ethical corporate management of the ldormgany:
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(IX) If the company has estadied the corporate governance best practice
principles and related regulations, please disclose the methods to
access thenrlease refer to the Compasyvebsite and the MOPS for details.

(X) Other important information that may enhance the understanéling
the compangs corporate governance shall also be disclosed:

Gamania has been devoted to corporate governance over the long term and hopes
to create maximum shareholder equity and sustainable corporate operation by
enhancing the function of the Board@fectors, establishing functional

committees, strengthening communications with stakeholders, and reinforcing
information disclosure, among others.

1. Voluntary establishment of the Nomination Committee

In the fifth meeting of the Board of Directors ofetlienth intake on
December 24, 2020, establishment of the Nomination Committee was
approved. The Committee consists of four members in total that are the
Companys Chairman and all independent directors.
(1) Committee Membership and Professionalism
All Committee members are known for their background and
expertise in business operations and management, rich industrial
knowledge, leadership, and decisimaking capability. They
outstanding entrepreneurs in different industries andewglerienced
professiomls in finance and business operations.

Diversified professionalism
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2} S Q D)

— M p=y
Member ) . . 5 . . .
Liu, PoYuan 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

(Convener

Member Lin, RuetYi o] o] o] o] o] o] 0 0
Member Sheng, Ba¢bi o] 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Member Chen, KuarPai o] 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

(2) Responsibilities of the Committee
To propose a list of suitable candidates for the director ortaigking
managerial opnings to the Board of Directors (including those of
subsidiaries) and review in advance the candidates recommended by
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shareholders or the Board of Directors by law and submit the review
results and the reference list of candidates to the Board of Dsector
While proposing the list of independent director candidates, attention
shall be paid to the experience, professionalism, integrity, and
fulfillment of the Securities and Exchange Act, Regulations
Governing Appointment of Independent Directors and Camnpég
Matters for Public Companies, and applicable laws and regulations
regarding the criteria of independent directors of each candidate and
the developments of the Company and the Htmmm interest of
shareholders shall be the primary considerations.

(3) Business execution status in 20Please refer to thBComposition,
duties and operations of the Nomination Committee the annual
report.

2. Establishment of Corporate Governance Supervisor

At the 4th meeting of the 10th Board on November 11, 2028, th
establishment of the chief corporate governance officer (CCGO) was
approved. Chief Financial Officer Su, Hditung will concurrently be the
CCGO. Su has over 3 years of experience as a supervisor of stock affairs
and corporate governance of public compan
(1) Duties of CCGO
To take care of corporate governametated affairs, including matters
related to the organization of sharehol@ersetings and the meetings
of the Board of Directors, the Audit Committee, the Compensation
and Remuneration Comnet, the Nomination Committee and related
functional committees, helping directors to take office and comply
with laws and regulations, providing directors with materials required
for them to perform tasks, and other matters defined by law, in the
Articles of Incorporation, or in contracts, etc.
(2) Business execution status in 2022
E Prepare the agenda for the sharehofiteeseting, the board meeting,
or the functional committee meeting, provide the agenda and related
attachments by the statutory deadlinanownicate with the board
members or the committee members in advance, and prepare
meeting minutes and related documents.

. Compensatio
| Board of Audit
Name of [Shareholde@ —. ) . and
. . Director§] Committee .
Meeting meeting . . Remuneratio
meeting| meeting .
Committee
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meeing

Frequency 1 5 4 2

Important resolutions of the meeting of shareholders

i
i

Approval of the financial statements and reports for 2021.
Approval of the earnings distribution for 2021.

Important Board resolutions

i

Approval of the issuance of the 2021 Statetha# Internal Control
System based on the selfaluation results of the internal control
system.

Approval of the Compargy 2021 financial statements and reports.
Approval of the Compariy consolidated financial report for Q1
2022.

Approval of the Compayis consolidated financial report for Q2
2022.

Approval of the Compariy consolidated financial report for Q3
2022.

Approval of the Compariy business plan and annual budget for
2022.

Approval of the salaries for directors and managers for 2022
recommendetly the Remuneration Committee.

Approval of the remuneration for directors and employees for 2021.
Approval of 2021 earnings distribution.

Approval of the matters related to the 2022 general sharehdlders
meeting.

Approval of the independence assessmétitecertifying CPAs
and their accounting firm for 2022.

Approval of the capital increase of subsidiafis®wnews Network
Co., Ltdd andfJollybuy Digital Technology Co., Lt

Approval of the Compariy participation in the capital increase of
fil Produdbn Film Co., Ltdo, iYanchuang Zhilian Co., Ltdand
fiTaiwan Esports League Co., btd

Approval of donation for the Gamania Cheer Up Foundation.
Approval of the handling of the external performance evaluation of
the Board.

Approval of the renewal of thegency ofiLineage M.

Approval of theamendment tthe Compangs iArticles of
Associatiom, fiProcedures for Acquisition or Disposal of Assets
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fiOrganizational Rules of the Sustainable Development Comuittee
filnternal Control System fiRules for the Immmentation of
Internal Audit, andiiManager Compensation Distribution
Measures.

U Approval of the proposed remuneration for directors, managers and
employees of the Company for 2021.

U Approval of the determination of the kvidend base date for the
Company

U Approval of the Grougs greenhouse gas Inventory and verification
plan

Important resolutions of Audit Committee

U Approval of the consolidated financial report for 2022 and the
quarterly financial statements for Q1~Q3, 2022.

U Approval of the amendment to ti®mpanys fiProcedures for the
Acquisition and Disposal of Asséts

U Approval of the amendment to the Comp@nwpternal control
system and Rules for Implementation of Internal Audit.

U Approval of the independence assessment of the certifying CPAs
and theiraccounting firm for 2022.

U Approval of the Compar@ cash capital reduction.

U All proposals were fully discussed and advised by committee
members.

Important resolutions of Remuneration Committee

U Review and adjustment of reward for officers based on perfarenan
and special contribution to ensure the conformity to the Regulations
of Reward Distribution for Officers to enhance market
competitiveness and retain important talents.

U The pay adjustment, reward allocation, and the Conipaverall
pay raise and rewarsystem were fully discussed and advised by
committee members.

E Reviewed the important information to be released after the Board
of Director®meeting and the sharehold@&rseeting to ensure its
legitimacy and accuracy of its content and to protectitis of
investors.

E Cooperated with the competent authority in the |&tesvision of
policies or laws or regulations by revising applicable regulations on
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3)

corporate governance in real time and to submit it to the Board of
Directors.

E Planned the annualdard of Directors continuing education courses
that help reinforce its function.

E Provided related financial or operational information of the
Company needed by directors and to keep optimal communications
between directors and the management.

E Arranged commnication meetings between independent directors
and the internal audit head and CPAs so that independent directors
can summarize historical communications as part of their duty.
Refer tofiCorporate Governano®n the corporate website for
investor relatios for the communications with independent
directors.

E Optimized the terms and conditions of the liability insurance policy
for the directors and officers and reported to the Board.

E The ESG Committee reported the annual accomplishments to the
Board.

E The etlical corporate management unit reported the annual
accomplishments to the Board.

E Planned the 2022 evaluation of the performance of the Board of
Directors for the implementation of corporate governance.

E Evaluated the external performance evaluation refdhteoBoard
of Directors for 2022 and made improvements.

E The IP management unit reported the annual accomplishments to
the Board to practice the GraBdP management policy.

E Continuously promoted paperless meetings Board meetings and
meetings of functiolaommittees for irdepth control of
confidential documents.

E The Company was rated top 6~20% among FRE&d companies
at the 8th Corporate Governance Evaluation.

Continuing study of CCGO

E In accordance with paragraph 2, Article 24 of iKey Pointsfor
the Setup of the Board of Directors-irsttime chief corporate
governance officers (CCGO) shall complete 18 hours of continuing
study within one year after taking office, and 12 hours of continuing
study is required in subsequent years.

E The CCGO hasompleted 12 hours of continuing study in 2022.

74



Hours

Date Training agency Description )
involved
On the Dispute of
_ fiManagement Righésfrom
JAccounting Research and _
Jul 26, 2021 _ the Perspective of Corpora 3 hours
Development Foundation
Governance and Sharehalf
Structure
Promote Green
Nov 18, |Accounting Research and [Transformation: Move 3 hours
u
2022 |Development Foundation [towards Net Zero Carbon
Emissions
Practice of Hostile Mergers
i ) and Acquisitions of
Dec 18, |Taiwan Investor Relations |__ )
) Taiwanese Enterprises anq 3 hours
2022 |Institute . .
Analysis of Insider
Transactions
The Compilation and
Disclosure Basis of the
Dec 28, |Accounting Research and |Sustainable Report 3 hours
2022 |Development Foundation |Analysis of the Key Points

of the IFRS, ISSB, S1 and

S2 Standals
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(XI)  Implementation of Internal Control System:

1. Declaration on Internal Control:
Date:March 9 2023

With regards to the results of tB822self-evaluation of the internal control system, we hereby declare
the following:

VI.

The Company kows that establishing, enforcing, and maintaining an internal control system is
the responsibility of the CompadsyBoard of Directors and managers and has such a system in
place already. The purpose of the system is to reasonably ensure the achiefevaeou®
objectives, including operational efficiency and effectiveness (including profitability, business
performance and the security of assets), the reliability, timeliness and transparency of information
disclosed, and compliance with relevant guitkesi as well as relevant laws and regulations.

The internal control system has its inherited restrictions that cannot be overcome with improved
design. An effective internal control system can also only reasonably ensure the fulfillment of the
three gobs stated above and its effectiveness may change as the environment or situation change
There is a selfurveillance mechanism, however, built inside the internal control system of the
Company that helps the Company take a corrective action againgtmgés confirmed.

The Company determines the effectiveness of the design and implementation of its internal
control system in accordance with the itemgi@overning Regulations for Public Company
Establishment of Internal Control Systefmereinafer calledfiGoverning Regulatiors that are

related to the effectiveness of internal control systems. The items adopted in the Governing
Regulations for determining the internal control system are the five constitutional elements of the
internal control gstem divided according to the management and control process: 1. control
environment, 2. risk assessment, 3. control process, 4. information and communication, and 5.
supervision. Each element further encompasses several items. Please rBovéoning
Regulations for details.

The Company has already adopted the aforesaid items for assessing the effectiveness of it
internal control system in terms of system design and implementation.

Pursuant to the results of the abawentioned evaluations, @hCompany is of the view that the
design and implementation of its internal control system d3eckember 31, 202@ncluding its
supervision and management of subsidiaries), including its awareness of the operating effects al
the extent to which the effiency goals are achieved, the reliability, timeliness, transparency and
compliance with relevant laws and regulations of reports, and the design and implementation c
relevant internal control system are effective and capable of reasonably ensuringpethat t
aforementioned goals can be achieved.

This declaration constitutes a major part of the Comi@aAnnual Report and the Compésny
Prospectus that are made available to the public. If the aforesaid published contents are found t
be false, or fraudutg in any way, the Company and its management shall be legally liable in
accordance with Articles 20, 32, 171 and 174 of the Securities and Exchange Act.

VII. This Statement was approved by the board meeting of the Company on March 9, 2023, with nc

directas among the seven Directors present expressing any dissent.

Gamania Digital Entertainment Co., Ltd.
ChairpersonLiu, Po-Yuan

PresidentLiu, Po-Yuan
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(XI1)

(X1

2. If review of the internal audit system is outsourced to CPAs as an exception,
the CPA Review Reposhall be disclosed: None.

Details of the penalty imposed on the Company and its internal staff
as required by law or that imposed by the Company on its internal
staff for violating requirements of the internal control system in the
most recent yeaup to the date the annual report was printed, that
may have significant impacts on the shareholder equity or prices of
securities; list the penalties imposed, major deficiencies and
improvements already madeone.

Important decisions reached in stfaolderémeetings and board
meetings in the most recent year up to the date the annual report was
printed.

1. Important decisions made in the 2022 sharehoideesting

Date of _ .
. Summary of important proposals Implementation status
meeting

Recognition of the financial statemen{The proposal was approved in the
and reports for 2021. shareholde@meeting.

The proposal was approved at the
Recognition of the 202&arnings shareholde@meeting, and the
distribution. distribution of cash divideds was
completed on July 27, 2022.
Jun16, 2022 The proposal was approved at the

Approval of the revision of the shareholde@meeting, and the changg
Companys Articles of Incorporation |of registration was completed on July
2022.

Approval of the revision of & )
. i i The proposal was approved in the
Companys Regulations Governing th R )
shareholde@meeting.

Acquisition and Disposal of Assets

2. Important decisions of the Board of Directors

Important resolutions of the Board in 2022 and up to the publication date
of the annual report are summarized as follows:

Date Important decision
0 Approval of the issuance of the
Mar.10, January 1, 2021 to December 31, 2021 based on thewadifation results of th
2022 internal control system.

(@]

Approval of ame rsdAnelestof Associatiolh e Co m

(@]

A pval of amendment to the Comp@ngiProcedures for Acquisition and
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Date Important decision

Disposal of Assets

60 Approval of the a@#@ntemhah@onttol Syseemt h e

0 Approval of the a®®Roebforlmplemdntation ofi e
Internal Audit®.

0 Arpval of the amendment to ti®rganizational Rules of Sustainable
Development Committée

0 Approval dsf2021 financid statements and reports.

60 Approval of the remuneration for

0 Appr oeCGompamsf202tl barnings distribution.

0 Approval of the independence ass
accounting firm for 2022.

0 Approval of the salaries of dire
Remuneration Committee.

0 Ap pr the Gompaidsfbusiness plan and annual budget for 2022.

0 Approval of the matter s ra&nketinged

0 Approval dsfapplichtien fa@ bamqceeditines.

0 Approval of t he rd&adisposal ofha shares mLifePlus
Co., Ltdb.

6 Approval of t he c aipllybugpDigital Technobgy e.,
Ltdo.

O0Approval of the c afNownewsNetwokiCe. dl e

60 Approval dsfdonatioreto tBGamaraarCher Up Foundatiot

60 Approval dsfconsolidatedGmanc@laeport for Q1 2022.

0 Approval of the handling of the

May3, [0 Appr oval d&participation @ thengapital increasefibfProduction

2022 Film Co., Ltdb.

0 Approval of the acqui sifiGAMARAYLCD., e
Ltdo.
0 Appr oval &gréenholsegasdmventony and verification plan.
0 Approval of the pr opos e érsandamployees
the Company for 2021.
Junl6, |6 Approval of det erGmekdivdenddate. of t he

2022 |Approval of the Compar@ participation in the capital increasefiyinchuang
Zhilian Co., Ltd.

0 Approval oxf participagion @ chengagail imgrease ofiTaiwan
Esports League Co., Lad
0 Approval of the ¢endaorsersent®and gudrantees ®
subsidiaries.
Aug4, |0 Appr oval dsfapplicatien fa@ bankpcredit yines.
2022 |0 Appr oval dsfconsolideed fdanaig rapory for Q2 2022.
0 Approval dfpurthase of heeamqptyaifamania Digital

Entertainment (HK) Co., L@
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Date Important decision

0 Approval dsrenéewalef g@me agercy y

0 Approval of the @ endorsersestand guardnteds foe
subsidiaries.

0 Approval dsfconsolidatedGrmanc@laeport for Q3 2022.

0 Approval ds20238 huditp@o mpany

0 Appr oval &Gicarbonihvento@andfoapbon neutrality plans.

0 Approval o ftothelCempangféntechah@onttol Systetnand

fiRules for Implementation of Internal Audlit

Nov 3. 0 Approval of the a®®Ruoeabof®nodedute or Bodide
2022 Meeting®. - -
60 Approval of fBodrdePerfoidnan2e Evatuatianr n a |
0 Ap p rf thevratification of the Compafy disposal of the shares in
fiMicroprogram Information Co., Lt
6 Approval of capital reduction in
Holdings Ltd., Gamania International Holdings Ltd. and Gamania China
HoldingsLtd., the Compang subsidiaries.
0 Approval dsfinvastment irCtloeroapitahincrease of GAMA PAY
Co., Ltd. in cash.
0 Approval df2022 financid statements ynd reports.
6 Approval of t he rrdemplogeesdot 2022n f or
0 Approval d¥2022 baenings distripuwgiony
0 Approval of the salaries of dire
Remuneration Committee.
0 Approval of c h&&cergfigngGHAs.t he Compan
0 Ap pr oeimdépenddncetadsessment of certifying CPAs and their
accounting firm for 2022.
0 Approval of the issuance of the
Mar 9. January 1, 2022 to December 31, 2022 based on theadifation results of th
internal control gstem.
2022

Approval of the c¢hange6sedlfofielderseman
and guaranteés

0 Approval of t-blextiorr ol Boprd dirdctore.s i ve r e

0 Approval of-compestior on fietv dineagorso f non

0 A p p of the malters related to the 2023 general sharehélterting.

0 Approval axfapplichtien fa bamiqciedit yines.

0 Approval dsfannudhbudgé€ ion2p23.n y

0 Approval dsfdonatioreto Gamania Ehesgr Up Foundation.

0 Arpval of the capital increase of the subsidiatgllybuy Digital Technology
Co., Ltdb.

(XIV)  Main contents of different opinions of directors or supervisors that
are recorded and stated in writing on important decisions made by
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(XV)

(XV1)

the board meetings in tmeost recent year up to the publication
date of the annual repoNbne

Summary of resignations and dismissals of the Contpany
Chairman, President, head of accounting, head of finance, head of
internal audit, head of corporate governance, and heR&Dfin

the most recent year up to the publication date of the annual report:
None.

Status of the acquisition of certificates and licenses designated by
the competent authority by the Compénfnancial information
transparency related personnel

Name of certificate Number of peopléd
Internal Auditor Certificate 1
Basic Internal Corporate Control Skills 2
Qualification Certificate

Trust and Investment Underwriter 1
Shareholder Service Professionalism 5
Qualification Certificate

Professional TrudBusiness Provider 1
Qualification Certificate

Certification in Risk Management Assurance 1
(CRMA)

Intangible Asset AppraiserBasic Ability 1
Appraisal

Bookkeeper certificate 1
ROC CPA

US CPA 1
Brokerage Senior Dealer Qualification L
Certificate

Brokerage Dealer Qualification Certificate 2
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V. Information on CPA Fees:
Currency: NT$$1,00
Name of.the Name of Duration of the  |Audit public Non-aydlt
Accounting . . public Total Notes
. CPA audit expenditure .
Firm expenditure
L Jan 1, 20220 Dec Description of noraudit public
Lin, Yi-Fan 31,2022 expenditures: Provide
PWC Taiwar 4.145 760 4.905 venf!ca'uon and cgrt|f|cat|on _
Jan 1, 2022 to Dec services for the direct deductig
Yen, Yu-Fun 31, 2022 method of business tax for
concurrent businessperators.

) When the accounting firm is changed and the audit fees in the year of
replacement are reduced compared to that in the preceding year,
disclose the audit fees before and after the replacemetti@nd
reasonsione.

(I When the audit fees are reduced by more than 10% from the
preceding year, disclose the amount reduced, the ratio and the

reasonsihone.

VI. Information on Replacement of CPAs:

If the Company replaced the CPAs in the past two \yerailshereatfter, the
following information shall be disclosed:

()  About former CPAs

Date of replacement March 9, 2023

Reason for Replacement and Description| To go with the internal organizational adjustment of PwC Taiwi

Client .
o _ _ Situation CPA Authorizer
Explain if the appointee or accountas Soont erminat
terminated or does not accept the pon atneouts ermination Lin, Yi-Fan, Yen, YdaFun None
appointment appointmen .
Does not accept (contin
) . None None
with) appointment
Opinions expressed in audit reports other
than unqualified opinions issued within the None

most recent two years and the reason

Accounting principles or practice
Disclosure of financial statements
. i Yes Scope of inspection or steps
Different opinions from those of the Oth(grs P &
publisher
None 0
Description

Other Matters

(Those that should be disclosed as indica;
in Items 14 to 17, Subparagraph 6 of
Article 10 of these Guidelines)

None
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(I)  About Succeeding CPAs

Name of Accounting Firm PwC Taiwan
Name of CPA Yen, Yu-Fung and LipYungChi
Date of Authorization March 9, 2023
Consultations and findings about opinions possibly signed (
the accounting approach of specific transactions and fing None
statements prior to authorization.
Written opinions of succeeding CPAsathdiffer from those d None
former CPAs

() Replies of former CPAs to Matter 3 of Iltem 1 and Item 2, Paragraph 6

of Article 10 of the Guidelines:
(IV) Independence evaluation of CPAs

The Companyodés Audit Committee co
indepdence ahsuitability of the CPAs. In addition to requesting the
CPAs to provide a fiStatement of
Quality I ndicators (AQlIs)o, CPAs
the following table and the 13 AQIs. It has been confirmetithea
accountants have no financial interest or business relationship with the
Company other than the fees for cerfication and tax cases, and the
family members of the accountants do not violate the indepednce
requirements. With reference with the inforroatof AQIs, the audit
expreince and training hours are comparable to the industry average. In
addition, we will continue to introduce digital audit tools in the

following three years to improve the quality of audits. The results of

the evaluationwereappoved by the Audit Committee on March 9,

2023 and the evaluation on the indepdence and suitability of the CPAs
was submitted to the meeting of the Board of Directors on March 9,

2023, which was approved by a resolution.

. Compliance with
. Evaluation .
Evaluation item independence
results :
requirement
Do the certifying CPAs have no direct or significant indirect financial inte
; Yes Yes
with the Company?
Do the certifying CPAs have no inappropriate relationship with the Comp Yes Yes
Do the certifying CPAsiI0t concurrently work as regular employees of the
: . . . ) Yes Yes
Company or its affiliated enterprises and receive a fixed salary?
Have the certifying CPAs not engaged in any financial borrowing or lendi
; . o . Yes Yes
with the Company or its affiliated enterprises?
Have the certifying CPAs not received any commission related to the
N . Yes Yes
Companybds business?
Do the certifying CPAs not hold any shares in the Company or its affiliate
. Yes Yes
enterprises?
Have the certifying CPAs not provided audit services taCtbmpany for Yes Yes
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seven consecutive years?

Do the certifying CPAs have no joint investment or benefit sharing

relationship with the Company or its affiliated enterprises? Yes Yes

Do the certifying CPAs have not been involved in the management funct

of making decisions for the Company or related enterprises? Yes Yes

Do the certifying CPAs meet the independence requirements of the CPA
Professional Ethics Bulletin No. 10, and has the Company obtained the Yes Yes
AiDecl aration of | ndeifyipgC®AShceo i s

VII. Disclose the name, position and duration of service at the
certifying CPAsOfirm or its affiliates that the Company®
Chairman, President, or managers in charge of financial or
accounting affairs served in the past yeaNone
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VIIIL.

Changes in the transfer and pledge of equity among directors,

supervisors, managers and shareholders with a shareholding
of more than 10% in the most recent year and up to the
publication date of the annual report.

Unit: Thousand shares

2023
2022 As of March 31
Number of Number of
Increase/De¢ Increase/Dé
. shares held : shares helc .
Title Name crease in th crease in th
Increase/de Increase/de
: number of . number of
rease in the rease in the
shares shares
number of ledaed number of ledaed
shares held piedg shares helc pledy
Chairman |Liu, Po-Yuan (2,800) (1,610) - -
Wanin Internationa
Director |Representative: - - - -
Avan Xian
Director |Simon Lin - - - -
CLOUD COPIOUS
INVESTMENT
Director |LIMITED - - - -
Representative:
Alex Chen
Independen :
Director Sheng, Basi - - - -
Ind(_apenden Lin, RuetYi - - - -
Director
IndgpendenChen’ KuarPai - - - -
Director
Manager |Su, HsinHung - - (80) -
Manager |Wu, ChangHung - - -
Manager |Chien, ChihRHao - - -

Information on the transfer of equityNo transfer of equitya a related party occurred
among the directors, supervisors, managers and
shareholders with a holding ratio exceeding 10%
of the Company.

Information on the pledge of equity: No pledge of equity to a related party occurred
among the directors, supervisorsanagers, and
shareholders with a holding ratio exceeding 10%
of the Company in the past year up to the date the
Annual Report was printed.
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IX. Information of relationship among Top 10 shareholders who
are related, spouses, or relatives within the secomtiegree of
Kinship.
April 22, 2023
The title or name and
relationship among
hareholders in the T
. Shares held by | g o< heidin khareholding list who
Shares held in persor Spogﬁﬁd?rg%mmorsomeone el$e namdare related, spouse to
Name eachother, or relativeqRemark
within the second
degree of kinship
. INumbe . INumbe :
NlérﬁgreersofSha:ngldm of Sha::l;lgldln of Sha:gtrilgldln Name [Relationshi
shareg shareg
Xiang
, Sheng | Personin
Liu, PoYuan 17,491,30 9.97% - - - - Investmer] charge -
Co,, Ltd.,
WANIN
INTERNATIONAL| 15,101,00 8.60% - - - - - - -
CO., LTD.
Representative: 0 a - ) i ) i i i
Hsiao, ChengHao
JOY DEVELOP
CO., LTD., Taiwan 14,971,00 8.53% - - - - - - -
Branch
Lawsuit and
nonlawsuit 0 a - ) i ) i i i
representative
Wang, ChurMing
Xiangsfeng Liu Person in
:_r;\é'estment Co., | 13,600,00 7.75% - - - - PoYuan| charge -
Representative:
Liu, Po-Yuan 17,491,30 9.97% - - - - - - -
Investment
Account of
Xingtian
Technology Co., 3,877,00] 221% - - - - - - -
Ltd., in the
trusteeship of KGI
Bank Co., Ltd.
Account of Polunil
Emerging Marketg
Fund Company in 3,322,10 1.89% ) i ) i i i
the trusteeship of
Citibank
Union Bank of
Taiwan entrusted 2.468,00) 1.41%

hold the investmel
account of Boju

Holdings Co., Ltd.
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Jakeli Emerging
Market Small Cap
Equity Fund in the
trusteeship of
HSBC

2,114,00{

1.20%

Investment
Account of
Vanguard
Emerging Markets
Stock Index Fund
in the trusteeship |
JPMorgan Chase

1,798,91]

1.03%

New System Labg

Reirement Fund

1,682,11

0.96%
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X. Number of shares held by the Company, the Compaidy

directors, supervisors, managers, and directly or indirectly
controlled businesses and the consolidated general holding

ratio.

March 31, 2023

Unit: thoasd shares; %

Directors, supervisors
The Compangs managers, and directl Comprehensive
Reinvested enterprise investment or indirectly controlled investment
(Note) businesses
Holding Holding Holding
Shares ratio Shares ratio Shares ratio

Gamania Holdigs Ltd. 20,100, 100.00% - - 20,100, 100.00%
&aé’)"acnga 'ﬂg'ta' Entertainment 25,500 100.00% - .| 25500 100.00%
FUNdation DIGITAL

ENTERTAINMENT Co., Ltd. 317} 100.00% ) i 317| 100.00%
DI SENTRE COMPANY 16,016  67.48% i | 16,016 67.48%
Jdybuy Digital Technology Co.. | 35 60 98.89% i | 32,600 98.89%
TWO TIGERS CO., LTD. 627 51.00% - - 627 51.00%
Gash Point Co., Ltd. 13,500 90.00% 1,040 6.93% 14,540 96.93%
Indiland Co., Ltd. 2,950/ 100.00% - - 2,950| 100.00%
DIT 3,997 33.03% - - 3,997 33.03%
ANTSO6POWER CO., LTD. 1,000{ 100.00% - - 1,000{ 100.00%
COTURE NEW MEDIA CO., LTD 1,315 93.08% - - 1.315 93.08%
WEBACKERS CO., LTD. 374 93.38% - - 374 93.38%
NOWNEWS NETWORK €O, 43,520  79.44% 515|  0.94%| 44,035  80.38%
Gamania Asia Investrmé Co., Ltd. 18,900, 100.00% - - 18,900, 100.00%
BEANGO CO., LTD. 400| 100.00% - - 400| 100.00%
GAMA PAY CO., LTD. 65,010 81.26% 11,675 14.60% 76,685 95.86%
CIIRCO, INC. 8,991 99.90% - - 8,991 99.90%
WALKERMEDIA CO., LTD. 3,000 30.00% - - 3,000 30.00%
SOFRA Studio Co., Ltd. 3,000 42.86% - - 3,000 42.86%

(Note): It is the longerm investment of the Company using the equity method.
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Four. Fund-raising
|.  Capital and Shares

() Source of share capital
March 31, 2023  Unit: NT$1,000; thousand shares

Approved capital stocf Paidin capital stock Remarks
Using properties|
MM/YYYY | Issue price | Number Number ; otherthan cash t
of shareg Vvalue of shareq Value Source of capital stock | rite off lthe stockOthers
value
1995/06 10 500, 5,000 500 5,000 Establishment Note 1
1998/04 10 1,00(¢ 10,00(q 1,000 10,000 Capital increase in cash $5,000 Note 2
1999/10 10 17,00( 170,00( 5,000 50,000 Capital increase in cash $40,000 Note 3
Capital increase in cash $200,00
Earnings transferred capi
2000/05 10 60,00( 600,000 28,057 280,57(increase 27,500 Note 4
Employee bonus transferred cap]
increase 3,070
2001/03 10 60,00( 600,000 52,813 528,13( Capital increase in cash $247,56 Note 5
Earnings transferred capital
increase 36,970
2001/08 10 60,00( 600,000 56,92( 569,200 Employee bonus transferred cay] Note 6
increase 4,100
Earnings transferred capi
increase 227,680
- Capital reserve transferred cap
2002/07 10 110,00( 1,100,00 88,027 880,27( increase $56,920 Note 7
Employee bonus transferred cag
increase 26,470
2002/11 10 110,00( 1,100,00 108,027 1,080,27(Capital increase in cash $200,00 Note 8
Earnings transferred capi
Jincrease 410,503
2003/07 10 250,00( 2,500,00 158,79¢ 1,587,99 Employee bous transferred capil Note 9
increase 97,224
{Treasury  stoclbased capit
2004/10 10 250,00( 2,500,00 153,99( 1,539,891 o quction $48,100 Note 10
{Treasury  stoclbased capit
2005/04 10 250,00( 2,500,00 152,916 1,529,171 .o quction $10,720 Note 11
{Treasury  stoclbased capit
2005/09 10 250,00( 2,500,00 151,874 1,518,781 .o quction $10,390 Note 12
{Treasury  stoclbased capit
2006/03 10 250,00( 2,500,00 146,874 1,468,78 reduction $50,000 ) Note 13
Earnings transferred capi I
increase 38,188
2007/09 10 250,00( 2,500,00 152,864 1,528,694 Employee bonus transferred cap Note 14
increase 21,719
] {Employee  share  subscripti
2007/10 10 250,00( 2,500,00 153,067 1,530,67 warrant conversion $1,083 Note 15
Earnings transferred capi
4 Jincrease 7,061
2008/10 10 250,00( 2,500,00 158,782 1,587,82 Employee bonus transferred cag Note 16
increase 50,088
Employee  share  subscripti
2009/05 10 250,00( 2,500,00 158,904 1,589,05 warrant conversion $1,231 Note 17
Employee  share  subscripti
2009/11 10 250,00( 2,500,00 160,495 1,604,95 warrant conversion $15 892 Note 18
{Employee  share  subscripti
2010/04 10 250,00( 2,500,00 161,736 1,617,381 . arrant conversion $12.436 Note 19
i Employee  share subscriptiof
2010/05 10 250,00( 2,500,00 165,637 1,656,374~ rrant conversion $38,988 Note 20
A Employee  share  subscripti
2010/11 10 250,00( 2,500,00 165,702 1,657,024 - rant conversion $644 Note 21
Employee  share  subscripti
2011/04 10 250,00( 2,500,00 166,32( 1,663,204, - rant conversion $686 Note 22
Employee  share  subscripti
2011/05 10 250,00( 2,500,00 168,12 1,681,283 - rrant conversion $18,076 Note 23
Treasury  stoclbased  capit
2011/06 10 250,00( 2,500,00 156,286 1,562,883 - juction $118.400 Note 24
Employee share subscription
2011/09 10 250,00( 2,500000 156,401 1'564'01'warrant conversion $1.128 Note 25
Employee  share  subscripti
2011/11 10 250,00( 2,500,00 156,751 1,567,51‘Warrant conversion $3,504 Note 26
Employee  shre  subscriptio|
2012/04 10 250,00( 2,500,00 156,754 1,567,54 warrant conversion $28 Note 27
2012/06 10 250,00( 2,500,00 156,817 1,568,121Employee  share  subscripti Note 2§
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warrant conversion $582
Employee  share  subscripti
2012/11 10 250,00( 2,500,00 156,866 1,568,684, rrant conversion $55 Note 29
p Employee  share  subscripti
2013/05 10 250,00( 2,500,00 156,883 1,568,833 rrant conversion $149 Note 30
i Employee  share  subscripti
2013/06 10 250,00( 2,500,00 157,097 1‘570‘97twarrant conversion $2.142 Note 31
4 Employee  share  subscripti
2013/09 10 250,00( 2,500000 157,113 1‘571‘13‘Warrant conversion $157 Note 32
{Employee  share  subscripti
2013/12 10 250,00( 2,500,00 157,311 1,573,11 warrant conversion $1,985 Note 33
Employee  sha  subscriptio
2014/04 10 250,00( 2,500,00 157,594 1‘575‘93(W51rrant conversion $2 819 Note 34
2017/11 10 250,00( 2,500,000 168,537 Lesssn%fé@ﬁ‘é‘ge bone  conversi Note 35
2018/02 10 250,00( 2,500,000  175,02¢ 1|750|28_gg£p9068te bone  conversi Note 36
2018/05 10 250,00( 2,500,00(¢ 175,427 1,754,27(Corporate bone conversion $3,9 Note 37,
2018/08 10 250,00( 2,500,00 175,493 1,754,934 Corporate bone conversion $665 Note 38

Note 1: Approval No
Note 2: Approval No
Note 3: Approval No
1999

Note 4: Approval No
2000

Note 5: Approval No
11, 2000

Note 6: Approval No
2001

Note 7: Approval No
2002

Note 8: Approval No
03, 2002

Note 9: Approval No
2003

Note 10: Approval N
21, 2004

Note 11: Approval N
2005

Note 12: Approval N
30, 2005

Note 13: Approval N
2006

Note 14: Approval N
10, 2007

Note 15: Approval N
30, 2007

Note 16: Approval N
15, 2008

Note 17: Approval N
2009

Note 18: Approval No.: JinGhouShang No. 09801271060 dated November Note 37: Approval No.:

2009

Note 19: Approval No.: JingghouShang No. 09901072040 dated April 1! Note 38: Approval No.:
2018

2010

.. (199) Jian (4) No. 86819 dated June 12, 1995

. (199 Jian @) Geng No. 14362 dated April 3, 1998 2010

.. Jing (199 Zhong No. 88972957 dated October 27 Note 21: Approval No.: JindhouShang No.
.:(200) Tai-Cai-Zheng () No. 29638 dated April 14, ﬁl%té%lz(:)Approval No.:idg-ShouShang No.
JinGhouShang No.
JinGhouShang No.
JinGhouShang No.
.: TaCairzZheng () No. 0910147223 dated Septeml Note 26: Approval No.: JindhouShang No.
; JinGhouShang No.
JinGhouShang No.
JinGhouShang No.
JinghouShang No.
JinghouShang No.
Jinghas-Shang No.
JinGhouShang No.
JinghouShang No.
JinghouShang No.
JinghouShang No.
JinghouShang No.

JinghouShang No.

.. (200) Tai-CairZheng () No. 77120 daie September Note 23: Approval No.:
2011

.. (20D Tai-CairZheng () No. 142580 dated July 3, Note 24: Approval No.:
2011

.: TaCairzZheng () No. 0910132738 dated June 17 Note 25: Approval No.:
19, 2011

.. TaCaiZheng () No.

o0.: JinghouShang No. 09301198100 dated Octobe Note 28: Approval No.:
2012

o0.: JinghouShang No. 09401063160 dated April 1¢ Note 29: Approval No.:
2

o0.: Jin®har-Shang No. 09401193330 dated Septer Note 30: Approval No.:

Note 31: Approval No.:

o0.: JinghouShang No. 09501048910 dated March Note 32: Approval No.:

o.: JinghouShang No. 09601222410 dated Septer Note 33: Approval No.:
, 3

o.: JinghouShang No. 096012650 dated October Note 34: Approval No.:

o.: JinghouShang No. 09701264660 dated Octob¢ Note 35: Approval No.:

20, 2017
o0.: JindhouShang No. 09801097160 dated May 1! Note 36: Approval No.:
2018

2011

0920122373 dated May 21, Note 27: Approval No.:
2012

)

2013

2014

2018

Note 20: Approval No.: JinghouShang No.

09901109060 dated May 28,
09901260820 dated Novembe
10001070290 dated April 11,
10001096330 dated May 16,
10001121560 dated June 16,
1000121804ated September
10001258190 dated Novembe
10101062780 dated April 10,
10101107630 dated June 13,
10101237660 dated Novembe
10201077710 dated May 3, 2(
10201104100 dated June 5, 2
10201184280 dated Septemb
10201255760 dated Decembe
10301065780 dated April 16,
1060115964lated November
10701015940 dated February
10701055860 dated May 25,
10701110500 dated August 2

April 22, 2023  Unit: share

Approved share capital

common stoc|

Type of shar¢  Shares already Shares yet to be Total Note
issued issued
Registered | 5 193 573 74,506,427 250,000,000 | Main Board stock

Information on shelf reqgistratiotNone
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(I1)

Sharehtmler Structure

April 22, 2023
Shareholde Governm¢g Financial Other . _Fo_relgn
ructure t agencyl institutions|corooration Individuals| institution Total
Quantity ntagency P and alien
No. of people 0 3 195 41,766 205 42,169
Number of 0 1,050,000/ 36,515,975 77,497,454 60,430,144 175,493,573
shares held
Holding ratio
0 0.60 20.81 44.16 34.43 100
(%)
(Ill)  Decentralization of Equity
Decentralization of equity
Denomination of $10 per share
April 22, 2023
Levels of shareholding Number of Number of shares helg Holding ratio (%)
shareholders

1-999 25,126 878,179 0.5
1,0005,000 14,922 26,987,165 15.38
5,00%10,000 1,231 9,748,383 5.55
10,00115,000 304 3,912,207 2.23
15,00%20,000 167 3,104,752 1.77
20,00130,000 128 3,279,372 1.87
30,00%40,000 63 2,257,963 1.29
40,00150,000 42 1,946,801 1.11
50,00%:100,000 70 4,693,737 2.67
100,001200,000 43 5,945,630 3.39
200,001400,000 26 7,555,080 431
400,001600,000 15 7,288,060 4.15
600,001800,000 9 6,204,113 3.54
800,0011,000,000 5 4,560,013 2.60
Above 1,000,001 18 87,132,118 49.64
Total 42,169 175,493,573 100.00

Preferred stockNone
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(IV) List of Major Shareholders
April 22, 2023

Name of major shareholder Numbe(rscr)]fas;z;lres he Holding ratio (%)
Liu, Po-Yuan 17,491,30 9.97%
WANIN INTERNATIONAL CO., LTD. 15,101,00 8.60%
JOY DEVELOP CO., LTD., Taiwan Branch 14,971,00 8.53%
Xiangsheng Investment Co., Ltd. 13,600,00 7.75%
Investment Account of Xingtian Technology Co., L| 3,877,00 2.21%
in the trusteeship of KGI Bank Co., Ltd.
Accountof Polunin Emerging Markets Fund 3,322,10 1.89%
Company in the trusteeship of Citibank
Union Bank of Taiwan entrusted to hold the 2,468,00 1.41%
investment account of Boju Holdings Co., Ltd.
Jakedi Emerging Market Small Cap Equity Fund ir 2,114,00 1.20%
the trusteesp of HSBC
Investment Account of Vanguard Emerging Marke 1,798,91¢ 1.03%
Stock Index Fund in the trusteeship of JPMorgan
Chase
New System Labor Retirement Fund 1,682,11! 0.96%
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(V) Related information of market price per share, netejaarnings,
and dividends for the past two years
Yeal The current yeat
ltemn 2021 2022 | up toMarch 31,
2023
Market  |Highest 73.80 | 73.30 92.60
value per |Lowest 53.80 51.20 68.80
share Average 62.74 | 62.85 78.60
Net value |Before distribution 30.82 33.35 35.20
per share |After distribution 25.82 | 33.35 35.20
Weighted average
Earnings |[number of shares 175,494 | 175,494 175,494
per share |(thousand shares)
Earnings per share 6.30 7.29 1.92
Cash dividend 5.00 5.80 -
Dividend
per share Freg share - - -
assignmen - - -



Accumulated unpaid
dividend

Analysis ofPrice to earnings ratio 9.96 8.62
return on |Price to dividend ratio 12.55 10.84
investmentCash dividend yield 7.97% | 9.23%
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(V1)

Companys dividend policy and implementation status
1. Dividend policy:
In accordance with our Articles of Incorporation, before deducting rewards
for employees and directors,-16% of the net income before taxes of the
year should be appropriated as the reward for employees and not more than
2% the rewat for directors. The Company shall appropriate for woite
the loss carried forward, if applicable. The policy on the distribution of
dividends is as follows:
(1) Principle for the distribution of dividends:
The Company distributes dividends applying ithleust balance
principle, with normalization of the corporate financial structure and
accommodation of operational growth potential as the top principle.
Dividends are distributed at a ratio of no less than 10% of the earnings
of the specific year.
(2) Procedure for distributing dividends:
The procedure for distributing dividends of the Company is based on
the requirements of the Company Act. Each year, the Board of
Directors takes into consideration the profitability of the Company
and its future operainal demand while preparing the proposal on
distribution of earnings and the proposal is to be approved through the
general shareholdémneeting before it is implemented.
(3) How dividends will be distributed:
How dividends are distributed takes refent the profitability,
financial structure, and future developments of the Company, among
other factors, and at least 10% of the dividends distributed in the
specific year will be set aside to pay cash dividends. The Board of
Directors, however, may adjus reflective of the overall operational
status and fund planning and submit it during the sharehdlders
meeting for a decision.

2. Distribution of dividends intended to be proposed and discussed during the
current shareholdedmeeting:
The Compang bard meeting approved on March 9, 2023 to distribute a
cash dividend of NT$5.8 per share.

3. Expected major changes to the dividend policy, if any: None.

93



(VI

Impact of free share allotment intended by the current sharehdlders
meeting on the Compadsyoperational performance and earnings per
share:There is no share allotment.

(VII1) Remuneration for employees, directors and supervisors

1. Percentage or range of remuneration for employees, directors and

supervisors as stated in the Compamyrticles of Association:
(1) 10% to 15% as the remuneration for employees
(2) No higher than 2% as the remuneration for directors

. Accounting measures adopted in case of any difference between the basis

for estimating the amount of remuneration for employees anctalise

basis for calculating the number of shares included in the distribution of
remuneration for employees, and the actual value distributed and their
estimates of the current term:

The amount of remuneration for directors reduced by NT$14,382 against
the expenses recognized iA22. The difference will be recognized as the
profit or loss in 2023.

. Approval of distribution of remuneration by the Board of Directors:

The board meeting approved on March 9, 2023
(1) Remuneratioror directors: NT$34,700,@
(2) Remuneratiorior employees: NT$173,571,908.

. The actual amount of the 2021 remuneration distributed to employees and

directors in 2022 is the same as the amount approved by the board meeting
and the shareholdémeeting.

(IX) Status of purchasef treasury shares: None.

Corporate Bonds: None.

Preferred Stock: None.
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V. Global Depositary Receipt:None.
V. Employee Share Subscription Warrant:None.
VI. New Shares with Restricted Employee RightSyone.

VI11. Issuance of New Shares for M&A oiAcceptance of Shares of
Other Companies:None.

VIIl.  Implementation of Capital Utilization Plan: None.
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Five. Operational Overview

Scope of Operation:

(1)

Scope of Operation:

1. Main scope of operation

(1)
(2)

3)
(4)
(5)

(6)
(7)
(8)
(9)
(10)
(11)
(12)
(13)
(14)

Trading in all kinds of computer hardware asudtware.

Design, planning, trading, agency and distribution of industrial and
commercial machinery and equipment.

Output of machinery and equipment across the plant.

General imports and exports (excluding licensing).

Bidding and quotatiofor products on behalf of domestic and foreign
manufacturers.

General advertising.

TV program production.

Release of Radio and TV programs.

Radio and TV advertising.

Brokerage.

Manufacturing of data storage and processing equipme
Information software service.

Magazine.

Besides that licensed, the Company may also engage itself in business
that is not prohibited or restricted by law.

2. Scope of operation by the weight

Unit: NTD 1,000

Yeal 2021 2022
Product Value % Value %
Gaming and point 9,490,86! 83%
. 9,385,77¢ 83%
storage income
Labor and other 1,897,154 17%
o 1,986,69¢ 17%
operating income
Total 11,372,47 10094 11,388,02 100%

Source: 2022 consolidated financial statement audited and certified by CPAs.

3. Current Products (Services) of the Company

(1)

Games: The games launched by the Group include online games such
asiiMapleStory, Lineage RemasterediElsword, fiMabinogb,
fiCounterStrike Onlin® andfiDragon Nesy, and mobile games such
asfiLineage M, fiWorld of Dragon Nesi fiThe Legendary Moonlight
Sculpton andiiwWorld Flippen.
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(2)

3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

e-Commerce: The GrodpiiJollybuy Digitabis the first of its kind to
focus on Anime, Comics, Games and Novels (ACGN) and is devoted
to creating an entertainingg@mmere platform. Gaming and

socializing upgrade the shopping fun. Al data is applied to improve
the operational performance of partner stores and to make trading
more convenient and shopping more fun.

Payment: The Grouwp GAMA PAY combines the Group and its
crossdisciplinary partners and turns online digital conteased
transactions offline (Online to Offline). The scope of service covers
food, clothing, housing, transportation, education, and entertainment
to build convenient and safe payment applicaitirat better meet the
spending needs of the digital generation. Young and gaming
populations are prioritized. Meanwhile, the stores are offered the best
solution to cash flows, membership management, and ticketing.
AGASHO point service not only enablesagkers to make payments but
also provides them with comprehensive digital entertainment contents.
The quality and powerful features make it possible for digital players
around the world to travel freely in the infinite widenge digital
entertainment worlthrough the GASH platform.

Media: The Grous iCONETTER)is known for its indepth original
digital solid foundation. The needs of network users are explored at a
depth. Meanwhile, the organizational capability of the Group makes
rapid streamlining ofhetwork resources possible. It becomes a
marketing A Team in streamlining media resources and helping
customers echo with consumers of the digital generation that is heard
on the market, creating synergistic effeéSNTSEPOWERS, with its
many years ofx@erience in customer service and sound customer
service mechanism as well as flexible professional organization and
deployment, renders benefits such as brand formation and product
promotion through social medzsed marketing to provide

customers with gwerful backup and support in real time.

Others: The Group iDIGICENTREO is an expert in cloud data and
information security that combines cloud depot, information security
service, and mobile safety in one. With its technical experience
accumulated er the years, domestic and international customers are
offered tailored services and solutions in terms of information security,
system integration, and IDC/NOC/SOC.

Mobile platform: beanfun! is a platform for-adund mobile life,
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integrating gamegntertainment points, paymenticemmerce, IM
communication and interaction, and connecting consumption expense
deduction. Through functional module restructuring and optimization
of the underlying logical architecture of big data engineering, it
enhancesiser experience and strengthens group service connectivity,
and delves into diverse user scenarios to create more fun for life, open
theAMulti functional Radab anytime and anywhere, enjoy a simple

and rich online life, and connect the online ecosystem.

4. New products (services) to be developed
Through constant collaboration with woillsading game developers, we
will launch quality game contents and introduce big games with elaborate
and unique contents based on market orientation and gamer demands to
boost game operations with heavyweight IPs. We will also make fuller and
more diversified deployment for the beanfun! ecosystem, constantly
develop and connect with new contents and services, and meet user
demands through idepth development of ACGN -aomnerce and
diversification of the application scenarios of GAMA PAY, thpayment
service under Gamania, to seize the market of Tasvanobile life portal
apps. In addition, in recent years, the cloud and information security
markets have flourished, andet Grou@ subsidiary Digicentre has
successfully expanded into the Southeast Asian market. Combined with the
local demand for smart cities, it has initially established a local operating
foundation and created new revenue drivers. In the future, it enlirtue
strengthening research and development and operational capabilities, and
deepen its overseas market penetration

(1 Industrial Overview:

1. Current Industry Status and Development
(1) Game market

According to thefi2022 Global Games Market Repworeleased by
international market research firm Newzoo, the overall global gaming
market size reached USD196.8 billion in 2022, a growth of 2.1%
compared to that in21. Among them, the largest market was mobile
games with a scale of USD103.5 billion, ageting for 53%, and the
annual growth rate was the highest among all platforms, reaching
5.3%. The second largest market was console games with a scale of
USD52.9 billion, a decrease of approximately 2.2% annually, mainly
due to the unstable supply chaihammponents in the year and the
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delayed launch of many games.

According to the statistics of professional mobile game database
fidata.ad, RPG, strategy and match are the top three types of games
that are most popular with global mobile game players itbajlo
mobile game spending.

Global gaming market scale 2022 by platform type

Browser PL Games

$2.3Bn

Dowloaded/Boxed
PC Gares

$38.1Bn

=16 5%, Yo

Console Games

$52.9Bn

2022 Total

$196.8Bn

+21%
ey

Mablla Games

$103.5Bn

+L0% Yoy

Source: Newzoo (2022)

The revenue sources of global mobile games are mainly from two
major platforms, with Google Play accounting for about 60% and App
Store accounting for abdu40%; according to the statistics of
professional mobile game databd®lata.ad, the number of mobile
game downloads in the world reached 89.7 billion in 2022, with an
annual growth rate of 8%.

Number of global mobile game downloads from 2019 to 2022

100 89.7
797

83

o

2018 2020 2021 rivry

Source: data. ai (2023); compilation by the Company

(2) Entertainment media market
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According to the PwC Global Entertainment & Media Outlook
2021~2025 by PricewaterhouseCoopers (PwC), besides causing a
significant decline to the global entertainment anddiagE&M)
industry in 2020, the pandemic continues to affect economic activities
and lifestyles worldwide. Thanks to the development of a new
lifestyle to coeexist with COVID19 in 2021, progressive, limited
entertainment has revived, with the market banmdack to a worth

of USD2.2 trillion (approx. NT$61 trillion) (as shown in the chart
below). Looking at the lonterm trend, the global E&M industry
continues to grow hot and it is estimated it will grow to a scale of
about USD2.6 trillion in @25. Qverdl, the compound annual growth
rate of the 2020~2025 revenues of the global E&M industry is about
5%. The pandemic outbreak in 2021 and 2022 has changed the
behavior of consumers and accelerated the digital transformation of
governments and businesses ttvance the digital revolution. This
may also bring forth a turning point to the indu&rgcosystem that
would take years to break through. Digitalization will be a key
momentum to shape all industries. It is expected that the
entertainment and media imstty in the future will turn distant,
virtual, streamed, and personalized and become even more
homecentered, creating even greater digital business opportunities.

Revenue of Global Entertainment and Media Industry 202025

A rapid return to growth
NAUBiry revenues are projecied 0 bounce back strongly

Global EAM revenues (USStn) ® EAM yoar-on-yoargrowth (%)
5.0% CAGR
20202025
3.5% CAGR
1.0 2019-2025
o » . o
o
RS e
\ -
0 \ / e
AL ] AR 2.0 A 20 22 23 24 25 28
0

206 2017 2018 2019 2020 20 2022 2023 2024 2025
fiex

Note: 2020 is the lates! avaslabie date 20021202 S values ane forecasts
125, C

2021-2025 values §
Sowurce! PwC's Global Endeviainment & Madia Outiook 2021-2025, Omdia

Source: PWC (2021)

Accordng to the statistics of Statista database, the overall revenue
scaleof Taiwarts digital media industry reached USD2.33 billion in
2022, and it is estimated that the overall market size will grow to
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USD3.08 billion in 2027.

Revenue Scale of TaiwénDigital Media Industry from 2017 to 2027

1.08
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@ Digital Music @ ePublishing Widea Garies Widea-on-Dermand

Source: Statista (2022)

2. Correlations of the up mid-, and dowrstream of the industry
According to the latest Taiwan Digital Content Industry Yearbook, the
discussions shall cover three levels. At level one, tiggnal three major
core industries are maintained: Digital games: online games, mobile
games and-sports.2. Animation: animated special effects, digital
portraiture and derivatives. digital learning: digital materials, tool
platforms, learning seice, integration of learning software and hardware,
e-books. At the second level, it is the digital content industry that combines
emerging technologies (motigensing) and new technological elements,
including AR/VR/MR, Al, and blockchain. The discussiat level three
continues to address the development of emerging digital technologies. The
ongoing evolution of technology contents shows the ecosystem of
digitization. During the pandemic, data of the Internet of Behaviors (loB)
are collected to influemchuman behaviors with the epidemic control data.
In the converged digital content industry, field, platform, and experience
are the interfaces for demonstration and application, including VR
experience/paradise, application of AR/VR/MR to education, itrgiand
simulation, new retailing, museums, travel guide, and reconstruction of
historical scenes. The pandemic has accelerated the digitization of
engagement in digital twin applications by users and businesses to boost
the industrial application of digt twins: immersive experience or
multi-experience, total experience, human experience platforms. The
dynamic evolution of emerging technological trends (as shown below),
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such as some technological elements that affect the development of the
digital conten industries, such as digital twins, virtual humans, virtual
YouTubers, holography, and even edge computing, distributed clouds.
Scope of the digital content industry in Taiwan

Distributec Edge

cloud computing
\ y
) ) ARNVRIMR ) 4 Virtual A
Dynamic technological motionsensing Al ‘ D,"a“";“ " Humans = Holography
elemaits technology y y
55 4 & e
T T T T T T T TITTTTTTTTeaTTTTTTTTe »

S ey il _A_‘—‘ ‘ -

E Online game E Animated special E Digital games E Animation that
E Mobile game effect integrati bi
E E-sport £ Digital portraiture AR/VRIMR/AI AR/VR

and derivatives
Digital learning (including publishing) *
E Digital 7

E Integration of larning e Digital learning and 4ooks applyin¢
software and hardwal AVIVR motion-sensing
E E-book

learning
materials
E Tool platform
E Learning
service

Source: Taiwan Digital Content Industry Yearbook (2021)
ChungHua Institutiaon for Economic Research.

3. Various product development trends

(1) Various heavyweight games for market diversification: The Gamania
Group has been cultivating the game market in Taiwan, Hong Kong,
and Macao for over 26 years, and built an integratéidfdatured
powerful team combining operations, marketing, customer service,
and advertising. Besides starting the online game era in Taiwan with
Lineage launched in 2000, we also made video games-aatall
fashion with the free MapleStory launched 002. Games with
richer contents and more comprehensive styles have been launched in
recent years, including firgterson shooter (FPS), rgidaying game
(RPG), reatime Strategy (RTS), action game (AG), adventure game
(AVG), simulation game (SIM), sportame (SPG), puzzle game
(PU2), casual/education simulation (EDU), and others, and are run
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)

®3)

for the long run. Although there are many new game businesses in
Taiwan, various classic Gamania games never fail. The heavyweight
IP gamediLineage Mbwas introducedtahe end of 2017 and set
multiple records in the history of mobile games of Taiwan. Various
collaborative events have been introduced with subsidiaries, too, to
provide players with more diversified services. MapleStory, a classic
Gamania game, has credteew milestones in recent years. Besides
cultivating new users from younger age groups, the team lifted the
brand status to thitrend maker of PC games 2020 to constantly
raise the user confidence index, and the revenues hit a new high.The
annual reenues in 2022 hit a new record high. In the future, we will
continue to demonstrate our robust local operation power to integrate
crossindustry resources in order to fulfill the gar@edemand for

new gaming experience.

New business opportunities felcommerce: JollyBuy Digital, a
Gamania business and Taiv@first ACGN entertainment

e-commerce platform, cultivates new domains-coenmerce through
the shopping guide of beanfun!, the membership advantage of
Gamania, and the interactive consumptiardel integrating
e-commerce and games. MOEA selected JollyBuy Digital to help
shops and individuals to run online shops under the Retailers Digital
Transformation Stimulus Program by introducing more preferential
plans for digital transformation to retaiein order to relieve their
pressure in business operations during the pandemic. It introduced
Taiwarts first online mystery box marketing model to bring new
business opportunities with branéw buying experience. In 2022, it
continued focusing on thegmtucts loved by the ACGN community as
the key category, and exclusively promoted virtual and physical
consumption through innovative services, driving new customer
traffic.

A bigger picture of rpayment: To accelerate the popularization of
mobile paynent (mpayment) in Taiwan, the government has actively
introduced related solutions, aiming to pusipayment popularity to
90% by D25. Abig progress has been seen in recent years, with a
growth of over 70% in@21. GAMA PAY, a Gamania business, is
actively developing cooperation with variooensumptiorchannels

to achieve 020 payment app. In the past three years, it expanded the
cooperation with Taiwa four leading convenience store chains to
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(4)

(5)

significantly strengthen the buying power of the beanfankgstem.
GAMA PAY also started the crossstitution transfer service in
response to the amendment to The Act Governing Electronic Payment
Institutions, and is engaged in service innovation to provide members
with convenient, efficient, and comprehenstemsumption

experience. In 2022, it mastered the new retail business model of
OMO virtual reality integration, and deeply cultivates higiquency
application scenarios.

Accurate capture of digital marketing trends: CONETTER, a
Gamania business, pralds comprehensive integrated marketing
services to partners by mining the demands of internet users with the
solid digital media foundation established over the years, and sharing
the results of big data analysis based on Gartsarn@ network
resourcesk-urthermore, by linking multiple media, CONETTER
maximizes the effectiveness of customer marketing to successfully
help various online products and services, such as games,
entertainment, and@mmerce, to enter Taiw&market smoothly.
Integrated dvelopment of pan entertainment services: We are
committed to building beanfun! as the entrance platform of the pan
entertainment ecosystem, and extend it to the fields of film, television
and art to cultivate innovation talents and strengthen the coAtent.

the same time, we actively expand cooperation among different
industriesdeeperthe richness of application scenarios, and introduce
a new community functioiShow Togethdrto deepen user

connectivity, introduce a large number of new users, andaseneser
activity.

4. Product competition situation

(1)

Game market

With the evolution of software and hardware technology, the habit of
players using computers or websites to play games in the past has
changed. At present, global players mainly @isebie phoneé to

play games, with 53% of global players being accustomed to or
frequently using mobile devices to play games. It is also the fastest
growing type of gaming platform, mainly due to the popularity of the
internet and the fact that almost everyamwning a phone or other
mobile device, making mobile games a convenient and fast access
gaming channel, and also a frequently used gaming platform for mild
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players. The most popular mobile game genre among global players
in 2022 isfiRole Playing Game@s(RPG), with a global consumption
amount (IAP) of USD25.5 billion, followed byiStrategp and
fiMatcho; AConsol®, the second most popular gaming platform which
accounts for 27%, is usually the platform preferred by moderate or
heavy players, and can carry maefined and smooth game settings.
Global gaming market scale 2022 by platform type

Browser PC Games

$2.3Bn

Dowloaded /Boxad
PC Games

$38.1Bn

-18.85% Yo

Condale Games

$52.9Bn

2022 Tatal

$196.8Bn
+21%

woh

HMablle Garmes

$103.5Bn

Source: Newzoo (2022)

Scale of InSoftware Consumption (IAP) of Global Mobile Game
Bestselling Types in 2022

RPG 25,5
Strategy 121
fatch 87
Casing B.3
Sirmnulatian 3.1
4] 10 20 30
TEET

Source: data. ai (2023); comgitan by the Company
(2) E-commerce market
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3)

Due to the popularity of the internet and the impact of the pandemic,
the main ecommerce platforms can be divided into comprehensive
e-commerce platforms, physical retail online shopping channels,
third-party deivery platforms, brand online shopping channels,
community or communication platforms, etc. based on their functions.
In the competitive ommerce market, the factors that affect
consumer8 willingness to place orders and annual popularity are
usually the arrival time, sufficient inventory, customer service
processing, website and app updates.

In recent years, various@mmmerce companies have also launched
various promotions and holiday activities, which have also increased
consumer8 willingness and motiation to make online purchases.
According to thefi2022 Ecommerce Shopping Festival Consumer
Survey released by the Market Intelligence & Consulting Institute
(MIC) of the Institute of Information Industry, the average annual
consumption amount of Taiwase people during the-a@mmerce
shopping festival is NT$21,728, with an annual growth rate of 44%.
The most commonly used consumption channel is comprehensive
e-commerce platforms (accounting for 86%), followed by physical
retail online shopping channdlaccounting for 31%). Nearly 50% of
consumers are most concerned about the reliability of delivery time
during the ecommerce shopping festival.

Payment market

Mobile payment is becoming increasingly popular; currently in
Taiwan, induction payment, ftigkparty payment and electronic
payment are the most common methods, mainly differentiated by
regulatory authorities and the scope of business undertaken.
According to the statistics of the Financial Supervisory Commission,
in December 2022, approximatel21.88 million people used
electronic payments, with a cumulative transaction amount of over
NT$111.4 billion for the entire year.

Category Third-party payment e-Payment
. Financial
Regulatory Ministry of _
. ) _ Supervisory
authorities Economic Affairs .
Commission

_ Agency collection
_ Agency collection
Scope of business and payment,

and payment
transfer, storage,
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withdrawal, etc

Source: Complied by the Company

The current providers of cash flow collection services in Taiwan
include electronic payment platform providerand financial
institutions. Given the small operation scale of many merchants and
the high cost of signing chartered stores by financial institutions, the
frequency of connection and cooperation with electronic payment
manufacturers will increase sigmifintly, which will also have a
competitive impact on electronic payment manufacturers. Electronic
payment manufacturers will face one of the most important and
urgent changes and challenges in integrating upstream and
downstream services and connections.

In recent years, in response to the changes in payment habits, the
government has gradually relaxed and adjusted relevant regulations
and promoted relevant measures. For example, the Financial
Supervisory Commission has establishediFenancial Technology
Experimental Field to enhance the development of Taid&an
financial technology, and it passed in 2020 the third reading on the
amendment tdéiThe Act Governing Electronic Payment Institutions

to integrate electricity payments and bills, open up small tentiés

and foreign currency trading, and open up cross institutional exchange
of funds to create more development space and opportunities for
businesses, so as to promote healthy market development and
competition, and create a more complete consumptivinoement.

() Technical and Research and Development Overview:

Research and development expenses, and technologies or products successfully
developed in the most recent year and up to the publication date the annual

report
Year Research and Research and development
developmenéexpenditure accomplishments
1. Adjustment and new function desi
of STARO 2.0.

2. Set up the fun Market website to me
customer demands for digital
collectibles.

2022 NTD 484778 million

3. Chibi Marukachan mobile game
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(complet cycle experience version)
development.

AN

. Pili MVP core gameplay demo versig

1. Chibi Marukachan mobile game (CE
version) development.

2. Devel op Anovel w
systemo by adopt

Q1 NTD 160031 million Response Theqry, and mintroduce

2023 program analysis and big data
crosscomparison.

3. Research and development

production of Vtubers and virtual

idols.

(IV)  Long-term and Shofterm Business Development Plans

1. Shortterm business development plan

(1) Heavyweight IP game operatis: Market oriented and player
demandcentered along with the diversified segmentation strategy,
guality game contents will be introduced.

(2) In-depth development of ACGN@ammerce market: JollyBuy
Digital of Gamania Group will continue to enhance thesumption
model that combines shopping with game interaction, develop
differentiated business models specific to digitization, accelerate the
big data application within the Gro@pecosystem resources, realize
reaktime personalized product recommendatiand continuously
focus on the products loved by the ACGN community as the key
product category, exclusively promote virtual and real consumption
through innovative services, and drive new customer traffic to further
increase the business momentum ofniea!.

(3) Deploying scenarios for fpayment application: GAMA PAY of
Gamania Group will prioritize the consumption channels for young
and gaming communities, actively negotiate with partners from all
fields, develop a diverse range of services and apiplicacenarios,
deeply cultivate higlirequency payment scenarios, continue to
expand key channels for user preferences, and strengthen the ability
of beanfun! ecosystem to localize, while creating fast, convenient, and
secure payment tools.

(4) Expandinghe market share of beanfun! and maximizing its influence
on a mobile life: The mobile life platform beanfun! App introduced by
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the Group demonstrates the momentum and membership size built
over the years in the transformation into a seelsed enterprise,

which are the niche for the growth of beanfun!. Beanfun! will

continue to develop and interface new contents and services and
deepen the management over user needs to secure its presence on the
mobile life portal market in Taiwan.

2. Longterm business delopment plan
The Group will continue to grow towards a comprehensive-bas®d
enterprise. In the future, besides growing further each of its businesses,
including gaming, payment,-@mmerce, media, and digital business
solutions for diversified deploymg& the Groups operations will be
focused on the beanfun! mobile life platform, invest in resources to
develop self IP, and through business integration and connection,
comprehensively delve into daily use, flip usage experience, innovate
group capacityleverage group synergy, build a fully ecological network
enterprise, and build a fully ecological network platform called beanfun!
connective group network ecosystem to lay the foundation for sustainable
growth.

[I. Market and Production/Distribution Overv iew:
) Market Analysis

1. Areas of sales (provision) of key products (services)
Unit: NTD 1,000

Year 2021 2022
Item Value Value Value %
Taiwan 9,659,101 85% 9,542,561 84%
Asia and othery  1,713,37¢ 15% 1,845,454 16%
Total 11,372,47 100% 11,388,02 100%
Source: 2022 consolidated financial statement audited and certified by
CPAs.

Gamania is a pioneer in the gaming industry of Taiwan. It started the era of
online games in 2000 and introduced the first fee collection model
featuring free download dhe tools in P05. Al have been trendetting

and received well among the consumers. Gamania has also been listed as
one of thefiTop 100 Companies for the Young Generatitor consecutive

years. The Gamania Group, not only demonstrating robust caebiliti

the gaming field, has also been proactively transforming itself. In 2019, it
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built the first local mobile life portafibeanfund in Taiwan that combines
games, points, media, mobile payment, ancommerce in one while
trying to become the first comghensive welbbased enterprise in Taiwan.

2. Market share

(1)

Game market (including end games, mobile games and web games):
According to statistics, the global gaming market size reached USD
320 billion in 2022, with an annual growth rate6®6, and is egected

to grow to USD482 billion in 2027; the gaming market size in
Taiwan for that year was approximately USD7 billion, with an
annual growth of 9%, and is expected to grow to ZSPbillion in
2027.

Global gaming markét revenue scale
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Source: Stista; compilation by the Company
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(2)

®3)

Taiwan gaming markét revenue scale
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Source: Statista; compilation by the Company

E-Commerce:

According to the Department of Statistics and other data, in 2022, the
online sales volume of the domesticc@nmerce ath mail order
industry reached NT$281.8 billion, an annual growth of 8%, and
e-commerce transactions accounted for approximately 9.5% of the
overall retail market. According to statistics, thecaammerce
penetration rate in Taiwan in 2021 was 10.8%, contparel 3.7% in
Singapore, 24.2% in China, and 27.8% in South Korea. The domestic
e-commerce market still has a great potential and room for growth,
and it is expected that the penetration rate in Tasvacommerce
market will have a chance to exceed 202b30.

Mobile payment market:

According to the statistics of the Financial Supervisory Commission,
in 2022, there were approximately 5.458 billion non cash payment
transactions, with a total amount of approximately NT$6.17 trillion;
The cumulative t@l number of users of electronic payment accounts
is approximately 21.88 million, and the actual transaction amount for
the year is approximately NT$111.4 billion. According to the statistics
of the Financial Supervisory Commission, the cumulative total
number of users of Gamania Pay under the Group is about 490,000,
and the actual transaction amount for the whole year of 2022 is about
NT$5.3 billion.
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User rate of mobile payments in all countries

100%:

87%
75%
50% 46%
25%
0%
China South Korea u.s. Japan Taiwan

Source: Taiwan Netwé Information Center (2022); compilation by
the Company

3. Future supply and demand and growth on the market

(1)

Game market:

According to statistics, the overall global gaming market size reached
USD319.9 billion in 2022, with the mobile gaming marketesi
reaching USD274.7 billion, accounting for over 50% of the overall
gaming market and still the fastest growing part, and it is expected to
grow to USD419.7 billion by @7. By 2027, the gaming market
revenue will increase to USD482.4 billion, with a cauapd annual
growth rate of 8.56% between 2022 and 2027.

The overall gaming market size in Taiwan in 2022 was USD1.7
billion and it will grow to USD2.2 billion in 2027, with the mobile
gaming market accounting for nearly 70% of the overall gaming
market.
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Global gaming markét revenue scale
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E-commerce market: According to eMarketer, an international
institution, the global market scale ecEemmerce grows rapidly by
12.2% to USDB.5 trillion in 2022, and the 2025 scale is expected at
USD?7.4 trillion. According to the Department of Statistics, MOEA,
the online sales market size of Taiilaecommerce and mail order
industry reached NT$281.8 billion in 2022, an annual increase of 8%
In 2022, the proportion ofFeommerce transactions in Taiwan
overall retail sales was about 9.5%, and it is expected that the
proportion of ecommerce transactions will grow to 11.7% 028. At
that time, the overall-eommerce market size is estintte grow to
NT $652.4 bilion.
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Global ecommerce market size 2020~2025

Retail Ecommerce Sales Worldwide, 2020-2025
trillions, % change, and % of total retail sales

$7.391
$6.767

0% [l 100x | o2%

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

M Retail ecommerce sales [l % change M % of total retail sales

Note: inciudes products or services ordered using the internet wio any device, regardiess of
the methoed of payment or fulfillment; excludes travel and event tickets, payments such as bill
pay, taxes or money transfers, food services and drinking place sales, gambling and other
vice good sales

Source: eMarketer, Jan 2022

272408 aMarketer | Insiderintalligence.com

Soure: eMarketer (2021)
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(3) Mobile payment: Accordintp Worldpay, an international institution,
the proportion of rpayment in online and offline sales was 49% and
29% respectively in 2021, and is expected to increase to 53% and
39% respectively in@5. The ratios of online and offline mobile
payments in ta AsiaPacific region were, respectively, 69% and 44%,
in 2021 and they are expected to grow further to 72% and 56%,
respectively in 2025, turning it to be the region with the highest ratios
of mobile payments in the world. According to fil@iwan Consunme
Digital Finance and Payment Trends Suivejeased by MasterCard
at the end of 2022, more than 70% of Taiwanese people preferred
using digital payment tools for daily consumption. In the past year,
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one out of every ten consumers stopped using caspagrent tool,
indicating the high dependence of Taiwanese people on digital
payments. In 2022, more than 68% of consumers registered at least
one brand new payment wallet, while the number of consumers who
registered more than 10 payment wallets increfigedimes

compared to that in 2021.

Global Payment Methods Analysis 262025

Source: Worldpay (2021)
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Asia-Pacific Payment Methods Analysis 202025

Source: Worldpay (2021)

(4) Media market: According to a survey conducted by the Taiwan
Network Information Center, the 2022 Taiwan Network News, the
main sources of news for the domestic public are not only traditional
fitelevisiord news media (accounting for 38.25%), but also diverse
digital platforms. Among thenfisearch engines or news poréals
account for 19.15%fisocial mediaaccounts for 14.13%, arithstant
messagingaccounts for 12.19%, The total proportion of the three is
45.47%. These results show that people have considerably a high
dependency on online media when internet usage is higplylgro
Hence, related services such as online media will surely bring
essential influence and thereby attract many enterprises to enter the
market in order to build a comprehensive network ecosystem.
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News Access Channels in Taiwan

Digital platforms have surpassed news media to become the main source of news for pe

Digital platforms

News media

50%
38.25%

19.15%
14.13%  42.15%

7.01% 4,799

1.77% 0.44% 0 A8, 1.780%

0%

Search Social Instant YouTube  Television News media Papefform  Broadcast Others No news
engines or media messaging websites or newspapers access

news applications or

portals magazines

Source: Taiwan Network Information Center (2022)

4. Competitive niche and advantageousd disadvantageous factors for future
developments and countermeasures

Gamania has been running the games business for 26 years and become the
world leader of pioneering models. In 2000, we started Ta®vanline
game fashion with our flagship game Lineadgn 2005, we successfully
expanded the categories of gamers with MapleStory through a new
approach featuring free operations, customer positioning, and special
marketing, which still hit a new record i922. h 2014, we launched the
free server versionf the evergreen online game Lineage, which attracted
the registration of over one million members, a new record high. In 2017,
the heavyweight IBBased mobile game Lineage M created numbers of
records in Taiwa® mobile game records. According to App Asnan
international survey institution, Lineage M has been thedmdbhg mobile
game in Taiwan for four consecutive years. All of the above are examples
of Gamani& innovative and flexible strategies. Gamania thinks outside the
box and takes the lead address demand on the market and the needs of
users to be a brave breakthrough pioneer. Its brand new creativity is its
main competitive advantage.

We also fearlessly started a transformation to expand to-fisgreent,
e-commerce, media, and digital corarce sectors to actively transform
into an internet business with an oragiosystem. The transformation
includes: teaming up with international game developers to introduce
heavyweight new games for gamers to enjoy unique new gaming
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experience; capturingthe business opportunities in entertainment
e-commerce through JollyBuy Digital targeted at the ACGN groups to
create an interactive shopping model by integrating with games; fully
penetrating into the consumption of all parts of the daily--fided,
clothing, housing, transportation, education, and entertairmetht
GAMA PAY to develop convenient and safe payment services to develop
convenient and safe payment services closer to the consumption needs of
the digital generation through O20 connection; ademonstrating
influence in respective areas through the media business by mining the
needs of internet users through CONETTER with rich experience in native
digital foundation developed over a dozen years to quickly link up network
resources to increaséet share of voice for partners. In the future, the
Gamania Group will focus its developments on Al, big data and platforms,
and will start with its game users to connect its four major businesses,
namely game, payment;cemmerce and media, and put themetier on

the beanfun! platform. It is expected to form an ecosystem featuring
synergy and sharing of resources with beanfun! in the center.

(1 Important purposes and production processes of main products

1.

Important purposes of main products

We mainly offer gaming service and expand to different business types
including ecommerce, payment, media, and mobile life platform to create
a comprehensive smart lifestyle for consumers.

Production processes of major products: The Company is not in the
producton industry and hence this is not applicable.

() Supply of main raw material¥he Company is not in the production
industry and hence this is not applicable.
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(IV) List of key purchase and sales customers in the most recent two years
1. Names of custmers with 10% or more purchases and the values and ratios of the purchases in any of the past two
years: please also describe the reason for the increase or decrease.
2021 2022 2023 up to the end of the previous quarter
Percentage i Percentage i Percentage in the n
thenet Relationshiy the net  |Relationshif purchases of the |Relationshiy
ltem| Name Value purchases | with the Name Value purchases | with the Name Value current year up to th  with the
throughout th¢  issuer throughout th(  issuer end of the first qarter;  issuer
year (%) year (%) (%)
1 PO1 1,637,37! 25.17 None PO1 1,952,497 30.26 None PO1 604,227 35.74 None
2 P04 1,190,12: 18.3¢ None P04 1,057,24] 16.39 None P04 188,481 11.15 None
Other 3,676,561 56.53 Other 3,442,724 53.35 Other 898,04¢ 53.1% -
Net Net Net 1,690,75¢ 100.0¢ -
6,504,06: 100.0( 6,452,46 100.0d
purchases purchases purchase
2. Names of customers with 10% or more sales and the values and ratios of tireasatesf the past two years: please
also describe the reason for the increase or decrease.
2021 2022 2023 up to the end of the previous quarter
Percentage it ) ) Percentage if ] ) Percentage in the n ) )
Relationshij Relationshiy Relationshiy
the net sales ] the net saleg ] sales of the current ]
ltem| Name Value with the Name Value with the Name Value with the
throughout thg throughout th{ . yearuptotheendd |
issuer issuer : issuer
year(%) year(%) the first quarter (%)
1 S23 2,337,611 20.37 None S23 1,952,91¢ 17.16 None S23 365,21( 12.39 None
Other 9,139,99! 79.63 Other 9,430,02¢ 82.84 Other 2,583,28] 87.61 -
Net sales| 11,477,601 100.0¢ Net sales| 11,382,93f 100.0¢ Net saleg  2,948,49] 100.0¢ -
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(V)  Production volumes/values in tpast two years
Production volumes/values over the past two years
Unit: NTD thousand

Year
Production volum&/ 2022 2021
value
Production Production Production/Productior
Main pro Throughpul volume value Throughpu volume value
(or department)
Onlinegame - - - - - -

Labor - - - - - -

Other - - - - - -

Total - - - - - -

Note: Not applicable because of the nature of the industry.

(VI) Sales volumes/values in the past two years
Sales volumes/values in the past two years

Unit: NTD thousand

Yea 2022 2021

Sales volume/
value

Domestic sales Overseas sale{ Domestic saleg Overseas salg

Main produ
(or department)

Volume | Value | Volume| Value | Volume| Value |Volume| Value

Online game - - - - - - - -

Labor - - - - - - - -

Other - - - - - - - -

Total - - - - - - - -
Note: Not applicable because of the nature of the industry.
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lll . Employees

Year 2021 2022 As of March 31, 202
Manager 179 182 182
Research and
125 160 164
Number of development
employees  Management and
e 780 711 704
distribution
Total 1084 1053 1050
Mean age 35.66 35.87 36.10
Mean years in service 5.43 5.22 5.21
PhD degree 0.18% 0.09% 0.10%
Ratio of Master 0s | 1550% | 17.24% 17.53%
education| Bachel or 6 69.01% 66.58% 66.27%
distribution|  college degree 9.13% 9.61% 9.79%
High School and Beloy 6.18% 6.48% 6.31%

IV. Information on Environmental Protection Expenditure
Any losses (including compensations and violations of environmental protection laws
found in environmental audits with information regarding date of sanctions, ticket
number, regulations breached, contents of breach, and contents of sanction) due to
pollution in the most recent year and until the date of annual report publication, and
disclose the estimated amount at present and in the fatu countermeasures: None

V. Labor-Management Relations
) Employee Welfare Measures

1. Employee group insurance
Group insurance: The Company arranges group insurance for all employees,
with the coverage including life insurance, accident and injisyrance,
hospitalization and medical care insurance, cancer insurance and medical
insurance for accidents.

2. Employee healthcare program:
Employees are entitled to one health checkup at a contract hospital or
health check institution.

3. Cafeteria and lsure center:
We have a cafeteria for employees to enjoy food with daily free points, and
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a free fitness center for employees to exercise round the clock.

4. Employee benefits:
All Gamania employees are entitled to have their children studying at the
Compalry affiliated kindergarten with partial sponsorship, staff discounts
for online game points, free parking, Gamania branded merchandise,
unlimited autonomous leave, 3 days of paid employee travel leave, paid
birthday leave, 8 days of paid pregnancy chedkupemale employees, 8
days of paid paternity leave and 5 days of pregnancy checkup
accompaniment leave for male employees and maternity leave up to 8 days,
paid pandemic care leave, paid pandemic vaccination leave, and other
benefits including departmedinner allowance, employee travel allowance,
employee club allowance, festival and birthday cash gifts, wedding subsidy,
funeral subsidy, hospitalization consolation fund, childbirth subsidy,
emergency aid subsidy and home cleaning subsidy.

5. Employee asistance program (EPA):
Free psychological counseling (psychological counseling and
finance/medical/legal services) for employees and discounts for
psychological counseling for relatives within a third degree of kinship.

(Il  Continuing education and trang for employees
The Company offers to employees a watjuipped learning environment and a
well-planned education and training framework covering orientation training
for new employees, professional development training, and hierarchical
training (Gamaian). Every year we organize talks and irregular seminars
(Gamania Classroom, Gamania Content) supported wahraing (Gamania
Resources) to implement education and training. We also provide subsidies to
employees to take external training courses.
In 2022, a total of 248 employee training courses were held, and a total of 257
classes with 16,761 hours were organizedanse for 5,362 persons. The total
annual training expenses totaled NT$3,641,874.

No. of classes
. Number of Headcountol__ .
2022 course description opened per _ Traineehourg Expense
courses trainees
course
Organized by the Company |
61 147 3083 100232,148,66
classroom course

Organized by the Company

_ 110 110 2143 4705 310,05(
online course
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No. of classes
L Number of Headcountol__ .
2022 course description opened per _ Traineehourg Expense
courses trainees
course
Organized by an external
institution - external taining 77 136 136 20331,183,157
course
Total 248 393 5362 167613,641,87
() Retirement System and Its Implementation

1. The Company has prepared the Employee Retirement Guidelines as

required by the Labor Standards Act, the Labor Pension Act diogvéo
them.

. Pension contribution:

From July 1, 2005, we established the Pension Contribution Regulations
according to the Labor Pension Act for R@@tionality employees. The
Company sets aside 6% of the monthly salary to be the labor pension for
the pesonal accounts of employees with the Labor Insurance Bureau in
accordance with the labor pension system defined in the Labor Pension Act
that employees choose to apply. The payment of the pension fund can be
done on a monthly basis or in a lump sum adogrdo the amount in the
personal retirement account of each employee and the accumulated income.
The employee pension reserve set aside by the Company is under the
supervision of the Committee formed jointly by employees and the
Company. Employees may natcount for less than twthirds of the total
members of the Committee.

. Employees may apply for retirement if:

(1) they have worked for at least 15 years and are 55 years old or older.
(2) they have worked for at least 25 years; or

(3) they have workefbr at least 10 years and are 60 years old or older.

For spontaneous retirement, the employee shall submifiEngployee
Retirement Application Fortnone month prior to the scheduled date of
retirement. Once it is approved by the supervisor with decisiaking
power, it will be processed by the Human Resources Unit. Employees
applicable under the new system who are 60 years old or older and have
worked for at least 15 years may apply with the Labor Insurance Bureau
and claim the pension fund on a montbigsis. For those who have not
worked for 15 years, the pension fund shall be claimed in a lump sum.
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(IV) Labormanagement agreementine.

(V) Respective Measures to Protect the Rights of Employees

1. Protective measures in the workplace:

(1)

(2)

3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

Fire drills and fire prevention workshops are organized on a yearly
basis targeting in particular new hires. The Fire Prevention Plan is
prepared and participants are assigned tasks during the drill and used
actual firefighting equipment. Meanwhile, disaster preventisn
precisely enforced in order to protect the safety of employees. Fire
drills and demonstrations take place from time to time as required by
the Fire Department, too, to further perfect fire prevention in the
workplace.

Filters for the drinking watedispensers in offices are replaced on a
guarterly basis and water quality is tested and the water tower is
cleaned each year to ensure quality of drinking water and protect the
health of employees.

There are monthly preventions against cockroachesguitbes, and
mice and also quarterly thorough preventions against vectors in office
areas to ensure a clean workplace for our people.

The carpets are extensively cleaned periodically on a yearly basis in
order to ensure a comfortable environment.

The airconditioning system is cleaned up periodically on a yearly
basis and the filter for the energy recovery ventilatoMER is

replaced periodically to ensure the quality of air at work.

There are multiple janitors to take charge of cleaning fipesf and
restrooms regularly on a daily basis to keep the workplace
comfortable.

2. Personal safety protection:

(1)

(@)

3)

(4)

(5)

Each year employees are entitled to one complete and comprehensive
health checkup to safeguard their health.

Full-time inrhouse nurseare hired to take care of employees.

A cafeteria and a fitness room are established at the GAMA Island
with in-house chefs and fithess coaches to provide employees with
total health solutions from diet to exercise.

Medical doctors come to the Conmya each month to answer
guestions so that colleagues may have their health concerns addressed.
Labor Insurance, National Health Insurance, group insurance, and
liability insurance are provided. Additionally, travel insurance is
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(V1)

arranged for employeesi@ business trip to provide employees with
more bodily and health coverage when they are working hard for the
Company.

(6) The Safety and Space Management Department is set up to monitor
the workplace around the clock for a safe and assuring workplace.
Security guards control access around the clock and make the rounds
through floors regularly to check blind spots that cannot be picked up
by surveillance cameras.

(7) The whole building is the exclusive office space for the Group and
employees are given libed access that is set as needed by the
Company.

Losses suffered because of |labbmnagement disputes in the most
recent year up to the publication date of the annual report (including
violations of the Labor Standards Act with labor inspection figdj

the date of punishment, punishment reference number, article of the
law or regulation violated, description of the violation and the
punishment contents), and disclose estimated values now and whicl
are likely to occur in the future, and countermeasur

The Company has been valuing employee welfare and theradotaigement
relations have been quite harmonious; no labanagement disputes have
occurred. The same principle will continue to be followed in the future for more
robust and harmonious laboranagement relations, which is believed to be
able to eliminate labemanagement issues. Therefore, no losses have been
incurred because of labaranagement disputes.

VI. Cybersecurity Management

(1)

Framework of cybersecurity risk management

The framework of cybersecurity risk management aims to (1) provide
appropriate management for the cybersecurity risks in operations, (2) encourage
the management and operational teams to understand the impact of risk
exposure, (3) realize better business resiliencelegal compliance, and (4)
provide strict decisiomaking and planning processes. Cybersecurity risk
management is a continuous process for analyzing cybersecurity risks in
operations and assessing risk impacts and establishing appropriate protection
mechaisms, monitoring measures, and responses to minimize losses and
maximize profit for corporate operations.
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Q)

Based on the Compa@sybusiness goals and strategies and in compliance with
the relevant regulatory requirements, the cybersecurity risk management
framework (as shown below) establishes corresponding cybersecurity policies,
deploys cybersecurity protection, fixes vulnerabilities and loopholes, captures
abnormal information, and addresses emergency events to optimize
cybersecurity management and enssgevice and business continuity through
the risk management cycle.

Under the framework of the risk management cycle featuring risk assessment,
policy amendment, protection deployment, risk monitoring, and security
reinforcement, we constantly keep up witiformation security trends and
make rolling review of the current management and protection practices in
response to changes in the information service, macro environment, legitimacy,
and various impacts in different tingpace to ensure appropriate rgbntrol

for information system operations and network services.

Board of

Directors

Chief Executive
Officer

Top Information Security

Information Security
Management

Committee

l
Headquarters . : Information Security Threat Analysis
(Information Business Units Technology Team Team

Service Division)

Department Chiefs Full-time or Formed by systems Domestic automated
Administer designating chief security certified Al information security
Group-related information security practitioners protection services
information security officer Assist in information Threat analysis and
management. Administer security protection monitoring and attack
Group-related mechanisms, warning
information security information security
management. monitoring, and
information security
event handling.

Cybersecurity policy

The management goals in the cybersecurity policy include: (1) maintain the
operation continuity of all information systems, (2) prevent hackers and virus
from intrusion and damage, (3) prevent maduced or willful improper and
illegal uses, (4) prevent confidential and sensitive information from breaching,
(5) prevent human negligence and accidents, and (5) maintain operational
environment security, with specifcontents as follows:

126



1. Organization and division of responsibility
Coordinate and consult policy planning and resources dispatch for
information security and handle information security management within
the Company. Establish the Information Security @Gottee under
headquarters chaired by the CEO with members from all departments to
hold meetings regularly and administer matters related to information
services within headquarters.

2. Management and training for personnel

(1) Security and competence ass@ent shall be appropriately carried out
for the maintenance and management of the business information
systems/network.

(2) Employees shall follow the job specifications and related information
security regulations, and shall not leak trade secrets todyusr use
them improperly.

(3) Arrange periodic and appropriate training of information security for
employees to understand the importance of information security and
all kinds of security risks, so as to enhance the emplogeeseness
of informationsecurity.

3. Management of computer systems

(1) Operating procedures and regulations for computer systems are
established to ensure the empldgeeorrect and secure operation and
use of computers. Necessary virus protection and threat monitoring
mechanism are built, procedures for handling information security
incidents are established, and division of responsibility is defined to
ensure proper management and responses to any inforraationity
incidents.

(2) Comply with the relevant regulatory requirents and conform to the
regulations of the relevant licensing agreements for the operating
systems and applications installed and used on computer systems.
Maintain data protection and make backup of important data, software
periodically to ensure routireperational security management.

(3) Ensure the security of electronic data interchange and the methods of
sender and recipient authentication to ensure data integrity,
availability and confidentiality.

4. Management of networks
(1) The operational enviranent shall be built in accordance with the
planning of secure network architecture and necessary protection and

127



anomaly monitoring mechanisms shall be deployed with respect to the
operational risk assessment to ensure the security of network data
transmisgn, protection of network connections, and prevent
unauthorized system access.

(2) Appropriate security protection (e.g., SPF, SPAM, etc.) shall be
installed on the email system to lower the risk of malicious and
phishing emails and spam, and maintaindteglit ratings of the email
service.

(3) A warning system shall be established to alert network and system
administrators of specific network security incidents and obtain timely
warning signals, so as to facilitate effective prevention and thereby
reducenetwork security incidents.

Management of system access
Establish secure and appropriate specific privileged access control and

general user access control for information systems, adopt the periodic
change of complex passwords, and implement -bigimgth user
authentication to prevent credential stuffing attacks and unintended use.

Development, maintenance and management of systems
Business units shall determine the security requirements of development

and online maintenance and operation of apfibn systems based on the
requirements as found in the risk assessment of corresponding services.
The business responsible units shall propose various controls, privileges,
and the scope of use, which are included in the system planning and design
specifications after verification.

. Security management of system operation environments

(1) Network and information equipment shall be accommodated in
appropriate locations based on the service requirements and the
requirements for power supply, fire preventiaccess control, and
surveillance in order to lower risk from environment insecurity and
reduce the opportunities for unauthorized access.

(2) An asset list shall be established and maintained, the interval and
instructions for maintenance and servicallshe defined according to
the characteristics of equipment, maintenance shall be implemented or
replacement/retirement shall be reviewed for equipment periodically.

Business backup and recovery plan
(1) To ensure business continuity of important ssggiafter an accident,
failure, or damage of systems and facilities, a \delleloped plan for
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maintenance, backup and recovery shall be established.

(2) The system backup and recovery plan shall be tested and drilled at
least once a year to ensure plafe@iveness and relevant personnel
are updated with the latest plan.

(3) The backup and recovery plan shall be update from time to time in
respect of the adjustments to and changes in business, organization,
and personnel to maximize the benefits of projegestment, and
ensure the continuing effectiveness of the plan.

(II'y  Specific management plans

1.

Establishment of a cybersecurity promotion organization

As the Compang top management of cybersecurity, the Information
Security Committee is chaired lfie CEO with members including all
chief officers. A divisioAlevel management unit for information services is
established at headquarters to administer entenpith® information
security management, and professional information security technology
tean is commissioned to provide various required information security
services.

Establishment of a cybersecurity policy and objectives

Related operating and management regulations shall be established
according to the Compaéy information security policyto provide a
reference of related operations or services. These regulations shall include
the handling of information security incidents, outsourcing of information
operations, management of personal computers, management of accounts
and email, database mEgement, management of network systems, and so
on.

Establishment of cybersecurity operating procedures

Information security for operations shall be graded by the nature and risk of

information services. Requirements for necessary information security

inspections shall be established. Information security management shall be
assessed periodically.

Information security inspection of core infocomm systems

Vulnerability scans shall be performed and penetration tests shall be run
periodically. Before a stem goes live, source code scan and security
inspection shall be requested and system vulnerabilities shall be fixed.

Education and training
Arrange internal physical and online information security courses to
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enhance the information security awarenassl consciousness of ICT
administrators and general users.

6. Information security drills
Drills on email social engineering are arranged for employees from time to

time in the year to raise the emplogealert to the malicious links and
virus-containingattachments in emails of unknown sources.

7. International Information Security Management Certification
The Company has introduced the ISO27001 international standard and

obtained the certification, comprehensively regulated and required
information secuty. By optimizing and standardizing management
processes, we have implemented physical security, technical security and
management security to improve information security control capabilities
and the overall security of networks and systems.

8. Continuaus improvement of cybersecurity
Periodically report the performance of information security management to

the Information Security Committee, top information security management,
to ensure the adequacy and effectiveness of the information security
managemet system (ISMS). Arrange internal and outsourced information
security audits periodically, take corrective action for found detected
defects, and follow up the improvement periodically.

(IV) Resources for cybersecurity management

1. High-level informationsecurity meetings
Two Information Security Committee meetings chaired by the CEO shall

be held each year to review the performance of information security
management, assess operational risks and related solutions, and review the
progress of the annualformation security projects.

2. Professional technology resources
Each operation team shall assign-tithe responsible personnel or
designate one to two employees to take charge of information security. The
Group®information security team will periodadly run information
security scans and inspections, introduce protection mechanisms, and build
infrastructure for global anomaly monitoring. Additionally, domestic and
international intelligent security defense system to support joint defense
and forensis.

3. Appropriate budgets for information security
In addition to the existing annual maintenance and operation expenses for
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information security mechanisms, information security budgets shall be
planned for the required protection, monitoring, inspecti@nd
international certification of information security management for
information operation, development, and operating systems.

(V) Damage and potential impact caused by material cybersecurity
incidents in the most recent year and up to the publicatada of
annual report, and countermeasures.

Besides implementing security measures such asbaséd group security
settings, virus protection, power user account control, and others from the
internal server, we detect breaches and risk events with tledigent
information security monitoring platform and quickly retrace the impact of
external threats on the Company based on the intelligence.

During 2022 and up to the publication date of annual report, no material
cyberattacks or incidents have occunwddch have caused or may cause

material unfavorable impact on our business and operations, nor have we
involved in any relevant legal affairs or regulatory investigations.
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VII. Important Contracts

As of the date the Annual Report was printed, importantraots of the Company are

as follows:

Contract start an

Contract nature Parties Main contents |Restrictive clause
end dates
The authorized
Software Nexon Korea Valid Software areas include
authorization contra{Corporation authorization Taiwan, Hong
Kong, and Macaag
The authorized
Software Nexon Korea Valid Software areas include
authorization contra{Corporation authorization Taiwan, Hong
Kong, and Macaad
The authoried
Software Nexon Korea Valid Software areas include
authorization contrajCorporation authorization Taiwan, Hong
Kong, and Macaad
The authorized
Software Nexon Korea Valid Software areas include

authorization contra

Corporation

authorization

Taiwan, Hong
Kong, and Macaad

Software
authorization
termination contract

Nexon Korea
Corporaton

Terminated on
February 15, 202

Authorization
termination

Authorization
termination

The authorized

Software NCsoft valid Software areas include
authorization contra{Corporation authorization Taiwan, Hong
Kong, and Macag
The authorized
Software NCsoft valid Software areas include
authorization commactCorporation authorization Taiwan, Hong
Kong, and Macag
The authorized
Software Eyedentity Game Valid Software areas include

authorization contra

Inc.

authorization

Taiwan, Hong
Kong, and Macag
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Six. Financial Overview

|.  Condensed Balance Sheet and Comprehensive Income
Statement of the Past Five Years and Audit Opinions from the
CPAs: As of the date of publication of the annual report, if
there is any recent financial information certified or reviewed

by CPAs, it shall also be disclosed.

(1)

Condensed Balance Sheet and Income Statement

1. Condensed balance she&tonsolidated financial report

Unit: NTD thousant

Financial data in the past five years (note 1) The current year u
Yeal| to
2022 March 31, 2023
Item 2018 2019 2020 2021 Financial Data
(Note 2) (Note 1)
Current assets 5,300,764 4,559,08¢ 4,382,631 5,432,401 5,876,007 6,206,804
Rea_l estate, plants, and 2896,31( 2.857.12] 2.84543( 2,797.26] 2,812,438 2,805210
equipment
Intangible assets 737,46¢ 842,551 1,411,66] 630,744 1,178,39 1,224,13]
Other assets 888,87( 1,001,127 665,161 612,104 520,035 501,80(
Total assets 9,823,41] 9,259,88Y 9,304,89f 9,472,551 10,386,86 10,737,94
Before ] ) 3,938,16¢ 3,954,401
Current distribution 3,787,43] 3,606,07¢ 3,579,60] 3,459,294
liabilities After 4,281,57¢ 4,336,76]  3,938,16¢ 3,954,401
| ( 1 1 1 1 L L L L
distribution 4,861,651 4,150,10¢
Non-current liabilities 877,251 356,413 213,562 161,16¢ 159,734 163,038
Before ) , 4,097,901 4,117,441
Total distribution 4,664,68: 3,962,491 3,793,164 3,620,461
liabilities After , 4,097,901 4,117,441
distribution 5,738,904 4,506,521 4,495,134 4,497,93
Equity attributable to the 472097 4711,09] 4984641 5408 43 5,852,03 6,176,65
owner of the parent compar
Capital stock 1,754,93( 1,754,93( 1,754,93( 1,754,93( 1,754,93¢ 1,754,93¢
Additional paidin capital 1,140,78¢ 1,291,59] 1,352,47] 1,335,16] 1,354,763 1,349,57§
Before . d J 3,181,68: 2,524,411
Retained distribution 2,089,07¢ 1,836,53¢ 2,429,141 2,823,691
earnings After ) 3,181,68! 2,524,411
distribution 1,014,85] 1,292,50¢ 1,727,171 1,946,224
Other equities (199,195 (171,976 (551,904 (505,352 (439,349 (445,724
Treasury stoc (64,623] 0 0 0 0 0
Non-controlling interests 437,75] 586,304 527,083 443,614 436,93( 443,841
Before 515873 5297,39] 5511,73] 585205 028896 6,620,501
Total equity distribution
After | J 6,288,961 6,620,504
distribution 4,084,50¢ 4,753,361 4,809757 4,974,581

Note 1: All the annual financial data listed above have been audited or reviewed and certified by the CPAs.

Note 2: The above proposal for earnings distribution of 2022 was resolved by the Board on March 9, 20p&nHirg
approval of the shareholdéreeeting.
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2. Condensed balance shedmndividual financial report
Unit: NTD thousand

Year Financial data in the past five years (note 1)
2022

ltem 2018 2019 2020 2021 (Note 2)
Current assets 2,523,22( 1,291,58] 1,190,551 1,808,52{ 1,723,27¢
Real estate, plants, a ) 2,623,58(

equipment 2,681,50( 2,665,21( 2,661,09] 2,616,96¢

Intangible assets 80,70( 158,91( 808,911 157,564 733,244
Other assets 2,492,664 2,853,704 2,555,68] 2,676,89( 2,450,58]
Total assets 7,778,08¢ 6,969,40¢{ 7,216,244 7,259,95% 7,530,68¢
Current | Before distribution 2,247,02( 1,995,67¢ 2,114,53% 1,796,44] 1,643,34]
liabilities | After distribution | 3,321,241 2,539,70¢{ 2,816,50{ 2,673,91] 1,643,34]
Non-current liabilities 810,09( 262,639 117,061 55,073 35,311
Total | Before distributior| 3,057,11( 2,258,317 2,231,59¢ 1,851,51¢ 1,678,654
liabilities | After distribution | 4,131,331 2,802,34] 2,933,57( 2,728,984 1,678,654
Share capital 1,754,861 1,754,93¢ 1,754,93¢ 1,754,93¢ 1,754,93(
Additional paidin capital 1,140,78¢ 1,291,591 1,352,47] 1,335,16] 1,354,76]
Retained| Before distribution 2,089,074 1,836,53{ 2,429,14% 2,823,697 3,181,68]
earnings| After distribution | 1,014,85] 1,292,50§ 1,727,17] 1,946,224 3,181,68!
Other equities (199,195| (171,976 (551,904| (505,352] (439,349
Treasury stock (64,623] - - - -
Total | Before distribution 4,720,97¢ 4,711,091 4,984,64¢{ 5,408,43¢ 5,852,03]
equity |After distribution | 3,646,75] 4,167,06] 4,282,674 4,530,97] 5,852,03!

Note 1: All the annual financial data listed above have been audited and certified by the CPAs.

Note 2: The above proposal for earnings distribution of 2022 was resolved by the Board on March 9,
2023 but is pending for approval of the sharehol@erseting.

Note 3: The individual financial report for Q1 2023 was not prepared.
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3. Statement of comprehensive incom@onsolidated financial report
Unit: NTD thousan:

Year

Financial cta in the past five years (note)

The current year

March 31, 2023

up to

Item

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 Financial Data*
Operating income 14,334,94{ 9,681,344 10,443,04] 11,372,47] 11,388,02 3,034,224
Operating gross profit 4,893,91¢ 4,093,15{ 3,968,738 4,757,081 4,682,11 1,266,964
Operating loss or profit 2,042,36¢ 1,260,034 1,137,41% 1,734,09 1,758,561 450,564
Non-operating income and | ] .
expenditure 115,243  (81,627] (71,868] (288,999 (50,114 5,265
Pretax net profit (loss) 2,157,6@| 1,178,401 1,065,54] 1,445,09¢ 1,708,444 455,834
Net profit (loss) of the continuing
operating department for the currq 1 693,98  864,61§  782,32( 1,009,11% 1,278,10] 335,691
term
Losses from discontinued units - - - - - -
Net profit (oss) of current term 1,693,987 864,61¢ 782,32( 1,009,11f 1,278,10] 335,691
Other comprehensive income of ] ]
current term (aftetax net value) (56,296 (7,811] (109,948 35,26€ 72,164 (5,062
Sum of combined profits or losses il j d
of current term 1,637689 856,807 672,374 1,044,38] 1,350,27] 330,629
Net profit attributable to the ownel ] . 1
of the parent company 1,759,97] 887,894 872,494 1,106,28] 1,279,69¢ 336,184
Net profit attributable to ] |
nor-controlling interests (65,988]  (23,277] (90,176] (97,166 (1,589 (494
The sum of comprehensive incom
attributable to the owner of the 1,721,131 877,314 759,827 1,145,33] 1,329,871 329,81(
parent company
Total combined profits or losses
attributable to nostontrolling (83,448 (20,509] (87,450] (100,954 20,400 819
interests
Earnings per share 10.31 5.10 5.00 6.30 7.29 1.92

Note: All the annual financial data listed above have been audited or reviewed and certified by the CPAs.
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4. Statement of comprehensive incomiadividual financal report
Unit: NTD thousand

Yeal Financial data in the last five years (Note 1)
ftem 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Operating income 12,556,27{ 7,011,514 7,42359] 8,285,40! 8,128,58"
Operating gross profit 3,817,97] 2,803,87] 2,613,20¢ 3,324561 3,203,44(
Operating loss or profit 2,320,994 1,325,737 1,024,974 1,651,05! 1,414,73
Norroperating income and | 414 744/ (175,877 15,037 (220,399 112,70(
expenditure
Pretax net profit (loss) 2,206,25¢ 1,149,85f 1,040,017 1,430,65¢ 1527,433
Units of continuing
operationNet profit (loss) of 1,759,971 887,894 872,49¢ 1,106,28] 1,279,69¢
current term
Losses from discontinued i i i i i
units
t';'fr;p“’f't (loss)ofcurrent |4 759971 gg7.808  872,49¢ 1,106.28]  1,279,69¢
Other comprehensive (38,836]  (10,579] (112,674 39,056 50,17¢
income(net after tax)
Sum of combined profits or | 4 251 131 g7731¢ 759,824  1,145,33] 1,329,871
losses of current term
Earnings per share 10.31 5.10 5.0Q 6.30 7.29

Note 1: All the anual financial data listed above have been audited and certified by the CPAs.

Note 2: The individual financial report for Q1 2023 was not prepared.

(1) Names of CPAs for the Past Five Years and Their Audit Opinions
Year of | Name of Accounting ) o
o ) Name of CPA Audit Opinion
certification Firm
] ] ] . Unqualified opinions plus emphasi:
2018 PwC Taiwan Lin, Yi-Fan, Pan, HuLing
matters and other matters
] o ] Unqualified opinion plus other
2019 PwC Taiwan Lin, Yi-Fan, Pan, HuLing
matters
_ o Unqualified opinion plus other
2020 PwC Taiwan Lin, Yi-Fan, YenYu-Fun
matters
_ o Unqualified opinion plus other
2021 PwC Taiwan Lin, Yi-Fan, Yen, YdFun
matters
_ o Unqualified opinion plus other
2022 PwC Taiwan Lin, Yi-Fan, Yen, YdFun
matters
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Financial Analysis of the past Five Yeas
(1

Financial Analysis Consolidated Financial Report

Year (note Financial data in the last five years
The current year uf
Analysis item (note ) 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 | toMarch 31,2023
Financial structure| -aPility to-asset ratio 47.49 4279 40.77 38.27 39.45 38.34
(%) Long term capital to real estate, plg |

and equipment Ratio 208.4¢ 197.88 201.21 214.97 229.29 241.87
Current ratio 139.9¢ 126.43 122.43 157.04 149.21 156.96
Solvency (%)  |Quick ratio 120.71 108.1( 107.10 143.37 137.77 14372
Interest Protection Multiples 857584 6,460.14 8,827.5 21,119.5{ 31,202.2 43,062.64
Receivable turnover ratio (frequency) 8.47 9.02 9.84 11.71 12.69 13.77
Average collection days 43.0¢ 40.4§ 37.09 31.16 28.76 26.5(
Inventory turnover ratio (frequency) 6.04 6.17 5.8 4.36 2.68 3.58
Management ability Payable turnover ratio (frequency) 8.47 9.39 12.35 11.60 10.71 11.06
Average sales days 60.43 59.15 62.93 83.71 136.19 101.99

Real esta, plants and equipment
turnover ratio (times) 5.03 3.34 3.64 4.03 4.06 4.32
Total asset turnover ratio (frequency) 1.56 1.01 1.13 1.21 1.15 1.15
Return on assets (%) 18.6¢ 9.22 8.53 10.81 12.92 12.74
Return on equity%) 40.85 16.54 14.48 17.76 21.05 20.80

N Pretax net profit to paidn capital siz
Profitability o (9 122.95 67.15 60.72 82.34 97.35 25.97
ratio (%)
Net profit rate () 11.82 8.93 7.49 8.87 11.22 11.06
Earnings per share (NT$) 10.31 5.10 5.00 6.30 7.29 1.92)
Cash flow ratio (%) 81.8¢ 24.30 65.20 73.91 62.74 8.92
Cash flow  |Cash flow adequacy ratio (%) 56.82 59.7  114.66 136.12 137.58 126.44
Cash Renvestment ratio (%) 35.81 6.39 34.81 29.53 25.48 5.90
Operating leverge 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Leverage

Financial leverage 1.01 1.01 1.01 1.00 1.00 1.00

Explain the reasons for the changes in respective financial ratios over the most recent two years. (No analysis fshequarétion in
increases/decases falls short of 20%.)

1. Interest coverage ratio: Due to an increase in profits for the period.

2. Return on assets: Due to an increase in thetpagtrofit or loss.
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(1)

Financial Analysis Individual Financial Report

Year (note 1

Financial data in the last five years

Analytical Item (Noté 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Financial |-/20ility -to-asset ratio 39.3( 32.4( 30.97 25.5( 22.29
structure |Long term capital to real

(%) |estate, plants and equipm 206.27 186.62 191.71 20877 224.4(
Ratio
Current ratio 112.2¢ 64.72 56.3( 100.67 104.86

Solvenc . )

(%) Y |Quick ratio 102.0¢ 56.05 50.85 94.37 97.82
Interest Protection Multiplg 10,738.7: 9,243.9¢ 12,014.4] 37,838.2] 102,957.4
Receivable turnovemtio .

(frequency) 13.72 10.49 12.86 11.91 9.48
Average collection days 26.60 34.79 28.38 30.64 38.5(0
|nvent0ry turnover ratio 0.10 0.21 0.36 0.24 0.16
(frequency)

Managemer F;ayable turnover ratio 17.43 11.35 17.03 17.33 14.28

ability  [(requency)

Average sales days 3650.0( 1738.0¢ 1013.8¢ 1520.83 2281.25
Real estate, plants and
equipment turnover ratio 4.65 2.62 2.78 3.13 3.10
(times)
Total asset turnover ratio
(frequency) 1.79 0.95 1.05 1.14 1.10
Return on assets (%) 25.26 12.18 12.40 15.33 17.32
Return on equity (%) 46.87 18.83 18.00 21.29 22.73

... |Pretax net profit to paidn ) i

Profitability | . nital size ratio (%) 125.72 65.52 59.26 81.52 87.04

Net profit rate (%) 14.02 12.66 11.75 13.35 15.74
Earnings peshare (NT$) 10.31 5.10 5.00 6.30 7.29
Cash flow ratio (%) 144.7( 40.10 110.19 108.11 109.05
Cash flow adequacy ratio
Cash flow (g5 62.6S 66.36 110.95 112.31 118.55
Cash Rénvestment ratio
(%) 39.41 5.21 36.92 19.61 33.47
Operating leverage 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Leverage [— -
Financial leverage 1.01 1.01 1.01 1.00 1.00

Explain the reasons for the changes in respective financial ratios over the most recent two years. (No analysi
required if the variation in increasdetreases falls short of 20%.)
1. Interest protection multiples were the result of the decrease in interest expenditure for the current term.
2. Cash reinvestment ratio: Due to a decrease in the net cash flow from operating activities.
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Note*: The calculatioriormula is provided below:

1. Financial structure
(1) Liability -to-asset ratio = total liabilities/ total assets
(2) Long-term funds to fixed assets ratio (net value of shareholder equity long-term liabilities)/
net value of fixed assets.
2. Solvency
() Current ratio Current assets/ Current liabilities.
(2) Quick ratio  (Current assets Inventory  Advance payrants)/Current liabilities.
(3) Interest protection multiples Income tax and net profit before interest/Interest expenditure of
current term
3. Management ability
(1) Receivable (including accounts receivable and receivable notes from operations) tratiover
Net sales value/ mean balance of receivables of each term (including accounts receivable and
receivable notes from operations).
(2) Average collection days 365/Receivable turnover ratio
(3) Inventory turnover ratio  Sales cost/mean inventory
(4) Payable (including accounts payable and payable notes from operations) turnover risligo
sales value/ mean balance of payables of each term (including accounts payable and payable note:
from operations).
(5) Average sales days 365/Inventory turnoveratio
(6) Fixed asset turnover ratio = Net sales value/Mean net value of fixed assets
(7) Total asset turnover ratio = Net sales value/Mean total assets
4. Profitability
(1) Return on assets = [afteax gains and losses + interest X4 rate)]/gross as$s on average
(2) Return on shareholder equity = aftak profit or loss/mean net value of shareholder equity
(3) Net profit rate  After-tax profits and losses/Net sales value
(4) Earnings per share (After-tax net profit ~ Preferred stock dividend)/Weighted average
number of shares already issued
5. Cash flow
(1) Cash flow ratio ~ Net cash flow from operating-avities/Current liabilities
(2) Net cash flow adequacy ratio Net cash flow of operating activities over the past five
years/(capital expenditure + increase in inventorycash dividend) over the past five years.
(3) Cash reinvestment ratio = (net cdlstw from operating activities cash dividends)/(gross value of
fixed assets + lonterm investment + other assets + working capital)
6. Leverage:
(1) Operating leverage (Net operating income Change in operating costs and
expenses)/Operating profit.
(2) Financial leverage Operating profit/(Operating profitinterest expenditure).
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lll. Review Reports of Audit Committee of 2022 Financial Report
Audit Committeé& Audit Report

The Board of Directors have prepared and presented the Co@mparsines

report, financial statements (including individual and consolidated financial
statements) of @22. (PA Lin, Yi-Fan and CPA Yen, Yiun of PwC Taiwan have
audited the financial statements and issued an audit report accordingly. The
abovementioned Businas Report, Financial Statements, and Proposal on
Distribution of Earnings have been reviewed by the Audit Committee and no
inconsistency has been found. Therefore, according to applicable requirements of the
Securities and Exchange Act and the Company Aadg reported as above. Your

review and approval are cordially requested.

Gamania Digital Entertainment Co., Ltd.

Convener of Audit Committee:

March 9, 2023
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V. 2022 Financial Report

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS™ REPORT

PWCR 22000549

To the Board of Directors and Sharcholders of Gamania Digital Entertainment Co., Ltd.

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Gamania Digital Entertainment Co.,
Litd. and its subsidiaries (the “Group™) as at December 31, 2022 and 2021, and the related consolidated
statements of comprehensive income, of changes in equity and of cash flows for the years then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting

policies.

In our opinion, based on our audits and the audit reports of other aunditors (refer to the other matter
section), the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at December 31, 2022 and 2021, and its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with the
“Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers” and the International
Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards, IFRIC Interpretations, and SIC
Interpretations as endorsed by the Financial Supervisory Commission.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with the “Regulations Governing Auditing and Attestation of
Financial Statements by Certified Public Accountants™ and Standards on Auditing of the Republic of
China. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors *responsibilities
Sfor the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the Norm of Professional Ethics for Certified Public Accountant of the
Republic of China, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our opinion.
Key audit matters

Key audit matters arc those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our

audit of the consolidated financial statements. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
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of the consolidated financial statements as a whole and, in forming our opinion thereon, we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Estimation of revenue recognition of online and mobile games revenue

Description

Refer to Note 4(27) for accounting policies on revenue recognition, Note 5(2) for the critical accounting

estimates and assumptions and Note 6(23) for the details of accounting applied on revenue recognition.

Gamania Digital Entertainment Co., Ltd. (the “Company™) and the subsidiary, Gamania Digital
Entertainment (H.K.) Co., Ltd., are primarily engaged in providing online and mobile game services.
The game players purchase game stored-value cards or value-added to play the game or exchange for
virtual items. The Company and the subsidiary, Gamania Digital Entertainment (H.K.) Co., Ltd.,
recognise receipt of payments for game stored-value card purchases or value-added by players as
“contract liability”, and recognises revenue over the period of the service or the estimated delivery period
of the virtual items when the game stored-value cards or value-added is used for the purchase of service
or virtual items, respectively.

The estimation of the virtual items delivery period, which is the same as the expected users’ relationship
period, is based on historical data on item consumption and item transfer by management. The Company
has implemented processes and controls to develop and periodically review thesc estimates. The
information of stored-value and value-added was collected by computer system. Given that the Company
has many transactions of game revenue and the deferral of virtual items and the estimation of users’
relationship period involve management's subjective judgment, we consider the estimation of
recognition of online and mobile games revenue and contract liability as a key audit matter.

How our audit addressed the matter

We performed the following audit procedures on the above key audit matter:

A.  Assecssed and tested the relevant internal controls over revenue recognition for online and mobile
games revenue.

B. Tested on a sample basis the consumption information gencrated from the Company’s data
collection systems and verified against the consumption report provided by the Company’s

accountant.

C. Tested on a sample basis the virtual items information generated from the Company’s data
collection systems and verified against the advance receipts as shown in the trial balance sheet
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provided by the Company’s accountant.

D. Tested on a sample basis the expected users’ relationship periods as reflected in the data collection
systems, and compared with expected consumption based on the Company’s accounting policy.

Impairment assessment of goodwill

Description
Refer to Notes 4(18) and (19) for accounting policies on goodwill impairment, Notes 6(12) and (14) for

details of goodwill, and Note 5(2) for the uncertainty of accounting estimates and assumptions in relation
to goodwill.

Goodwill arising from the merger of the Company with NOWnews Network Co., Ltd. and Digicentre
Company Limited is material to the financial statements and the projected future cash flows of the
expected recoverable amount under the valuation model adopted in the impairment assessment of
goodwill was estimated based on management’s subjective judgement and expectation on the future

operations. Thus, we consider the assessment of goodwill impairment a key audit matter.

How our audit addressed the matter

We performed the following audit procedures relative to the above key audit matter:

A. Assessed whether the valuation models adopted by the Group are reasonable for the industry,

environment and the valued assets of the Group;

B. Confirmed whether the expected future cash flows adopted in the valuation model are in agreement

with the budget provided by the cash-generating units;

C. Assessed the appointed external appraisers in conformity with the rules of qualification and
independence, and evaluated the reasonableness of material assumptions, such as expected growth

rates, operating profit margin and discount rates, by:

(a) Reviewing the appraisal method and calculation formulas used by the independent appraisal

expert.
(b) Comparing the expected growth rate and operating profit margin with historical data;
(c) Reviewing the discount rate and comparing similar return on similar assets ratio in the market.

D. Compared the recoverable value and book value of each cash-generating unit in order to assess the

reasonableness of the book value.
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Other matter — Reference to the audits of other auditors

As described in Notes 4(3) and 6(8), we did not audit the financial statements of certain subsidiaries and
investments accounted for under the equity method with were audited by other auditors. Therefore, our
opinion expressed herein, insofar as it relates to the amounts included in respect of these subsidiaries
and associates, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors. Total assets of the subsidiaries
amounted to NT$2,157,183 thousand and NT$1,700,468 thousand, constituting 21% and 18% of
consolidated total assets as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively, and operating revenue was
NT$2,825,788 thousand and NT$2,469,898 thousand, constituting 25% and 22% of consolidated total
operating revenue for the years then ended, respectively. The balance of investment accounted for under
equity method amounted to NT$56,856 thousand, constituting 1% of consolidated total assets as at
December 31, 2021, and other comprehensive loss accounted for under equity method was (NT$83,433)
thousand, constituting (8%) of consolidated total comprehensive income for the year then ended.

Other matter — Parent company only financial reports

We have audited and expressed an unqualified opinion with other matter section on the parent company
only financial statements of Gamania Digital Entertainment Co., Ltd. as at and for the years ended
December 31, 2022 and 2021.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the consolidated financial

statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by
Securities Issuers, and the International Financial Reporting Standards, IFRIC Interpretations, and SIC
Interpretations as endorsed by the Financial Supervisory Commission, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Auditors’ responsibilities for the andit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements

as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’

report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee

that an audit conducted in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China will

always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and

are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to

influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China, we exercise

professional judgment and professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

1.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the recasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cecase
to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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6. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal

control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complicd with relevant

cthical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of

doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Lin, Yi-Fan Yen, Yu-Fang
For and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers, Taiwan
March 10, 2023

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are not intended to present the financial position and results of
operations and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in countries and jurisdictions other
than the Republic of China. The standards, procedures and practices in the Republic of China governing the review of such
financial statements may differ from those generally accepted in countries and jurisdictions other than the Republic of China.
Accordingly, the accompanying consolidated financial statements and independent auditors’ review report are not intended
for use by those who are not informed about the accounting principles or auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic
of China, and their applications in practice.
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GAMANIA DIGITAL ENTERTAINMENT CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Asggets Notes AMOUNT % AMOUNT Yo
Current assets

1100 Cash and cash equivalents 6(1) § 3,737,316 36 % 3,418,896 36
1136 Financial assets at amortised cost - 6(7)and 8

current 120,204 1 88,4463 1
1150 Notes receivable, net 6(2) 1L - 752 -
1170 Accounts receivable, net 6(2) 785,366 8 876,123 g
1180 Accounts receivable - related parties, 7

net 20,651 - 11,341 -
1200 Other receivables 6(3) 532,057 5 260,489 3
1210 Other receivables - related parties 7 2,571 - 2,214 -
1220 Current income tax assets 24,341 - 21,049 -
130X Inventories 6(4) 125,927 2 122,582 1
1410 Prepayments 6(5) 321,577 3 352,026 4
1470 Other cumrent assets 8 202,078 2 278,466 3
11X¥X Total current assets 5,876,002 57 5,432,401 57

Non-current assets

1510 Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss - non-current 15,000 - - -
1517 Financial assets at fair value through 6(6)

other comprehensive income - non-

current 117,581 1 198,626 2
1550 Investments accounted for under 6(8)

equity method 135,404 1 121,309 1
1600 Property, plant and equipment 6(9) and 8 2,812,438 27 2,797,267 30
1755 Right-of-use assets 6(10) 73,033 1 85,5358 1
1780 Intangible assets 6(12) 1,178,350 1L 630,744 7
1840 Deferred income tax assets 6(29) 96,886 1 139,523 1
1900 Other non-current assets 6(13) 81,231 1 57,107 L
15XX Total non-current assets 4,510,863 43 4,040,114 43
IXXX  Total assets $ 10,386,865 100§ 9,472,515 100

{Continued)
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GAMANIA DIGITAL ENTERTAINMENT CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BATL ANCE SHEETS

DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

December 31, 2022

December 31, 2021

Liabilities and Equity AMOUNT % AMOUNT %
Current liabilities
2100 Short-term borrowings 6(15) 91,760 1 100, 164 L
2130 Current contract liabilities 6(23) 379,034 4 385,016 4
2170 Accounts payable 015,362 0 564,127 6
2180 Accounts payable - related parties 7 1,572 - 7,187 -
2200 Other payables 6(16) 2,217,043 21 1,314,602 19
2220 Other payables - related parties 7 351,676 3 158,584 2
2230 Current income tax liabilities 158,773 2 225,187 2
2280 Current lease liabilities 26,385 - 28,663 -
2320 Long-term liabilities, current portion 6(17) - - 80,000 1
2399 Other current liabilities 95,663 1 G4, 764 1
21XX Total current liabilities 3,938,168 38 3,456,204 36
Non-current liabilities
2570 Deferred income tax liabilities 6(29) 89,012 1 66,398 1
2580 Lease liabilities - non-current 47 718 - 66,004 L
2600 Other non-current liabilities 22,105 - 28,766 -
25XX Total non-current liabilities 159,735 1 161,168 2
2XXX Total liabilities 4,067,503 39 3,620,462 38
Equity attributable to owners of
parent
Share capital 6(19)
3110 Common stock 1,754,835 17 1,754,936 18
Capital surplus 6(20)
3200 Capital surplus 1,354,763 13 1,335,163 14
Retained earnings 6(21)
3310 Legal reserve 488,103 5 378,451
3320 Special reserve 505,352 5 551,904
3350 Unappropriated retained earnings 2,188,227 21 1,893,337 20
Other equity interest 6(22)
3400 Other equity interest 439 348) 4y { 505,352) ( 5)
31X Equity attributable to owners of
the parent 5,852,032 57 5,408,439 57
36XX Non-controlling interest 436,930 4 443 614 5
INXX Total Equity 6,258,962 61 5,852,053 62
Significant contingent liabilities and 9
unrecorded contract commitments
Significant events after the balance 11
sheet date
3X2X Total liabilities and equity 10,386,865 100 9,472,515 100

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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GAMANIA DIGITAL ENTERTAINMENT CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

{(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars, except for earnings per share data)

Years ended December 31,

2022 2021
Items Notes AMOUNT % AMOUNT %
4000  Operating revenue 6(22)(23) and 7 § 11,388,021 100 11,372,477 100
5000  Operating costs 6{4)(28)and 7 ( 6,705,910 { 58y ( 6,615,392) ( 58)
5950  Gross profit 4 682,110 41 4,757,085 42
Operating, expenses 6(28) and 7
6100 Selling expenses ( 1,042,057 ¢ EAN 1,208 ,886) 11
6200 General and administrative expenses ( 1,384,446 { 123 ¢ 1,352,756) ¢ 12y
6300 Research and development expenses ( 484,778) { D 360, 814) ¢ E)]
6450 Expected credit impairment loss 12(2) { 2,267 - 70,534y ¢ 1y
6000 Total operating expenses ( 2,823 548y { 260 ( 3,022,990) { 2D
6900  Operating income 1,758,562 15 1,734,095 15
Non-operating income and expenses

7100 Interest income 6(24) 20,899 - 3,306 -
7010 Other income 6(25) 19,627 - 12,210 -
7020 Other gaing and losses 6(26) ( 54,713 - 180,021 ¢ 1y
7050 Finance costs 6(27) ( 5,493) - ( 6,875) -
7060 Share of loss of associates and joint  6(8)

ventures accounted for under

equity method ( 30,434y - 117,619) ¢ D
7000 Total non-operating income and

expenses ( 50,114y - ( 2858,999) { 23
7900  Profit before income tax 1,708,448 15 1,445,096 13
7950 Income tax expense 6{29) { 430,341 ¢ 4y ( 435,681 ¢{ 43
8200  Profit for the year $ 1,278,107 11 1,009,115 9
(Continued)
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GAMANIA DIGITAL ENTERTAINMENT CO.. LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2022 AND 2021
{(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars, except for earnings per share data)

Years ended December 31,

Items

2022

2021

AMOUNT

%

AMOUNT

%

8311

8316

8320

8349

8310

8361

8370

8399

8360

8300

8500

8610
8620

8710
8720

9750
9850

Other comprehensive income, net
Components of other comprehensive
income that will not be reclassified
to profit or loss
Actuarial gain on defined benefit 6(18)
plan
Unrealised (loss) gain on 6(6)
investments in equity instruments
at fair value through other
comprehensive income
Share of other comprehensive (loss) 6(22)
income of associates and joint
ventures accounted for using the
equity method that will not be
reclassified to profit orloss
Income tax related to components of 6{29)
other comprehensive income that
will not be reclassified to profit or
loss
Other comprehensive (loss)
income that will not be
reclasgified to profit or loss
Components of other comprehensive
income that will be reclassified to
profit or loss
Financial statements translation
differences of foreign operations
Share of other comprehensive
income of associates and joint
ventures accounted for under
equity method that will be
reclassified to profit or loss
Income tax relating to the 6(29)
components of other
comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income
(loss) that will be reclassified to
profit or loss
Total other comprehensive income
for the year
Total comprehensive income for the
year
Profit (loss) attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interest

Comprehensive income (loss)
attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interest

Eamings per share ( in dollars) 6(29)
Basic earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share

10,765

53,330y

313

2.153)

5,108

58,654

157

1,022)

45.031)

62,847

116,791

11,996

11,592)

32,607)

4,678

117,165

27,629

72,164

35,268

1,350,271

12

1.044 383

1,279,696
1,58%)

11

1,106,281
97,166) (

1.278.107

11

1.006 115

1,326,871
20,400

12

1,145,337
100,954) (

1,350,271

12

1,044 333

7,20

7.17

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Motes

2021
Balance at January 1, 2021
Profit (loss) for the year
Cther comprehensive income (loss) for the year
Total comprehensive income (loss)
Appropriations of 2020 retained earnings 6(21)
Legal reserve
Special reserve
Cash dividends
Change in equity of assoriates and joint ventures  6(8)
accounted for under equity method
6(31)
6(31)

Change in ownership interest in subsidiaries
Changes in nen-controlling interest

Disposal of investments in equity instruments at
fair value through other comprehensive income
Balance at December 31, 2021
2022
Balance at January 1, 2022
Profit (loss) for the year
Cther comprehensive income (loss) for the year
Total comprehensive income (loss)
Appropriations of 2021 retained earnings 6(21)
Legal reserve
Reversal of special reserve
Cash dividends
Change in ownership interest in subsidiaries 6(31)
Changes in nen-controlling interest
Disposal of investments in equity instruments at ~ 6(6)
fair value through other comprehensive incoms

Balance at December 31, 2022

GAMANLA DIGITAL ENTERTATNMENT CO_, ITD. AND SUBSIDIARTES
COMSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES ITEQUITY

YEARSEMDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

Equi

Capital Reserves

Retaned Earnings

attributable to owners of the parent

Other Equity Interest

Unrealised gains
(losses) from

Financial financial assets
statements measured at fair
translation walue through other
Share capital - Additional paid-in Treasury stock Unappropriated dufferences of comprehensive Nen-controlling
common stock capital transact ons Cthers Legal reserve Spedal reserve retained earnings foreign operations income Total interest Total equit;
$ 1,754,936 3 836,975 3 372,701 $ 92,795 § 264,737 § 171,976 $ 1,992,382 3 107,968 3 (% 443,936 ) 3 4,984,648 3 527,083 $ 5,511,731
- - - - 1,106,281 1,106,281 ( 97,166 ) 1,009,115
- - - - 4,086 ( 23,841 ) 58,811 39,056 ( 3,788 ) 35,268
- - - - 1,110,367 ( 23,841 ) 58,811 1,145,337 ( 100,954 ) 1,044,383
- - 113,664 - ( 113,664 ) - -
- - - 379,928 ( 379,928 ) - -
- - - - ( 701,974 ) ( 701,974 ) ( 701,974 )
- - 1,074 - - - 1,074 1,074
- - ( 18,382 ) - - ( 2,264 ) ( 20,646 ) 35,159 14,513
- - - - - - { 17,674 ) ( 17,674 )
- - - - ( 11,582 ) 11,582 - -
$ 1,754,936 3 836,975 3 372,701 $ 75,487 § 378,451 § 551,904 $ 1,893,337 (% 131,809 ) (% 373,543 ) % 5,408,439 3 443,614 $ 5,852,053
$ 1,754,936 $ 836,975 $ 372,701 $ 75,487 $ 378,451 $ 551,904 $ 1,893,337 €3 131,809 ) (% 373,543 ) 5,408,439 $ 443,614 $ 5,852,053
- - - - 1,279,698 1,279,696 ( 1,589 ) 1,278,107
- - - - §,612 95,206 ( 53,643 ) 50,175 21,989 72,164
- - - - 1,288,308 95,206 ( 53,643 ) 1,329,871 20,400 1,350,271
- - 109,652 - ( 109,652 ) - -
- - - ( 46,552 ) 46,552 - -
- - - - ( 877,468 ) ( 877,465 ) ( 877,488 )
- - 19,600 - - ( 28,410 ) ( 8,810 ) ( 5,487 ) ( 17,297 )
- - - - - - ( 18,597 ) ( 18,587 )
- - - - ( 24,440 ) 24,440 - -
$ 1,754,836 $ 886,975 $ 372,701 $ 85,087 § 488,103 $ 505,352 $ 2,188,227 €3 36,603 1 (% 402,746 ) 5,852,032 $ 436,930 $ 5,288,962

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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GAMANIA DIGITAL ENTERTAINMENT CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments
Adjustments to reconcile profit (loss)

Depreciation

Amortisation

Expected credit impairment loss
Interest expense

Interest income

Years ended December 31,

Share of loss of subsidiaries and associates accounted 6(8)

for under equity method
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Loss on disposal of investment
Impairment loss on non-financial assets
Dividend income
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Changes in operating assets
Notes receivable
Accounts receivable
Accounts receivable - related parties
Other receivables
Other receivables - related parties
Inventories
Prepayments
Other current assets
Changes in operating liabilities
Contract liabilities
Notes payable
Accounts payable
Accounts payable - related parties
Other payables
Other payables - related parties
Other current liabilities
Other non-current liabilities
Cash inflow generated from operations
Interest received
Dividends received
Interest paid
Income tax paid

Net cash provided by operating activities

Notes 2022 2021
1,708,448 1,445,096
6{9)(10)(28) 161,035 164,360
6(11)(28) 421,196 726,909
12¢2) 2,267 70,534
6(27) 5,493 6,875
6(24) { 20,899 ) ( 3,306 )
30,434 117,619
6(26) 3 47
6(26) 895 -
6(14)(26) 93,163 171,635
6(6) - 145
741 3,781
83,154 ( 155
{ 9,310 ) 2,004
( 273,871 ) 171
( 3575 428
{ 6,345 ) 3,324
30,449 68,049
45,003 ¢ 41,596 )
( 5,082 ) 104,887
- 1,211
51,235 63,944
( 5,615 3,127
361,203 ( 12,010 )
183,092 42,808
899 25,585
63« 615
2,602,384 2,962,145
20,899 3,306
622 728
( 5,493 ( 6,875)
( 447,641 ) ( 385,669 )
2,470,771 2,573,635
{Continued)
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GAMANIA DIGITAL ENTERTAINMENT CO.. LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2022 AND 2021
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

Years ended December 31,

Notes 2022 2021
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair value 6(6)
through other comprehensive income § 31,208 b 41,529
Acquisition of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss ( 15,000 ) -
{Increase) decrease in financial assets as amortised cost ( 31,741 14,163
Decrease (increase) in other financial assets 31,385 136,424 )
Acquisition of investments accounted for under equity 6(8)
method ( 44,770 ) ( 34,129 )
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment 6(32) ( 130,990 ) ( 87,446 )
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 287 309
{Increase) decrease in refundable deposits ( 5,572 4,069
Acquigition of intangible assets 6(32) ( 1,056,292 ( 286,155
Other non-current assets ( 12,457y | 16,856 )
Net cash used in investing activities ( 1,233,042y 503,940 )
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Decrease in short-term borrowings 6(33) { 17,726 ) ( 123,485
Repayment of long-term debt 6(33) ( 80,000 ¢ 160,000 )
{Decrease) increase in guarantee deposits received ( 1,740 4,340
Payment of lease liabilities 6(33) ( 33,139y 31,955
Cash dividends paid 6(21) { 877,468 ) ( 701,974
Increase in subsidiaries capital from non-controlling 6(31)
interest 5,323 13,977
Cash dividends paid to non-controlling interest ( 18,597y 16,852 )
Acquisition of additional equity interest in subsidiaries 6(31) ( 14,704 | 8221
Net cash used in financing activities { 1,038,051 ¢ 1,016,781 )
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash
equivalents 116,645 ( 31,619
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 318,423 1,021,295
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 3,418,396 2,387,601
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year $ 3,737,319 b 3,418,396

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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GAMANIA DIGITAL ENTERTAINMENT CO.. I'TD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2022 AND 2021

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars, except as otherwise indicated)

1. HISTORY AND ORGANISATION

Gamania Digital Entertainment Co., Ltd. (the “Company™) was incorporated as a company limited by

shares under the provisions of the Company Law of the Republic of China (R.O.C.). The Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred herein as the “Group™) are primarily engaged in software services

of on-line game and sales of related merchandises.

2. THE DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUANCE OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
PROCEDURES FOR AUTHORISATION

These consolidated financial statements were authorised for issuance by the Board of Directors on March
9, 2023.

3. APPLICATION OF NEW STANDARDS. AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS

(1) Effect of the adoption of new issuances of or amendments to International Financial Reporting

Standards (“IFRS™) that came into effect as endorsed by the Financial Supervisory Commission
(GGFSCJZJ

New standards, interpretations and amendments endorsed by the FSC and became effective from
2022 are as follows:

Effective Date by
International Accounting
New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments Standards Board

Amendments to IFRS 3, ‘Reference to the conceptual framework’ January 1, 2022

Amendments to IAS 16, ‘Property, plant and equipment: proceeds before January 1, 2022
intended use’
Amendments to IAS 37, ‘Onerous contracts - cost of fulfilling a contract’ January 1, 2022

Annual improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 January 1, 2022

The above standards and interpretations have no significant impact to the Group’s financial condition

and financial performance based on the Group’s assessment.

(2) Effect of new issuances of or amendments to IFRSs as endorsed by the FSC but not yet adopted by

the Group
New standards, interpretations and amendments endorsed by the FSC effective from 2023 are as

follows:
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Effective date by

International Accounting

New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments Standards Board
Amendments to IAS 1, ‘Disclosure of accounting policies’ January 1, 2023
Amendments to TAS 8, ‘Definition of accounting estimates’ January 1, 2023
Amendments to TAS 12, ‘Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities January 1, 2023

arising from a single transaction’

The above standards and interpretations have no significant impact to the Group’s financial condition

and financial performance based on the Group’s assessment.

(3) IFRSs issued by TASB but not vet endorsed by the FSC
New standards, interpretations and amendments issued by IASB but not yet included in the IFRSs as

endorsed by the FSC are as follows:
Effective date by

International Accounting

New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments Standards Board
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28, ‘Sale or contribution of assets To be determined by
between an investor and its associate or joint venture’ International Accounting
Standards Board
Amendments to IFRS 16, ‘Lease liability in a sale and leaseback’ January 1, 2024
IFRS 17, ‘Insurance contracts’ January 1, 2023
Amendments to IFRS 17, ‘Insurance contracts’ January 1, 2023
Amendment to IFRS 17, ‘Initial application of IFRS 17 and IFRS 9 — January 1, 2023
comparative information’
Amendments to IAS 1, ‘Classification of liabilities as current or non- January 1, 2024
current’
Amendments to IAS 1, ‘Non-current liabilities with covenants’ January 1, 2024

The above standards and interpretations have no significant impact to the Group’s financial condition

and financial performance based on the Group’s assessment.

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements

are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless
otherwise stated.

(1) Compliance statement

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with the
Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers, International
Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards, IFRIC Interpretations, and SIC
Interpretations that came into effect as endorsed by the FSC (collectively referred herein as the
“TFRSs™).
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(2) Basis of preparation

A. Except for the following items, the consolidated financial statements have been prepared under

the historical cost convention:

(a) Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

(b) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income.

(¢) Defined benefit liabilities recognised based on the net amount of pension fund assets less
present value of defined benefit obligation.

B. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial

statements are disclosed in Note 3.

(3) Basis of consolidation

A. Basis for preparation of consolidated financial statements:

(a) All subsidiaries are included in the Group’s consolidated financial statements. Subsidiaries are
all entities (including structured entities) controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. Consolidation
of subsidiaries begins from the date the Group obtains control of the subsidiaries and ceases

when the Group loses control of the subsidiaries.

(b) Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains or losses on transactions between

companies within the Group are eliminated.

(¢) Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the parent and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income is attributed to
the owners of the parent and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-

controlling interests having a deficit balance.

(d) Changes in a parent’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in the parent losing
control of the subsidiary (transactions with non-controlling interests) are accounted for as
equity transactions, i.e. transactions with owners in their capacity as owners. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of

the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity.

(¢) When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the Group remeasures any investment retained
in the former subsidiary at its fair value. That fair value is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset or the cost on initial recognition of the associate or joint venture.
Any difference between fair value and carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss. All

amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary

156



are reclassified to profit or loss on the same basis as would be required if the related assets or
liabilities were disposed of. That is, when the Group loses control of a subsidiary, all gains or
losses previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary
should be reclassified from equity to profit or loss, if such gains or losses would be reclassified

to profit or loss when the related assets or liabilities are disposed of,

B. Subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial statements:

Ownership (%)
Name of Name of Main Business December 31, December 31,
Investor Subsidiary Activities 2022 2021 Description

Gamania Digital Gamania Holdings Holding company 100 100
Entertainment Co., Ltd.  Ltd. (GH)
Gamania Digital Gamania Digital Software services and 100 - Note 12
Entertainment Co., Ltd.  Entertainment (HK) sales

Co., Ltd.
Gamania Holdings Ltd. Gamania International Investment and 100 100
(GH) Holdings Ltd. (GIH) holding company
Gamania International Gamania China Investment and 98.85 98.85
Holdings Ltd. (GIH) Holdings Ltd. holding company
Gamania International Joymobee Software services 100 100
Holdings Ltd. (GIH) Entertainment Co.,

Ltd.
Gamania International Achieve Made Investment and 45.40 43.56 Notes 1 and 8
Holdings Ltd. (GIH) International Ltd. holding company

(AMI)
Gamania International HaPod Digital Software services and 100 100
Holdings Ltd. (GIH) Technology Co., Ltd.  sales
Gamania China Holdings Gamania Sino Investment and 100 100
Ltd. Holdings Ltd. holding company
Gamania China Holdings Gamania Digital Software services and - 100 Note 12
Ltd. Entertainment (H.K.) sales

Co., Ltd.
Gamania Sino Holdings  Gamania Digital Design, rescarch and 100 100
Ltd. Entertainment development and

{Beijing) Co., Ltd. sales of software
Achieve Made Jollywiz Digital Supply of electronic 100 100
International Ltd. (AMI) Technology Co., Ltd. information services
Jollywiz Digital Cyber Look Properties Investment and 100 100
Technology Co., Ltd. Ltd. holding company
Jollywiz Digital Jollywiz International ~ Supply of electronic 100 100 Note 2
Technology Co., Ltd. {HK) Co., Ltd. information services
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Ownership (%)

Name of Name of Main Business December 31, December 31,

Investor Subsidiary Activities 2022 2021 Description
Jollywiz Digital Bjolly Co., Ltd. Supply of electronic 95.83 95.83 Note 3
Technology Co., Ltd. (Bjolly) information services
Jollywiz Digital NOWnews Network  Broadcast and TV 0.94 1.10 Notes 4 and 5
Technology Co., Ltd. Co., Ltd. (NOWnews) shows production
Cyber Look Properties Legion Technology Supply of electronic 100 100
Ltd. (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.  information services
Legion Technology Tollywiz Digital Supply of electronic 100 100
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. Business Co., Ltd. information services
Gamania Digital Gamania Asia Investment company 100 100
Entertainment Co., Ltd.  Investment Co., Ltd.

(Gamama Asia)
Gamania Digital Ciirco Inc. (Ciirco) Software services 99.90 99.90
Entertainment Co., Ltd.
Gamania Digital Fundation Digital Publishing of 100 100
Entertainment Co., Ltd.  Entertainment Co., magazines and

Ltd. (Fundation) periodicals
Gamania Digital TollyBuy Digital Tech. Supply of electronic 98.89 97.23 Notes 10 and
Entertainment Co., Ltd.  Co., Ltd. (JollyBuy) information services 11
Gamania Digital Two Tigers Co., Ltd.  Animation production 51 51
Entertainment Co., Ltd.  (Two Tigers)
Gamania Digital Gash Point Co., Ltd.  Information software 90 20
Entertainment Co., Ltd.  (Gash Point) and supply of

electronic
information services

Gamania Digital Ants” Power Co., Ltd.  Customer service 100 100
Entertainment Co., Ltd.  (Ants” Power)
Gamania Digital Indiland Co., Ltd. IP commodities 100 100
Entertainment Co., Ltd.  (Indiland) authorisation
Gamania Digital We Backers Co., Ltd.  Crowd funding 93.38 93.38
Entertainment Co., Ltd.  (We Backers)
Gamania Digital BeanGo! Co., Ltd. Software services 100 100
Entertainment Co., Ltd.  {(BeanGo!)
Gamania Digital MadSugr Digital Software services and - - Note 9
Entertainment Co., Ltd.  Technology Co., Ltd. sales

(MadSugr)
Gamania Digital Coture New Media Online media 93.08 93.08
Entertainment Co., Ltd.  Co., Ltd. {Coture New production

Media)
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Ownership (%)

Name of Name of Main Business December 31, December 31,

Investor Subsidiary Activities 2022 2021 Description
Gamania Digital GAMA PAY Co., Ltd. Electronic payiment 81.26 09.73 Notes 6 and 7
Entertainment Co., Ltd.  (GAMA PAY) services
Gamania Digital NOWnews Network  Broadcast and TV 79.44 78.97 Notes 4 and 5
Entertainment Co., Ltd.  Co., Ltd. (NOWnews) shows production
Gamania Digital Digicentre Company  Software services 67.48 67.48
Entertainment Co., Ltd.  Limited {Digicentre)

Gash Point Co., Ltd. Gash Point (Hong Information software 100 100
Kong) Company and supply of
Limited electronic
information services
Gash Point Co., Ltd. Gash Point (Japan) Information software 100 100
Co., Ltd. and supply of
electronic
information services
Gash Peint Co., Ltd. Gash Point Korea Co., Information software 100 100
Ltd. and supply of
electronic
information services
Gash Point Co., Ltd. GAMA PAY Co., Ltd. Electronic payment 6.22 9.04 Note 7
(GAMA PAY)
Gash Point Co., Ltd. Conetter CoMarketing Software services 79.98 79.98
Co., Ltd. (Conetter)
Gash Point (Hong Kong) GAMA PAY Co., Ltd. Electromic payiment 8.38 12.19 Note 7
Company Limited (GAMA PAY) services
Ciirco Inc. Ciirco (HK) Co., Ltd.  Software services - 100 Note 13
(Ciirco HK)
Gamania Asia The China Post Co., Newspaper and 100 100
Investment Co., Ltd Ltd. magazine publishing
Gamania Asia Bjolly Co., Ltd. Supply of electronic 4.17 4.17 Note 3
Investment Co., Ltd. (Bjolly) information services
Digicentre Compary Digicentre (HK) Software services 100 100
Limited Company Limited
Digicentre Comparny Hyperg Smart Software services 51 51
Limited Security Technology

Pte. Ltd. (Hyperg)

Note 1: The equity held by the Group was less than 50%. However, as the Group held half of the
seats in the Board of Directors, the investee was included in the consolidated financial

statements.

Note 2: The Company’s subsidiary, Achieve Made Intemational Ltd., sold its 93.43% equity
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interest held in Jollywiz International (HK) Co., Limited to the Company’s subsidiary,
Jollywiz Digital Technology Co., Ltd., on December 31, 2021 and still had control over
the investee, thus, the investee was included in the consolidated financial statements.

Note 3: The Company’s subsidiaries, Jollywiz Digital Technology Co., Ltd. and Gamania Asia,
held a 95.83% and 4.17% equity interest in Bjolly, respectively, and had control over the
investee, thus, the investee was included in the consolidated financial statements.

Note 4: The Company’s subsidiary, Bjolly, sold its 1.10% equity interest held in NOWnews to the
Company’s subsidiary, Jollywiz Digital Technology Co., Ltd., on December 31, 2021.
Consequently, the Company and its subsidiary, Jollywiz Digital Technology Co., Ltd.,
held 78.97% and 1.10% equity interest in Nownews, respectively and had control over
the investee, thus, the investee was included in the consolidated financial statements.

Note 5: On May 9, 2022 and December 23, 2022, the Company participated in the capital increase.
The Company acquired 0.47% equity interest in NOWnews. Accordingly, the equity
interest in Jollywiz Digital Technology Co., Ltd. decreased to 0.94%.

Note 6: On June 30, 2022, the Company acquired 3.01% equity interest in GAMA PAY from
GAMA PAY’s original shareholders.

Note 7: On December 28, 2022, the Company participated in the capital increase. The Company
acquired 8.52% cquity interest in GAMA PAY. Consequently, the equity interest in
GAMA PAY of Gash Point Co., Ltd. and Gash Point (Hong Kong) Company Limited on
December 31, 2022 decreased to 6.22% and 8.38%, respectively.

Note 8 The subsidiary, AMI, redeemed treasury shares without consideration in 2022. Therefore,
the share ownership of the Group increased by 1.84%.

Note 9: Madsugr was dissolved in December 2021. However, the liquidation of Madsugar has
not yet been completed as of December 31, 2022.

Note 10: The subsidiary, JollyBuy, increased capital by issuing new shares for cash in March 2022
and November 2022. However, the Group did not acquire additional shares

proportionately to its interest, thus, the share ownership increased by 0. 56%.

Note 11: The subsidiary, JollyBuy, redeemed treasury in August 2022. Therefore, the share

ownership of the group increased by 1.1%.

Note 12: On August 4, 2022, the Company’s board of directors has approved to acquire all the
shares of Gamania Digital Entertainment (HK) Co., L.td., consisting of 25,500 thousand
shares, from the subsidiary, Gamania China Holdings T.td.

Note 13: The liquidation of Ciirco HK was completed in November 2022.
C. Subsidiaries not included in the consolidated financial statements: None.
D. Adjustments for subsidiaries with different balance sheet dates: None.

E. Significant restrictions: None.
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F. Subsidiaries that have non-controlling interests that are material to the Group:

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the non-controlling interest amounted to $436,930 and

$443,614, respectively. The information on non-controlling interest and respective subsidiaries is

as follows:
Non-controlling interest
Principal December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Name of place Owmnership Ownership
subsidiary of business Amount {%) Amount (%) Description
AMI and Taiwan and b 150,240 54.60% % 150,809 56.44% Note
subsidiaries China
Digicentre Taiwan, China 129,583 32.52% 130,087 32.52%

Company Limited and Singapore
and subsidiaries

Note: Registered location of AMI is British Virgin Islands.

Balance sheets

Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities
Total net assets

Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Total net assets

Statements of comprehensive income

Revenue

Loss before mcome tax

Income tax benefit

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive loss, net of tax

Total comprehensive loss for the year

Comprehensive loss attributable to
non-controlling interest

Dividends paid to non-controlling interest

AMI and subsidiaries
December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

$ 335,744 § 350,772

67,718 51,115
( 123,067) ( 120,722)
$ 280,395 § 281,165

Digicentre Company Limited and subsidiaries
December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

$ 372,937 $ 323,549

244,862 257,479
( 213,561) ( 186,235)
( 36,268) ( 40,868)
$ 367.970 $ 353,925

AMI and subsidiaries

Years ended December 31,

2022 2021
$ 542,983 $ 718,311
( 6,115) ( 130,972)

- 39
( 6,115) ( 130,933)
( 9,743) ( 6,801)
$ 15.838) ($ 137.734)
($ 11.849) ($ 81,437)
$ - % -
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Digicentre Company Limited and subsidiaries

Years ended December 31,

2022 2021
Revenue $ 1,181,834 $ 963,695
Profit before mcome tax 56,120 30,593
Income tax expense ( 20,688) ( 12,293)
Profit for the year 35,432 18,300
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax 3,959 ( 694)
Total comprehensive income for the year $ 39,391 § 17,606
Comprehensive income attributable to
non-controlling interest $ 14,404 $ 4,646
Dividends paid to non-controlling interest $ 5,402 § 8,555
Statements of cash flows
AMI and subsidiaries
Years ended December 31,
2022 2021
Net cash used in operating activities (S 10,943) ($ 30.261)
Net cash (used in) provided by investing
activities 7,010 71,551
Net cash flows used in financing activities ( 6,477) ( 19,145)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and
cash equivalents ( 16,801) ( 2,957)
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents  ( 27,211 19,188
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 128,873 109,685
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 101,662 % 128,873
Digicentre Company Limited and subsidiaries
Years ended December 31,
2022 2021
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 108,862 $ 63,262
Net cash used in investing activities ( 26,319) ( 23,500)
Net cash used in financing activities ( 58.856) ( 52,556)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and
cash equivalents 6,218 ( 735)
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 29905 ( 13,529)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 121,214 134,743
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 151,119 § 121,214

(4) Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group are measured using the currency of

the primary economic environment in which the company operates (the “functional currency™). The
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consolidated financial statements are presented in New Taiwan Dollars, which is the Group’s

functional and presentation currency.
A. Foreign currency transactions and balances

(a) Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are remeasured.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions are

recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

(b) Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the period end are re-
translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences

arising upon re-translation at the balance sheet date are recognised in profit or loss.

(¢) Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies held at fair value
through profit or loss are re-translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet
date; their translation differences are recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies held at fair value through other comprehensive
income are re-translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date; their
translation differences are recognised in other comprehensive income. However, non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are not measured at fair

value are translated using the historical exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

(d) All other foreign exchange gains and losses based on the nature of those transactions are

presented in the statement of comprehensive income within ‘other gains and losses’.
B. Translation of foreign operations

(a) The operating results and financial position of all the Group entities and associates that have
a functional currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

1. Assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at the closing exchange
rate at the date of that balance sheet;

ii. Income and expenses for each statement of comprehensive income are translated at average
exchange rates of that year; and

iii. All resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income.

(b) When the foreign operation partially disposed of or sold is an associate, exchange differences
that were recorded in other comprehensive income are proportionately reclassified to profit or
loss as part of the gain or loss on sale. In addition, if the Group retains partial interest in the
former foreign associate after losing significant influence over the former foreign associate,
such transactions should be accounted for as disposal of all interest in these foreign operations.

(¢) When the foreign operation partially disposed of or sold is a subsidiary, cumulative exchange
differences that were recorded in other comprehensive income are proportionately transferred
to the non-controlling interest in this foreign operation. In addition, when the Group retains

partial interest in the former foreign subsidiary after losing control of the former foreign

163



subsidiary, such transactions should be accounted for as disposal of all interest in the foreign

operations.

(5) Classification of current and non-current items

A. Assets that meet one of the following criteria are classified as current assets; otherwise they are

classified as non-current assets:

(a) Assets arising from operating activities that are expected to be realised, or are intended to be

sold or consumed within the normal operating cycle;
(b) Assets held mainly for trading purposes;,
(¢) Assets that are expected to be realised within twelve months from the balance sheet date;

(d) Cash and cash equivalents, excluding restricted cash and cash equivalents and those that are
to be exchanged or used to settle liabilities more than twelve months after the balance sheet
date.

B. Liabilities that meet one of the following criteria are classified as current liabilities; otherwise they

are classified as non-current liabilities:

(a) Liabilities that are expected to be settled within the normal operating cycle;

(b) Liabilities arising mainly from trading activities;

(¢) Liabilities that are to be settled within twelve months from the balance sheet date;

(d) Liabilities for which the repayment date cannot be extended unconditionally to more than
twelve months after the balance sheet date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the
counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its

classification.

(6) Cash equivalents

Cash equivalents refer to short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Time deposits that
meet the definition above and are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments in

operations are classified as cash equivalents.

(7) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

A. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets that are not measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income.

B. On a regular way purchase or sale basis, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised and derecognised using trade date accounting.

C. At initial recognition, the Group measures the financial assets at fair value and recognises the
transaction costs in profit or loss. The Group subsequently measures the financial assets at fair

value, and recognises the gain or loss in profit or loss.
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(8) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

A. Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income comprise equity securities
which are not held for trading, and for which the Group has made an irrevocable clection at initial

recognition to recognise changes in fair value in other comprehensive income.

B. On aregular way purchase or sale basis, financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive

income are recognised and derecognised using trade date accounting.

C. They are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs. These financial assets are
subsequently remeasured and stated at fair value. The changes in fair value of equity investments
that were recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to retained earnings and are
not reclassified to profit or loss following the derecognition of the investment. Dividends are
recognised as revenue when the right to receive payment is established, future economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be

measured reliably.

(9) Financial assets at amortised cost

The Group’s time deposits which do not fall under cash equivalents are those with a short maturity

period and are measured at initial investment amount as the effect of discounting is immaterial.

(10) Accounts and notes receivable

A. Accounts and notes receivable entitle the Group a legal right to receive consideration in exchange

for transferred goods or rendered services.

B. The short-term accounts and notes receivable without bearing interest are subsequently measured

at initial invoice amount as the effect of discounting is immaterial.

(11) Impairment of financial assets

For receivables that have a significant financing component, at each reporting date, the Group
recognises the impairment provision for 12 months expected credit losses if there has not been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition or recognises the impairment provision for
the lifetime expected credit losses (ECLs) if such credit risk has increased since initial recognition
after taking into consideration all reasonable and verifiable information that includes forecasts. On
the other hand, for receivables that do not contain a significant financing component, the Group

recognises the impairment provision for lifetime ECLs.

(12) Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset when one of the following conditions is met:
A. The contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset expire.

B. The contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have been transferred and

the Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset.

C. The contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have been transferred and,

the Group has not retained control of the financial asset.
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(13) Leasing arrangements (lessor) - operating leases

Lease income from an operating lease (net of any incentives given to the lessee) is recognised in

profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(14) Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The original costs are the cost to
obtain the assets. Cost is determined using the weighted-average method. The item by item approach
is used in applying the lower of cost and net realizable value. Net realisable value is the estimated

selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the applicable variable selling expenses.

(15) Investments accounted for under the equity method / associates

A. Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but not control. In
general, it is presumed that the investor has significant influence, if an investor holds, directly or
indirectly 20 percent or more of the voting power of the investee. Investments in associates are

accounted for using the equity method and are initially recognised at cost.

B. The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits or losses is recognised in profit or
loss, and its share of post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive income is recognised
in other comprehensive income. When the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or/constructive obligations or made

payments on behalf of the associate.

C. When changes in an associate’s equity do not arise from profit or loss or other comprehensive
income of the associate and such changes do not affect the Group’s ownership percentage of the
associate, the Group recognises change in ownership interests in the associate in ‘capital surplus’

in proportion to its ownership.

D. Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent
of the Group’s interest in the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the

transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.

E. In the case that an associate issues new shares and the Group does not subscribe or acquire new
shares proportionately, which results in a change in the Group’s ownership percentage of the
agssociate but maintains significant influence on the associate, then ‘capital surplus’ and
‘investments accounted for under the equity method’ shall be adjusted for the increase or

decrease of its share of equity interest.

F. When the Group disposes its investment in an associate and loses significant influence over this
associate, the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to the
agsociate are reclassified to profit or loss, on the same basis as would be required if the relevant
assets or liabilities were disposed of. If it retains significant influence over this associate, then
the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to the associate

are reclassified to profit or loss proportionately in accordance with the aforementioned approach.
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G. When the Group disposes its investment in an associate and loses significant influence over this
associate, the amounts previously recognised as capital surplus in relation to the associate are
transferred to profit or loss. If it retains significant influence over this associate, then the amounts
previously recognised as capital surplus in relation to the associate are transferred to profit or

loss proportionately.

(16) Property. plant and equipment
A. Property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost.

B. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of
the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

C. Land is not depreciated. Other property, plant and equipment apply cost model and are
depreciated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost over their estimated useful lives.
Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to
the total cost of the item must be depreciated separately.

D. The assets’ residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are evaluated, and adjusted if
appropriate, at each financial year-end. If expectations for the assets’ residual values and useful
lives differ from previous estimates or the patterns of consumption of the assets” future economic
benefits embodied in the assets have changed significantly, any change is accounted for as a
change in estimate under IAS 8, ‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and
Errors’, from the date of the change. The estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment

are as follows:

Buildings 4~51 years
Machinery and equipment 2~8 years
Transportation equipment 5 years
Office equipment 2~ 8 years
Leasehold improvement 4~35 years
Other equipment 4~8 years

(17) Leasing arrangements (lessee) - right-of-use assets/lease liabilities

A. Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability at the date at
which the leased asset is available for use by the Group. For short-term leases or leases of low-
value assets, lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease

term.

B. Lease liabilities include the net present value of the remaining lease payments at the
commencement date, discounted using the incremental borrowing interest rate. Lease payments

are fixed payments less any lease incentives receivable. The Group subsequently measures the

167



lease liability at amortised cost using the interest method and recognises interest expense over
the lease term. The lease liability is remeasured and the amount of remeasurement is recognised
as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset when there are changes in the lease term or lease
payments and such changes do not arise from contract modifications.

C. At the commencement date, the right-of-use asset is stated at cost and the cost is comprised of
the amount of the initial measurement of lease lability. The right-of-use asset is measured
subsequently using the cost model and is depreciated from the commencement date to the earlier
of the end of the asset’s useful life or the end of the lease term. When the lease liability is
remeasured, the amount of remeasurement is recognised as an adjustment to the right-of-use

asset.

(18) Intangible assets

A. Licence fees

Licence fees were prepaid and may be paid in the future for operating online game software, are
stated at cost and amortised based on the period of the contract or reversed in proportion of

operating revenue after online games lauching.
B. Software

Costs of software are stated at cost and amortised under the straight-line basis over the estimated
useful life of 1-5 years.

C. Trademark right

Trademark right is stated at fair value at the acquisition date and regarded as having an indefinite
useful life as it was assessed to generate continuous net cash inflow in the foreseeable future.

Trademark right is not amortised, but is tested annually for impairment.
D. Customer relationships

Customer relationships which are intangible assets acquired during the business combinations
are stated at fair value at the acquisition date and are amortised on a straight-line basis over their

estimated useful life of 8~12 years.
E. Other intangible assets

(a) Copyrights which are intangible assets acquired during the business combinations are stated
at fair value at the acquisition date and are amortised on a straight-line basis over their

estimated useful life of 15 years.

(b) Software independent development which is intangible assets acquired during the business
combinations are stated at fair value at the acquisition date and are amortised on a straight-

line basis over their estimated useful life of 3 years.

(¢) Obtaining the relevant licence for the game, distribution bussiness recognised as intangible
assets and special technology with estimated useful life are stated at acquisition and occurred
cost date and are amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful life of 3~10

years.
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F. Goodwill
Goodwill arises in a business combination accounted for by applving the acquisition method.
Goodwill is recognised in the amount of acquisition price including direct costs of business
combination less the fair value of identifiable net assets acquired. The measurement date of

acquisition price must not exceed one year from the acquisition date.

(19) Impairment of non-financial assets

A. The Group assesses at each balance sheet date the recoverable amounts of those assets in
accordance with IAS 36 ‘Impairment of assets” where there is an indication that they are impaired.
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell or value in use. Except for goodwill, when the circumstances or reasons for recognizing
impairment loss for an asset in prior years no longer exist or diminish, the impairment loss is
reversed. The increased carrying amount due to reversal should not be more than what the
depreciated or amortised historical cost would have been if the impairment had not been

recognised.

B. The recoverable amounts of goodwill and intangible assets that have not definite useful life and
have not yet been available for use shall be evaluated periodically. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment loss of goodwill previously recognised in profit or loss shall not be reversed in the
following years.

C. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated
to each of the cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that is/are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the business combination. Each unit or group of units to which the
goodwill i1s allocated represents the lowest level within the entity at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment

level.

(20) Borrowings
It refers to long-term and short-term borrowings from the bank. Borrowings are recognised initially

at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost;
any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is

recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

(21) Notes and accounts payable

Notes and accounts payable are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in
the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Short-term notes and accounts payable which are
non-interest bearing are subsequently measured at initial invoice amount as the effect of discounting

is immaterial.
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(22) Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability 1s derecognised when the obligation under the liability specified in the contract

is discharged or cancelled or expires.

(23) Employvee benefits

A. Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected

to be paid in respect of service rendered by employees in a period and should be recognised as

expense in that period when the employees render service.

B. Pensions

(a) Defined contribution plan

For defined contribution plan, the contributions are recognised as pension expense when they

are due on an accrual basis. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent of

a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments.
(b) Defined benefit plan

1.

il.

Net obligation under a defined benefit plan is defined as the present value of an amount
of pension benefits that employees will receive on retirement for their services with the
Group in current period or prior periods. The liability recognised in the balance sheet in
respect of defined benefit pension plan is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the balance sheet date less the fair value of plan assets. The net defined
benefit obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries using the projected unit
credit method. The rate used to discount is determined by using interest rates of high-
quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will
be paid, and that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related pension
liability; when there is no deep market in high-quality corporate bonds, the Group uses
interest rates of government bonds (at the balance sheet date) instead.

Remeasurements arising on defined benefit plan are recognised in other comprehensive

income in the period in which they arise and are recorded as retained earnings.

C. Termination benefits

Termination benefits are employee benefits provided in exchange for the termination of

employment as a result from either the Group’s decision to terminate an employee’s employment

before the normal retirement date, or an employee’s decision to accept an offer of redundancy

benefits in exchange for the termination of employment. The Group recognises expense when it

can no longer withdraw an offer of termination benefits or it recognises related restructuring

costs, whichever is earlier. Benefits that are expected to be due more than 12 months after balance

sheet date shall be discounted to their present value.

D. Employees’ compensation and directors’ remuneration

Employees’ compensation and directors’ remuneration are recognised as expense and liability,
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provided that such recognition is required under legal or constructive obligation and those
amounts can be reliably estimated. Any difference between the resolved amounts and the

subsequently actual distributed amounts is accounted for as changes in estimates.

(24) Income tax

A. The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
items recognised directly in equity, in which cases the tax is recognised in other comprehensive
income or equity.

B. The current income tax expense is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries where the Company and its subsidiaries operate
and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in accordance with applicable tax regulations. It establishes provisions
where appropriate based on the amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities. An additional
tax is levied on the unappropriated retained earnings and is recorded as income tax expense in
the vear the stockholders resolve to retain the earnings.

C. Deferred tax is recognised, using the balance sheet liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated balance sheet. However, the deferred tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss. Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries,
except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax 1s determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by
the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is realised or
the deferred tax lability is settled.

D. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised. At each balance sheet
date, unrecognised and recognised deferred tax assets are reassessed.

E. Current income tax assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance
sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset on the balance sheet when the entity has the legally
enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and they are levied by
the same taxation authority on either the same entity or different entities that intend to settle on
a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

F. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
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will be available against which the tax credits can be utilised.

(25) Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new

shares or stock options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

(26) Dividends
Dividends are recorded in the Company’s financial statements in the period in which they are
approved by the Company’s sharcholders. Cash dividends are recorded as liabilities; stock dividends
are recorded as stock dividends to be distributed and are reclassified to ordinary shares on the

effective date of new shares issuance.

(27) Revenue recognition

A. Online and mobile games revenue

(a) The Group is engaged in online games and mobile phone games and sales of peripheral
products of the games. Sales are recognised when control of the products has transferred, that
is, the customer has control of the product and obtained most residual benefit, and there is no

unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer acceptance of the products.

(b) Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable taking into
account business tax, returns, rebates and discounts for the sale of goods based on the contract
price.

(¢) The Group recognises the collections of payments for game stored-value card purchases or
value-added by players as contract liabilities, and amortises those amounts as revenue over
the expected users’ relationship period or the estimated delivery period of the virtual items,

when they are actually used.

(d) The Group recognised accounts receivable when the control of product has been transferred
and has the right to collect price without condition. The accounts receivable has usually a
short-term period and does not contain significant financial component. However, for online
games and mobile phone games, the Group collects the price in advance upon sale, and

recognises the contract liability.
B. Service revenue

The Group recognises customer service revenue, advertisement revenue, E-commerce service
revenue, cloud and information security service revenue when the individual obligation is
fulfilled at a point in time or fulfilled over time. Service revenue is based on contract price. The
sales of services is based on the price stated in the contract. When the contract consideration
includes variable consideration, the Group recognises the minimum amount that is highly likely

to not reverse in the future period.
C. Revenue from stored-values

The Group is engaged in the sale of game stored-value cards. The purpose of selling game stored-

value cards to players is to offer a tool that allows them to purchase game services from the
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Group or another party. When a player purchases a game from another party for which the Group
has no control over the service provided, then the Group merely acts as an intermediary that
facilitates the transaction; the game service is entirely provided by another party. The Group

recognises payments received less amounts paid to another party as revenue.
D. Sales revenue

The Group sell agent products and information security equipment. Sales revenue recognized
when the products transfer control to customer, that is, when the product is delivered to the
customers and the Group has no outstanding obligations that may affect the customer's
acceptance of the product. When the product is shipped to the designated location, the risk of
obsolescence and loss has been transferred to the customer and the customer accepts the product
in accordance with the sales contract or there is objective evidence that all acceptance criteria
have been met, the delivery of the goods will happen. Account receivables are recognised when
the goods are delivered to the customer because the group has the unconditional right for

consideration which can be collected from the customer.

(28) Operating segments

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker, who 1is responsible for allocating resources and assessing

performance of the operating segments.

. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND KEY SOURCES OF ASSUMPTION
UNCERTAINTY

The preparation of these consolidated financial statements requires management to make critical

judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies and make critical assumptions and estimates
concerning future events. Assumptions and estimates may differ from the actual results and are
continually evaluated and adjusted based on historical experience and other factors. Such assumptions
and estimates have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets

and liabilities within the next financial year, and the related information is addressed below:

(1) Critical judgments in applyving the Group’s accounting policies

Revenue recognition on a net/gross basis

The Group determines whether the nature of its performance obligation is to provide the specified
goods or services itself (i.e. the Group is a principal) or to arrange for the other party to provide those
goods or services (i.e. the Group is an agent) based on the transaction model and its economic
substance. The Group is a principal if it controls a promised good or service before it transfers the
good or service to a customer. The Group recognises revenue at gross amount of consideration to
which it expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services transferred. The Group is an
agent if its performance obligation is to arrange for the provision of goods or services by another
party. The Group recognises revenue at the amount of any fee or commission to which it expects to

be entitled in exchange for arranging for the other party to provide its goods or services.
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Indicators that the Group controls the good or service before it is provided to a customer include the

following:
A. The Group is primarily responsible for the provision of goods or services.

B. The Group assumes the inventory risk before transferring the specified goods or services to the

customer or after transferring control of the goods or services to the customer.

C. The Group has discretion in establishing prices for the goods or services.

(2) Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

A. Revenue recognition

The Group recognises the collections of payments for game stored-value card purchases or value-
added by players as contract liabilities, and amortises those amounts as revenue over expected
users’ relationship periods or the estimated delivery period of the virtual items, when they are
actually used. The Group estimates the deferred amount and delivery period based on operating
history and other known factors. Given that the Group has extensive list of virtual items spread
across thousands of users and the estimation of delivery period for virtual items may be complex,
the Group assesses the reasonableness of the estimation periodically. Please refer to Note 6(23)

for the information on revenue recognition.
B. Impairment assessment of licence fees

The impairment assessment of licence fees depend on the Group’s subjective judgement. The
recoverable amount is determined based on estimated online game revenue arising from expected

game points used by players and budget expenditures.
C. Impairment assessment of goodwill

The impairment assessment of goodwill relies on the Group’s subjective judgement, including
identifying cash-generating units, allocating assets and liabilities as well as goodwill to related
cash-generating units, and determining the recoverable amounts of related cash-generating units.

Please refer to Note 6(14) for the information on goodwill impairment.
D. Impairment assessment of other intangible assets

The evaluation process of impairment of other intangible assets relies on the subjective judgment
of the Group, including the future economic benefits, market conditions and industrial

characteristics of these intangible assets to evaluate the recoverable amount.

6. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTS

(1) Cash and cash equivalents

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

Cash on hand and petty cash $ 2337 § 2,017
Checking accounts and demand deposits 2,677,247 2,668,731
Cash equivalents - time deposits 1,057,735 748,148

$ 3,737.319  § 3,418,896
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A. The Group deals with a variety of financial institutions all with high credit quality to disperse
credit rigk, so it expects that the probability of counterparty default is remote.

B. Details of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents pledged to others as collateral that have been
classified as financial assets (shown as ‘other current assets’) are provided in Note 8.

(2) Notes and accounts receivable

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

Notes receivable $ 11 3 752
Accounts receivable $ 832,665 $ 928,737
Less: Loss allowance ( 47,299) ( 52,614)
785,366 876,123
Overdue receivables (shown as other

non-current assets) 114,261 106,343
Less: Loss allowance ( 114,261) ( 106,343)
$ 785,366 $ 876,123

A. The ageing analysis of accounts receivable that were past due but not impaired is as follows:

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

Not past due $ 760,730 $ 811,458
Up to 30 days 19,759 12,989
31~60 days 2,622 12,776
61~90 days 2,914 14,414
91~120 days 169 9,084
Over 121 days 46,471 68.016

$ 832,665 % 928,737

The above ageing analysis was based on past due date.

B. As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Group has no notes receivable past due.

C. As at December 31, 2022, December 31, 2021 and January 1, 2021, the balances of receivables
(including notes and overdue receivables) from contracts with customers amounted to $946,926,
$1,035,832 and $1,086,468, respectively.

D. The Group does not hold any collateral. Further, the Group has no notes and accounts receivable

pledged to others as collateral.
E. Asat December 31, 2022 and 2021, without taking into account any collateral held or other credit

enhancements, the maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of the amount that best represents
the Group’s notes receivable was $11 and $752, and accounts receivable was $785,366 and
$876,123 , respectively.

F. Information relating to credit risk of accounts receivable is provided in Note 12(2).
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(3) Other receivables

Other receivables
Less: Loss allowance

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

$ 535210 $ 262,487
( 2,253) ( 1,998)
$ 532,957 $ 260,489

A. The ageing analysis of other receivables that were past due but not impaired is as follows:

Not past due
Up to 30 days
31 to 60 days
61 to 90 days
91 to 120 days
Over 121 days

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

$ 481,424 $ 208,284
17,165 12,543

5,779 13.171

9,165 18,542

9,853 206

11,824 9,741

$ 535210 § 262,487

The above ageing analysis was based on past due date.

B. The Group does not hold any collateral for other receivables. Further, the Group has no other

receivables pledged to others as collateral.

C. As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, without taking into account any collateral held or other credit

enhancements, the maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of the amount that best represents
the Group’s other receivables was $532,957 and $260,489 respectively.

D. Information relating to credit risk of other receivables is provided in Note 12(2).

(4) Inventories

Merchandise inventory

Merchandise inventory

December 31, 2022

Allowance for
obsolescence and
market value
Cost decline Book value

147.349 ($ 18,422) $ 128,927

December 31, 2021

Allowance for
obsolescence and
market value
Cost decline Book value

139,774 ($ 17,192) $ 122,582
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Expenses and losses incurred on inventories for the period:

Years ended December 31,

2022 2021
Cost of goods sold $ 384,423 $ 569,936
Loss on decline in market value 1,230 14,763
$ 385,653 3§ 584,701

(5) Prepayments
December 31, 2022

December 31, 2021

Prepayments to suppliers $ 166,891 § 223,562
Prepaid expenses 81,718 63,724
Excess business tax paid 68,859 60,676
Others 4,109 4,064

$ 321,577 $ 352,026

(6) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Items December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Non-current items:
Equity instruments
OTC stocks $ 78376 §$ 78,376
Emerging stocks 20,546 20,000
Unlisted, non-OTC and non-

emerging stocks 425,894 481,542
524,816 579,918

Valuation adjustment ( 407,235) ( 381,292)
$ 117,581 § 198,626

A. The Group has elected to classify investments that are considered to be strategic investments as

financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income. The fair value of such
investments amounted to $117,581 and $198,626 as at December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

B. In 2022, in line with the Group’s business development and resource allocation plan, the Group

sold its 5.42% equity interest in Microprogram Information Co., Ltd. at fair value in the amount

of $31,208. The cumulative loss on disposal of Microprogram Information Co., Ltd. was $24,440.

C. In 2021, in line with the Group’s business development and resource allocation plan, the Group
sold its 6.9% equity interest in Life Plus Co., Ltd. at fair value in the amount of $5,545 and 5.76%
equity interest in Ikala Global Online Crop. at fair value in the amount of $35,984. The cumulative

loss on disposal of Life Plus Co., I.td. was $24,453, while the cumulative gain on disposal of Tkala

Global Online Corp. was $12,873.
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D. Amounts recognised in profit or loss and other comprehensive income or loss in relation to the

financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are listed below:

Years ended December 31,

2022 2021
Change of fair value recognised in other
comprehensive income $ 53330 8 538,654
Cumulative gain (loss) reclassified to retained
earnings due to derecognition (8 24.440) (3 11,582)
Dividend income recognised in profit or loss
held at end of year 5 - 8 145

D. The Group has no financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income pledged to

others as collateral.

(7) Financial assets at amortised cost

Items December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

Current items:
Time deposit with maturity of
more than three months $ 120,204 $ 88,463

A. Amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to financial assets at amortised cost are listed
below:
Years ended December 31,
2022 2021
Interest income $ 745§ 280

B. As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, without taking into account any collateral held or other credit
enhancements, the maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of the amount that best represents
the financial assets at amortised cost held by the Group was $120,204 and $88,463 respectively.

C. Details of the Group’s financial assets at amortised cost pledged to others as collateral are provided
in Note 8.

D. Information relating to credit risk of financial assets at amortised cost 1s provided in Note 12(2).
The counterparties of the Group’s investments in certificates of deposits are financial institutions

with high credit quality, so the Group expects that the probability of counterparty default is remote.
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(8) Investments accounted for under equity method

2022 2021
At January 1 $ 121,309 § 205,090
Addition of investments accounted for under
equity method 44,770 34,129
Share of loss of investments accounted for under
equity method ( 30,434) ( 117,619)
Earnings distribution of investments accounted for
under equity method ( 622) ( 583)
Disposal of investments accounted for using equity
method ( 8) -
Changes in capital surplus - 1,074
Changes in other equity items ( 313) 157
Effects of foreign exchange 702 ( 939)
At December 31 $ 135,404 $ 121,309
A. List of long-term investments:
December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Ownership Ownership
Name of associates percentage Balance percentage Balance
Jsdway Digital Technology Co.,

Ltd. (Jsdway) 37.18 $ 49,485 37.18 $ 47,899
Hao-Ji film Ltd. (Hao-Ji) 42.86 30,021 ) )
Chuang Meng Shr Ii Co,, Ltd.

{Chuang Meng Shr I.) 33.03 22,984 33.03 26,240
Walkermedia Co., Ltd.

(Walkermedia) 30.00 5.105 30.00 11,006
Aotter Inc. (Aotter) 21.48 6,045 21.48 10,128
Taiwan e-sports Co., Ltd.

{Taiwan e-sports) 29.54 7,224 2954 5,383
Store Marais Co., Ltd. (Marais)

(Note 1) 7.69 11,192 7.69 8,667
Pri-One Marketing Co., Ltd.
4-Way Voice Cultural Co., Ltd.

{4-Way Voice) (Note 3) - - 38.00 491
Gungho Gamania Co., Limited

{Gungho Gamania) 49.00 - 49.00 8,957
Ju Shr Da Jiu (Shanghai)

International Trading Co.,

Ltd. (Ju Shr Da Jiu) (Note 2) 30.00 - 30.00 -
ACCI Group Limited (ACCI)

{(Note 2) (Note 4) - - 30.00 -
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December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

Ownership Ownership
Name of associates percentage Balance percentage Balance
Firedog creative Co., Ltd.
(Note 2) 4000 - 4000 -
5 135,404 3 121,309

Note 1: The Group has significant control as it has obtained majority of the board seats and,

accordingly, the investment was accounted for under equity method.

Note 2: All impairment losses derived from equity investments have been recognised based on

the Company’s assessment.
Note 3: The liquidation of 4-Way Voice Cultural Co., Ltd. was completed in August 2022.
Note 4: The liquidation of ACCI was completed in December 2022.

. The financial statements of investments accounted for under equity method, Gungho Gamania and
Jsdway, were audited by other independent auditors. The share of profit (loss) and other
comprehensive income (loss) of associates was ($83,443) for the year ended December 31, 2021,

and the balance of investments accounted for under equity method was $56,836 as at December
31, 2021.

. As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the carrying amount of the Group’s individually immaterial
associates amounted to $135,404 and $121,309, respectively. The Group’s share of the operating
results are summarised below:

Years ended December 31,

2022 2021
Loss for the year ($ 30,434) ($ 117,619)
Other comprehensive income, net of tax ( 313) 157
Total comprehensive loss ($ 30,747) ($ 117,462)

. There is no price in open market for associates of the Group, therefore, no fair value is applicable.

E. The Group is the single largest shareholder of Jsdway with a 37.18% equity interest. Given that

the remaining 62.82% equity interest in Jsdway is held by other few investors and the number of
votes of minority voting rights holders has exceeded the Group’s votes as they acted together, this
indicates that the Group has no current ability to direct the relevant activities of Jsdway.

Accordingly, the Group has no control, but only has significant influence, over the investee.
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(9) Property, plant and equipment

Transportation Office Leasehold Other Unfinished
Land Buildings Machinery equipment equipment  improvements equipment construction Total
At January 1, 2022
Cost $ 2246082 § 536,582 $ 429,755 % 1.226 % 92,428 § 36,134 § 44122 % 8,091 § 3,394,420
Accumulated depreciation - 168,055) ( 318,996) ( 1,166) ( 53,008) ( 30,890) ( 18,656) S 590,771)
Accumulated impairment - - ( 6,382) - - - - - ( 6,382)
$ 2246082 § 368,527 % 104,377 % 60 3§ 39,420 % 5,244 % 25,466 % 8,091 § 2,797,267

2022
Opening net book amount

as at January 1 $ 2,246,082 % 368,527 % 104,377 % 60 3 39,420 % 5,244 % 25,466 % 8.091 % 2,797,267
Additions - 9,016 75,111 - 23,147 11,342 9,600 15,768 143,984
Disposals - - - - ( 290) - - - ( 290}
Transfers - 15,489 - - - 3,352 2,893 ( 21,734 -
Depreciation charge - 38,055) ( 58,156) - 15,286) ( 5,528 ( 11,841) - ( 128,866)
Net exchange differences - - 316 - 25 2 - - 343
Closing net book amount

as at December 31 § 2246082 § 354977 $ 121,648 % 60 % 47,016 § 14,412 § 26,118 $ 2,125 § 2,812,438
At December 31, 2022
Cost 3 2246082 § 558,612 % 424299 % 1,245 % 102,697 § 26,301 § 53,130 % 2,125 § 3,414,491
Accumulated depreciation - 203.635) ( 296,269) ( 1.185) ( 55.681) ( 11,889) ( 27.012) S 595.671)
Accumulated impairment - - ( 6,382) - - - - - ( 5,382)

$ 2,246,082 § 354977 % 121,648 § 60 3§ 47,016 % 14,412 § 26,118 % 2,125 $ 2,812,438
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At January 1. 2021
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Accumulated impairment

2021

Opening net book amount
as at January 1

Additions

Disposals

Transfers

Depreciation charge

Net exchange differences

Closing net book amount
as at December 31

At December 31, 2021
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Accumulated impairment

A. The Group’s property, plant and equipment are mainly owner-occupied.
B. No borrowing cost was capitalised as part of property, plant and equipment.

C. Information about the property, plant and equipment that were pledged to others as collateral is provided in Note &.

Land

Transportation
improvements

Total

2,246,082

3,452,580
600,762)
6,382)

2,246,082

2,845,436

2,246,082

2,845,436

85,340
353)
132,577)
579)

2,246,082

2,797,267

2,246,082

3,394,420
590,771)
6,382)

2,246,082

2,797,267




(10) Leasing arrangements - lessee

A. The Group leases various assets including buildings, parking lot, machinery and business
vehicles. Rental contracts are typically made for periods of 1 to 5 years. Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The
lease agreements do not impose covenants, but leased assets may not be used as security for

borrowing purposes.

B. Short-term leases with a lease term of 12 months or less comprise buildings and multifunction
printers. For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, payments of lease commitments for

short-term leases amounted to $10,376 and $11,153, respectively.

C. The carrying amounts of right-of-use assets and the depreciation charge are as follows:

Book value
December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Buildings $ 55,606 $ 71,379
Land improvements 322 1,609
Transportation equipment (Business vehicles) 1,903 1,494
Machinery 16,102 21,056
$ 73,933 § 95,538

Depreciation charge

Years ended December 31,

2022 2021
Buildings $ 24,078 $ 24,520
Land improvements 1,288 1,453
Transportation equipment (Business vehicles) 1,848 1,542
Machinery 4,955 4,268
$ 32,169 § 31,783

D. For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, the additions to right-of-use assets were
$11,809 and $67,953, respectively.
E. Information on profit or loss in relation to lease contracts is as follows:

Years ended December 31,

2022 2021
Items affecting profit or loss
Interest expense on lease liabilities $ 743 $ 821
Expense on short-term lease contracts $ 10376 $ 11,153

F. For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Group’s total cash outflow for leases were
$44,258 and $43,929, respectively.
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(11) Leasing arrangements - lessor

A. The Group leases various assets including buildings. Rental contracts are typically made for
periods of 1 to 5 years. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide
range of different terms and conditions. To protect the lessor’s ownership rights on the leased

assets, leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.
B. Gain arising from operating lease agreements for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021
is as follows:
Years ended December 31,
2022 2021
Rent income $ 1,220 1.444

C. The maturity analysis of the lease payments under the operating leases is as follows:

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

2021 $ - % 305
2022 - 304
2023 914 ;
2024 914 ;
2025 914 -
2026 305 -

$ 3,047 $ 609
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(12) Intangible assets

Other Trademark Customer
License fees Software intangible assets right relationship Goadwill Total

At January 1, 2022
Cost $ 1,617,093 3 89,531 % 165,930 §$ 10,090 % 195,700 % 381,572 % 2,459,916
Accumulated amortisation ( 1,425,861) ( 40,438) ( 38,264) - ( 72,543) - ( 1,577,106)
Accumulated impairment ( 75,870) - ( 29.375) - - ( 146,821) ( 252,066)

3 115,362 § 49093 § 98,291 % 10,090 % 123,157 % 234,751 % 630,744
2022
Opening net book amount as at January 1 b 115,362 § 49093 § 98291 % 10,090 % 123,157 % 234,751 % 630,744
Additions 978,759 63,183 10,504 - - - 1,054,446
Amortisation charge ( 330,376) { 61,807) ( 10,175 - ( 18,838) - 421,196)
Impairment loss (Note2) ( 36,353) - ( 56,810) - - - 0 93,163)
Net exchange differences 2,624 170 1,948 - 254 2,563 7,559
Closing net book amount as at December 31 3 730,016 § 52,639 § 43,758 § 10,090 3 104,573 % 237,314 % 1,178,390
At December 31, 2022
Cost $ 1,140,099 § 98,023 % 179,132 § 10,090 % 197,132 % 386,238 § 2,010,714
Accumulated amortisation ( 363,452) ( 45384) ( 50,005) - ( 92,559) - 0 551,400)
Accumulated impairment ( 46,631) - ( 85,369) - - ( 148.,924) ( 280,924)

5 730,016 % 52,639 % 43758 % 10,090 3 104,573 % 237,314 § 1,178,390

185



Other Trademark Customer
License fees Software intangible assets right relationship Goodwill Total

At January 1, 2021
Cost 3 1,695,225 % 97,266 § 141,985 % 10,090 197,852 % 382,804 % 2,525,222
Accumulated amortisation ( 866,238) { 57,164) ( 32,382) - 55,924) - ( 1,011,708
Accumulated impairment ( 27,440) - - - - ( 74,411 ¢ 101,851)

3 801,547 § 40,102 3 109,603 § 10,090 141,928 § 308,393 % 1,411,663
2021
Opening net book amount as at January 1 3 801,547 § 40,102 § 109,603 % 10,090 141,928 $% 308,393 § 1,411,663
Additions 202,491 55,126 33,145 - - - 290,762
Amortisation charge ( 648,526) ( 45,934) ( 13,828) ; 18,621) - ( 726,909)
Disposals during the year - - ( 768) - - - ( 768)
Reclassifications (Note 1) 3,030 - 768 - - - 3,798
Impairment loss (Note 2) ( 69,219) - ( 29,749 - - ( 72,667) ( 171,635)
Net exchange differences ( 913 ( 201) ( 880) - 150) ( 975 ( 3,119,
Change in accounting estimated (Note 3) ( 173,048) - - - - - ( 173,048)
Closing net book amount as at December 31 3 115,362  § 49093 % 98,291 § 10,090 123,157 & 234,751 % 630,744
At December 31, 2021
Cost 3 1,617,093 % 89,531 3 165,930 3 10,090 195,700 $ 381,572 % 2,459916
Accumulated amortisation ( 1,425,861) ( 40,438) ( 38,264) - 72,543) - ( 1,577,106)
Accumulated impairment ( 75,870) - ( 29,375) - - ( 146,821) ( 252,066)

3 115,362 % 49093 § 98,291 % 10,090 123,157 % 234,751 % 630,744

Note 1: Pertains to other prepayment reclassified to License fees and other intangible assets.

Note 2: For impairment loss, refer to Note 6(14).

Note 3: For the change in accounting estimates, refer to Note 6(16).
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A. The details of amortisation are as follows:

Years ended December 31,

2022 2021
Operating costs $ 359,745 § 677,384
Selling expenses 18,619 17.200
General and administrative expenses 24,772 16,926
Research and development expenses 18,060 15,399
$ 421,196 $ 726,909

B. The Group acquired registered trademark from the acquisition of NOWnews. As the trademark
is assessed to have indefinite useful life, it shall not be amortised but shall be tested for

impairment annually.

C. Goodwill and trademark with an indefinite useful life are allocated to the Group’s cash-

generating units identified according to operating segment as follows:

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

Goodwill:
NOWnews $ 197,055 $ 197,055
Digicentre 141,149 141,149
AMI 18,917 17,050
GIH 27,442 24,735
Others 1,675 1,583
386,238 381,572
Less: Accumulated impairment ( 148,924) ( 146,821)
$ 237,314 § 234,751
Trademark:
NOWnews $ 10,090 $ 10,090

Acquisition prices for business combination are calculated based on the price of acquisition and
related direct costs. The amount of goodwill recognised is the difference of the acquisition price
less the net fair value of identifiable assets acquired. The allocation period of acquisition price

may not exceed one year after the acquisition.

D. The Group’s goodwill acquired in a business combination consisting of expected operating
revenue growth from acquired companies and benefits from its potential customer relations. In
accordance with TAS 36, goodwill acquired from business combination shall be tested for
impairment every vear and when there is any indication that it might have been impaired. The
impairment testing on goodwill as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

(a) For the impairment testing of goodwill, goodwill acquired in a business combination is
allocated to each of the cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the synergies
of the business combination. Each company may be a cash-generating unit which can

generate independent cash flows. Thus, the impairment of goodwill is calculated based on
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the difference between the recoverable amount and carrying amount of net assets of each
company.

(b) The Group used value-in-use calculated by external appraiser to be the recoverable amount
of subsidiaries, NOWnews, Digicentre and AMI, at December 31, 2022 and 2021. As the
recoverable amount of NOWnews and AMI was lower than the carrying amount at December
31, 2022 and 2021, goodwill was not impaired. As the recoverable amount of NOWnews and
AMI was lower than the carrying amount at December 31, 2021, goodwill was impaired. The

main assumptions used in calculating value-in-use by external appraiser are set out below:

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Growth rate 2.4%~6.4% 2.5%~5.5%
Discount rate 14.0%~14.2% 13.2%~14.1%

(¢) As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, aside from NOWnews, Digicentre and AMI, the
recoverable amounts of cash-generating units were calculated based on value-in-use. Because
the recoverable amounts exceeded the carrying amount, goodwill was not impaired. The key
assumptions used for value-in-use calculations take into consideration operating profit
margin, growth rate and discount rate.

(d) Management determined the budgeted operating profit margin based on past performance
and their expectations of market development. The weighted average growth rates are
consistent with the projection in industry reports. The discount rates were pre-tax and

reflected specific risks relating to the relevant operating segments.

(13) Other non-current assets

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

Overdue receivables $ 114261 § 106,343
Less: Loss allowance for overdue recervables ( 114.261) ( 106,343)
Refundable deposits 46,931 41,359
Others 34,300 15,748
$ 81,231 §$ 57,107

(14) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group recognised impairment loss of $93,163 and $171,635 for the years ended December 31,
2022 and 2021, respectively. Details of such loss are as follows:

Recognised in profit or loss
Years ended December 31,

2022 2021
Impairment loss - license fees $ 36,353 § 69,219
Impairment loss - other intangible assets 56,810 29,749
Goodwill - 72,667
$ 93,163 § 171,635
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A. The Group implemented impairment testing on the recoverable amount of goodwill at the
financial year-end date. Information on the determination of the recoverable amount is provided
in Note 6(12).

B. The Group assesses the recoverable amounts of agency rights and other intangible assets annually,
based on the expected future economic benefits arising from the use of the points generated from
income and expenses and the expected future economic benefits. Due to the recoverable amounts

being lower than the carrying amounts, impairment losses are recognized.

(15) Short-term borrowings
December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

Bank borrowings

Secured borrowings $ 91,760 $ 100,164
Credit lines $ 3,827,321 § 3,009,279
Interest rate range 1.275%~5.80% 1.05%~5.80%

(16) Other payables
December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

Store-value received on behalf of others $ 844,245  § 788,392
Acrrued service cost 521,529 288,571
Salary and annual bonus payable 216,391 190,832
Employees” compensation payable 207,929 205,913
Electronic payment received on behalf of others 109,778 50,067
Commission payable 97,332 85,633
Payable on business tax and withholding tax 89,496 95,249
Payable on equipment and intangible assets (Note) 39,497 28,349
Directors’ remuneration payable 36,333 34,219
Others 54,513 47,377

$ 2,217,043 § 1,814,602

Note: The payment obligations of certain game license are to pay game developers license fees if
the revenue reaches a certain amount within two years after the signing of the contract. The
Group recognised the license fees and payable on intangible assets after assessing that the
payment obligation is highly realisable. In the fourth quarter of 2021, the payment conditions
are confirmed settlement without paying, license fees and payables had been reversed.
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(17) Long-term borrowings
December 31, 2022: None.

Borrowing period and

Type of borrowings repayment term Interest rate ~ Collateral ~ December 31, 2021
Long-term bank
borrowings
Secured borrowings  Borrowing period is March  1.13%~1.70% Landand  § 80,000
20, 2015 ~ March 20, 2025, Buildings and
interest is payable monthly structures
for the first three years;

starting from the fourth year,
principal and interest are
payable quarterly in 28
mstallments
Less: Current portion { 80,000)

% -

(18) Pensions
A. Defined benefit plan

(a) The Company has a defined benefit pension plan in accordance with the Labor Standards Act,
covering all regular employees’ service years prior to the enforcement of the Labor Pension
Act on July 1, 2005 and service years thereafter of employees who chose to continue to be
subject to the pension mechanism under the Labor Standards Act. Under the defined benefit
pension plan, two units are accrued for each year of service for the first 15 years and one unit
for each additional year thereafter, subject to a maximum of 45 units. Pension benefits are
based on the number of units accrued and the average monthly salaries and wages of the last
6 months prior to retirement. The Company contributes monthly an amount equal to 2% of
the employees’ monthly salaries and wages to the retirement fund deposited with Bank of
Taiwan, the trustee, under the name of the independent retirement fund committee. Also, the
Company would assess the balance in the aforementioned labor pension reserve account by
December 31, every year. If the account balance is insufficient to pay the pension calculated
by the aforementioned method to the employees expected to qualify for retirement in the
following year, the Company will make contribution for the deficit before March in the

following year.

(b) The pension costs under the defined benefit pension plan of the Company for the vears ended
December 31, 2022 and 2021 were $792 and $839, respectively.
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(¢) The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows:

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

Present value of defined benefit obligations  ($ 67.757) ($ 72,581)
Fair value of plan assets 73,852 67,597
Net defined benefit assets/liability

(shown as other non-current assets/
liabilities) $ 6,095 ($ 4,984)

(d) Movements in net defined benefit liabilities are as follows:

Present value of Net defined
defined benefit Fair value of  benefit (liability)
obligations plan assets asset
Year ended December 31, 2022
Balance at January 1 ($ 72,581) $ 67,597 ($ 4.984)
Current service cost ( 756) - ( 756)
Interest (expense) income ( 508) 472 ( 36)
( 73,845) 68,069 ( 5,776)
Remeasurements:
Return on plan assets - 5,120 5,120
Change in financial assumptions 5,555 - 5,555
Experience adjustments 90 - 90
5,645 5,120 10,765
Pension fund contribution - 1,106 1,106
Paid pension 443 ( 443) -
Balance at December 31 (% 67,757) $ 73,852 § 6,095
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Present value of Net defined
defined benefit Fair value of  benefit (liability)

obligations plan assets asset
Year ended December 31, 2021
Balance at January 1 ($ 77,575) $ 67,106 ($ 10,469)
Current service cost ( 797) - ( 797)
Interest (expense) income ( 310) 268 ( 42)
( 78,682) 67,374 ( 11,308)
Remeasurements:
Return on plan assets - 945 945
Change in financial assumptions 2,582 - 2,582
Experience adjustments 1,581 - 1,581
4,163 945 5,108
Pension fund contribution - 1,216 1,216
Paid pension 1,938 ( 1,938) -
Balance at December 31 ($ 72,581) $ 67,597 ($ 4,984)

(e) The Bank of Taiwan was commissioned to manage the Fund of the Company’s defined

)

benefit pension plan in accordance with the Fund’s annual investment and utilisation plan
and the “Regulations for Revenues, Expenditures, Safeguard and Utilisation of the Labor
Retirement Fund” (Article 6: The scope of utilisation for the Fund includes deposit in
domestic or foreign financial institutions, investment in domestic or foreign listed, over-the-
counter, or private placement equity securities, investment in domestic or foreign real estate
securitization products, etc.). With regard to the utilisation of the Fund, its minimum earnings
in the annual distributions on the final financial statements shall be no less than the earnings
attainable from the amounts accrued from two-year time deposits with the interest rates
offered by local banks. If the earnings is less than aforementioned rates, government shall
make payment for the deficit after being authorised by the Regulator. The Company has no
right to participate in managing and operating that fund and hence the Company is unable to
disclose the classification of plan assets fair value in accordance with IAS 19 paragraph 142.
The composition of fair value of plan assets as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 is given in
the Annual Labor Retirement Fund Utilisation Report announced by the government.

The principal actuarial assumptions used were as follows:
Years ended December 31,
2022 2021
Discount rate 1.4% 0.70%
Future salary increases 3.5% 3.50%

Assumptions regarding future mortality experience are set based on actuarial advice in

accordance with published statistics and experience in each territory.
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Because the main actuarial assumption changed, the present value of defined benefit

obligation is affected. The analysis was as follows:

Discount rate Future salary increases
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
0.25% 0.23% 0.25% 0.25%

December 31, 2022

Effect on present value of
defined benefit obligation (3 1,849) (§ 1918) § 1,706 ($ 1,657)

December 31, 2021

Effect on present value of
defined benefit obligation (3 2,067) § 2,144 $ 1,900 ($ 1,846)

The sensitivity analysis above is based on one assumption which changed while the other
conditions remain unchanged. In practice, more than one assumption may change all at once.
The method of analysing sensitivity and the method of calculating net pension liability in the

balance sheet are the same.

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not

change compared to the previous period.

(g) Expected contributions to the defined benefit pension plan of the Company for the year

ending December 31, 2023 amount to $1,093.
B. Detined contribution plan

(a) Effective July 1, 2005, the Company and its domestic subsidiaries have established a defined
contribution pension plan (the “New Plan”) under the Labor Pension Act (the “Act”),
covering all regular employees with R.O.C. nationality. Under the New Plan, the Company
and its domestic subsidiaries contribute monthly an amount based on 6% of the employees’
monthly salaries and wages to the employees” individual pension accounts at the Bureau of
Labor Insurance. The benefits accrued are paid monthly or in lump sum upon termination of

employment.

(b) Gamania Digital Entertainment (Beijing) Co., Ltd., Legion Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
and Jollywiz Digital Business Co., Ltd. have a defined contribution plan. Monthly
contributions to an independent fund administered by the government in accordance with the
pension regulations in the People’s Republic of China (PRC) are based on a certain
percentage of employees” monthly salaries and wages. The contribution percentage for the
years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 were both 20%~22%. Other than the monthly

contributions, the Group has no further obligations.
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(¢) Gamania Digital Entertainment (H.K.) Co., Ltd., Gash Point (Hong Kong) Company Limited,
Gash Point (Japan) Co., Itd., Gash Point Korea Co., Ltd., Joymobee Entertainment Co., I.td.,
Hapod Digital Technology Co., Ltd., Jollywiz International (HK) Co., ILtd., Ciirco (HK) Co.,
Ltd., Digicentre (HK) Company Limited and Hyperg Smart Security Technology Pte., Ltd.
provide pension reserves annually for their employees in accordance with the local

regulations.

(d) The pension costs under the defined contribution pension plan of the Group For the years
ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 were $42,448 and $46,305, respectively.

(19) Common stock
As of December 31, 2022, the Company’s authorised capital was $2,500,000, consisting of 250

million shares of ordinary stock (including 12 million shares reserved for employee stock options),
and the paid-in capital was $1,754,936 with a par value of $10 (in dollars) per share. All proceeds
from shares issued have been collected.

(20) Capital surplus

A. Pursuant to the R.O.C. Company Law, capital surplus arising from paid-in capital in excess of
par value on issuance of common stocks and donations can be used to cover accumulated deficit
or to issue new stocks or cash to sharcholders in proportion to their share ownership, provided
that the Company has no accumulated deficit. Further, the R.O.C. Securities and Exchange Law
requires that the amount of capital surplus to be capitalised mentioned above should not exceed
10% of the paid-in capital cach year. Capital surplus should not be used to cover accumulated

deficit unless the legal reserve is insufficient.

B. When it is resolved by the shareholders at their shareholders” meeting, legal reserve and whole
or part of capital reserve arising from the following items can be used to issue new stocks or cash
to shareholders in proportion to their share ownership, provided that the Company has no

accumulated deficit:
(a) Paid-in capital in excess of par value on issuance of common stocks; and

(b) Donations.

(21) Unappropriated retained carnings
A. Under the Company’s Articles of Incorporation, the current year’s earnings, if any, shall first be
used to pay all taxes and offset prior years’ operating losses, then 10% of the remaining amount
shall be set aside as legal reserve until the legal reserve equals the total capital stock balance, and
appropriate or reverse for special reserve as required by the operating needs of the Company or
regulations when necessary. The remainder, if any, to be retained or to be appropriated shall be

proposed by the Board of Directors and resolved by the stockholders at the stockholders’ meeting.
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B. The Company’s dividend policy adopts the conservatism principle, with consideration of the
Company’s profit, financial structure and future development plans. At least 10% of the
Company’s distributable earnings as of the end of the period shall be appropriated as cash

dividends.

C. Except for covering accumulated deficit or issuing new stocks or cash to sharcholders in
proportion to their share ownership, the legal reserve shall not be used for any other purpose.
The use of legal reserve for the issuance of stocks or cash to sharcholders in proportion to their
share ownership is permitted, provided that the distribution of the reserve is limited to the portion

in excess of 25% of the Company’s paid-in capital.

D. (a) In accordance with the regulations, the Company shall set aside special reserve from the debit
balance on other equity items at the balance sheet date before distributing earnings. When
debit balance on other equity items is reversed subsequently, the reversed amount could be

included in the distributable carnings.

(b) The amounts previously set aside by the Company as special reserve on initial application of
IFRSs in accordance with Order No. Financial-Supervisory-Securities-Corporate-1010012863,
dated April 6, 2012, shall be reversed proportionately when the relevant assets are used,
disposed of or reclassified subsequently.

E. On August 5, 2021, the shareholders during their meeting resolved the 2020 appropriations of

retained earnings as follows:
Year ended December 31, 2020

Dividend per
Amount share (in dollars)
Legal reserve appropriated $ 113,664 §$ -
Special reserve appropriated 379,928 -
Cash dividends distributed to shareholders 701,974 4.0
$ 1,195,566 $ 4.0

F. On June 16, 2022, the shareholders during their meeting approved the appropriations of 2021
retained earnings as follows:
Year ended December 31, 2021

Dividend per
Amount share (in dollars)
Legal reserve appropriated $ 109,652 § -
Reversal of special reserve ( 46,552) -
Cash dividends distributed to shareholders 877,468 5.0
$ 940,568 $ 5.0
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G. On March 9, 2023, the board of directors meeting resolved the proposal of 2022 appropriations
of retained earnings as follows:

Year ended December 31, 2022

Dividend per
Amount share (in dollars)
Legal reserve appropriated $ 123,546 $ -
Special reserve appropriated ( 66,003) -
Cash dividends distributed to shareholders 1,017,863 5.8
$ 1,075,406 $ 5.8

H. Information about the appropriations approved by the Board of Directors and resolved by the
shareholders and appropriations of employees’ compensation and directors’ remuneration will be

posted in the “Market Observation Post System™ at the website of the Taiwan Stock Exchange.

I. For the information relating to employees’ compensation and directors’ and supervisors

remuneration, refer to Note 6(28).

(22) Other equity
2022

Unrealised gain or loss
on financial assets at

fair value through
Translation other comprehensive
differences income Total
At January 1 ($ 131,809) ($ 373,543) ($ 505,352)
Revaluation - Group - ( 53.330) ( 53,330)
Revaluation - Associates - ( 313) ( 313)
Revaluation transferred to
retained earnings - group - 24,440 24,440
Currency translation differences:
- Group 95,206 - 95,206
At December 31 ($ 36,603) ($ 402,746) ($ 439.349)
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2021

Unrealised gain or loss
on financial assets at

fair value through
Translation other comprehensive
differences income Total
At January 1 ($ 107,968) ($ 443,936) ($ 551,904)
Revaluation - Group - 58,654 38,654
Revaluation - Associates - 157 157
Revaluation transferred to
retained earnings - Group - 11,582 11,582
Currency translation differences:
- Group ( 23.841) - ( 23.841)
At December 31 ($ 131,809) (S 373,543) ($ 505,352)

(23) Operating revenue
Years ended December 31,

2022 2021
Revenue from contracts with customers $ 11,388,021 §$ 11,372,477

A. Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers

The Group derives revenue from the transfer of games, goods and services over time and at a

point in time in the following major types:

Online and
Year ended mobile games Service Sales Revenue from
December 31, 2022 revenue revenue revenue stored-values Total
Revenue from external
customer contracts $ 9034803 § 1366400 $ 530,759 § 456,059 § 11,388,021
Timing of revenue recognition
At a point in time $ 8.139305 § 572,348 % 530,759 §F 456,059 § 9,698,471

Over time 895,498 794,052 - - 1,689,550

$ 9034803 § 1366400 $ 530,759 § 456,059 § 11,388,021
Online and
Year ended mobile games Service Sales Revenue from
December 31, 2021 revenue revenue revenue stored-values Total
Revenue from external
customer contracts $ 9,087,849 $ 1,319,768 $ 666,931 $ 297, 929 $ 1 1,372, 477
Timing of revenue recognition
At a point in time $ 8.424851 § 563,693 $ 666,931 § 297929 § 9953404

Over time 662,998 756,075 - - 1,419,073
§ 9,087,849 1,319,768 § 666,931 § 297,929 § 11,372,477

&
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B. Contract liabilities

(a) The Group recognised contract liabilities related to the contract revenue from sales
amounting to $379,934, $385,016 and $281,129 as of December 31, 2022, December 31,
2021, and January 1, 2021, respectively. The Group’s contract liabilities are mainly deferred
revenue from points stored but unused or unconsumed in the online game or mobile game,
and are amortised as revenue over the period of the services or the estimated useful period of
the virtual items when they are actually used.

(b) Revenue recognised that was included in the contract liability balance at the beginning of the
year:

Years ended December 31,
2022 2021

Revenue from games $ 385,016 $ 281,129

(24) Interest income

Years ended December 31,

2022 2021

Interest income from bank deposits $ 20,154 § 3,026
Interest income from financial assets at
amortised cost 745 280
$ 20,899 § 3,306
(25) Other income
Years ended December 31,

2022 2021
Rental revenue $ 1,220 $ 1,444
Dividend income - 145
Other income 18,407 10,621
$ 19,627 $ 12,210

(26) Other gains and losses

Years ended December 31,

2022 2021
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment  ($ 3) (% 47)
(Loss) gain on disposal of investments ( 895) 292
Foreign exchange gain 44,462 11,173
Impairment loss ( 93,163) ( 171,635)
Other losses ( 5,114) ( 19,804)
(% 54,713) (8 180,021)
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(27) Finance costs
Years ended December 31,

2022 2021
Interest expense:
Bank borrowings $ 4,750 % 6,054
Lease liability 743 821
$ 5,493 § 6,875

(28) Employee benefit, depreciation and amortisation expense

Years ended December 31,

2022 2021
Employee benefit expense
Wages and salaries $ 1,154,589 §% 1,032,795
Directors’ remuneration 40,114 34,146
Labor and health insurance fees 87,724 76,217
Pension costs 43,240 47,144
Other personnel expenses 48,860 42,748
$ 1,374,527 $ 1,233,050
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
(including right-of-use assets) $ 161,035 § 164,360
Amortisation expense $ 421,196 $ 726,909

A. According to the Articles of Incorporation of the Company, the profit before tax before deduction
of employees’ compensation and directors’ remuneration of the Company, shall be distributed as
employees’” compensation and directors’ remuneration. The ratio shall be 10%~15% for
employees’ compensation and shall not be higher than 2% for directors’ remuneration. However,
where the Company has accumulated losses, the Company shall first use any profit to cover such

losses.

B. (a) For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, employees’ compensation was accrued at
$173.572 and $165.319, respectively; while directors’ remuneration was accrued at $34,714

and $33,064, respectively. The aforementioned amounts were recognised in salary expenses.

(b) For the year ended December 31, 2022, the employees’ compensation and directors’
remuneration were estimated and accrued based on the Company’s Articles of Incorporation
of distributable profit of current year as of the end of reporting period. Employees’
compensation and directors’ remuneration for 2022 amounted to $173,572 and $34,700
respectively, as resolved at the meeting of the Board of Directors. The difference in
emplovees” compensation and directors’ remuneration for 2022 amounting to $14
respectively, had been adjusted in the profit or loss for 2023.
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(¢) Employees” compensation and directors’ remuneration for 2021 amounted to $163,299 and
$32,600, respectively, as resolved at the meeting of the Board of Directors. The difference in
employees” compensation and directors’ remuneration for 2021 of $2,020 had been adjusted
in profit or loss for 2022 of $464.

C. Information about the appropriation of employees’ compensation and directors’ remuneration by
the Company as resolved by the Board of Directors and stockholders will be posted in the
‘Market Observation Post System” at the website of the Taiwan Stock Exchange.

(29) Income tax
A. Components of income tax expense:

(a) Components of income tax expense

Years ended December 31,

2022 2021

Current tax:
Current tax on profit for the year $ 390,233 § 392,684
Tax on undistributed earnings 7,798 16,079
Prior year income tax overestimation ( 20,096) ( 2,417)
Deferred tax:
Origination and reversal of temporary

differences 52,406 29,635
Income tax expense $ 430,341 $ 435,981

(b) The income tax credit relating to components of other comprehensive income is as follows:

Years ended December 31,

2022 2021
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation $ 2,153 § 1,022
Currency translation differences 11,592 ( 4,978)
$ 13,745 ($ 3,956)

B. The reconciliation between accounting income and income tax expense:

Y ears ended December 31,

2022 2021

Tax calculated based on profit before tax

and statutory tax rate (Note) $ 374,068 $ 378,461
Effect from items disallowed by tax regulation 90,394 44,821
Overseas investment income not recognised as

defered tax liabilities ( 21,823) ( 964)
Prior year income tax over estimation ( 20,096) ( 2,416)
Tax on unappropriated retained earnings 7,798 16,079
Income tax expense $ 430341 $ 435,981

Note: The basis for computing the applicable tax rate are the rates applicable is the respective

countries where the Group entities operate.
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C. Amount of deferred tax assets or liabilities as a result of temporary differences are as follows:

Year ended December 31, 2022

Recognised in other

Recognised in comprehensive
January 1 profit or loss mcome December 31
—Deferred tax assets:
Provision for bad debts m excess of the allowable limit $ 3,555 (% 1,696) $ - 3 1,859
Allowance for inventory obsolescence 524 42 - 566
Investment loss accounted for under equity method 78,033 ( 14.607) - 63,426
Impairment loss on intangible assets 5,627 211 - 5,838
Compensation for unused leave 4,905 - - 4,905
Book-tax difference on property, plant and equipment from business combination 622 ( 21) - 601
Deferred revenue 6,367 ( 594) - 5,773
Pension payable 997 ( 62) ( 935) -
Loss carryforward 3,902 1,453 - 5,355
Royalty payable 19,069 ( 15,224) - 3,845
Financial statements translation differences of foreign operations 14,918 - ( 11,592) 3,326
Unrealised exchange loss 1,004 388 - 1,392
$ 139,523 (8 30,110) (3 12,527) % 96,886
—Deferred tax liabilities:
Investment income accounted for under equity method ($ 36,398) (3 19,520) § - (3 55,918)
Book-tax difference on intangible assets from business combination ( 29.816) ( 2,631) - ( 32,447)
Unrealised exchange gain ( 11 ( 31%) - ( 329)
Depreciation ( 173) 173 - -
Pension - - ( 1,218) ( 1,218)
(% 66,398) (3 22,296) (3 1,218) ($ 89,912)
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Year ended December 31, 2021

Recognised m other

Recognised in comprehensive
January 1 profit or loss meome December 31
—Deferred tax assets:
Provision for bad debts in excess of the allowable limit $ 4,599 (% 1,044) $ 3,555
Allowance for inventory obsolescence 487 37 524
Impairment loss on financial assets 1,971 ( 1,971) -
Investment loss accounted for under equity method 76,824 1,209 78,033
Impairment loss on intangible assets 6,937 ( 1,310} 5,627
Compensation for unused leave 4,905 - 4.905
Book-tax difference on property, plant and equipment from business combination 642 ( 20) 622
Deferred revenue 2,010 4,357 6,367
Pension payable 2,094 ( 75 ( 1,022) 997
Loss carryforward 6,000 ( 2.098) 3,902
Rovalty payable 48,440 ( 29.371) 19,069
Fmancial statements translation differences of foreign operations 9,940 - 4978 14,918
Unrealised exchange loss 502 412 1,004
3 165441 ($ 29874) $ 3,956 % 139,523
—Deferred tax liabilities:
Investment income accounted for under equity method ($ 32,833) (% 3,565) ($ 36,398)
Book-tax difference on intangible assets from business combination ( 33,411) 3,595 ( 29.,816)
Unrealised exchange gain ( 201) 190 ( 11)
Depreciation ( 192) 19 ( 173)
(3 66,637) $ 239 ($ 66,398)
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D. The Company and the Company’s subsidiaries” expiration dates of unused loss carryforward and

amounts of unrecognised deferred tax assets are as follows:

December 31, 2022

Unrecognised
Amount filed/ Unused tax deferred
Year incurred assessed credits tax assets Usable until year
2012~2022 $ 3,067,717 § 2,784,576 $ 2,784,576 2032
December 31, 2021
Unrecognised
Amount filed/ Unused tax deferred
Year incurred assessed credits tax assets Usable until year
2011~2021 $ 2,742,628 § 2,740,000 $ 2,740,000 2031

E. The amounts of deductible temporary differences that were not recognised as deferred tax assets

are as follows:
December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

Deductible temporary differences $ 172,125  $ 281,242

F. The Company’s and its domestic subsidiaries’ assessed and approved income tax returns are as

follows:
Latest Year
Assessed by
Tax Authority
The Company, Digicentre, Gash Point, NOWnews, Bjolly, Two Tigers, 2020

Ants’ Power, Indiland, Gamania Asia, Ciirco, Coture New Media,
WeBackers, BeanGo!, Fundation, GAMA PAY, Madsugr, Jollybuy,
Coco, Jollywiz, Conetter CoMarketing
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(29) Earnings per share

Basic earnines per share
Profit attributable to ordinary
sharcholders of the parent
Diluted carnings per share
Profit attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the parent

Assumed conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary
shares
Employees” compensation

(Note)

Profit attributable to
ordinary sharcholders of the
parent plus assumed
conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares

Basic earnines per share
Profit attributable to ordinary
sharcholders of the parent
Diluted carnings per share
Profit attributable to ordinary
sharcholders of the parent

Assumed conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary
shares
Employees” compensation

(Note)

Profit attributable to
ordinary sharcholders of the
parent plus assumed
conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares

Year ended December 31, 2022

Weighted average

number of ordinary Earnings per

shares outstanding share

Amount afier tax (shares 1n thousands) (in dollars)
$ 1,279,696 175,494  § 7.29
$ 1,279,696 -
- 2,990

$ 1,279,696 178,484 § 7.17

Year ended December 31, 2021

Weighted average

number of ordinary Earnings per

shares outstanding share

Amount afier tax (shares 1n thousands) (in dollars)
$ 1,106,281 175,494  § 6.30
$ 1,106,281 -
- 2,752

$ 1,106,281 178,246 §$ 6.21
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Note: Effective January 1, 2008, as employees’ compensation could be distributed in the form of
stock, the diluted EPS computation shall include those estimated shares that would increase
from employees’ stock compensation issuance in the weighted-average number of common
shares outstanding during the reporting period, taking into account the dilutive effects of stock
compensation on potential common shares; whereas, basic EPS shall be calculated based on
the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding during the reporting period that
include the shares of employees’ stock compensation for the appropriation of prior year
carnings, which have already been resolved at the shareholders” meeting held in the reporting
period. Since capitalisation of employees’ compensation no longer belongs to distribution of
stock dividends (or retained carnings and capital reserve capitalised), the calculation of basic

EPS and diluted EPS for all periods presented shall not be adjusted retroactively.

(31) Transactions with non-controlling interest

The Group did not subscribe to the capital increase raised by a subsidiary proportionally to its

interest in the subsidiary.

A. The subsidiaries, JollyBuy, NOWnews and GAMA PAY, increased capital by issuing new shares
for cash for the year ended December 31, 2022. However, the Group did not acquire additional
shares proportionately to its interest; thus, the share ownership increased by 0.56%, 0.47% and
8.52%, respectively; the company acquired 100% equity interested in Gamania Digital
Entertainment (HK) Co., Ltd. from Gamania China Holdings T.td. the impact of the transaction

attributed to owners of parent is as follows:

JollyBuy NOWnews
Year ended December 31,
2022 2022

Cash $ - 3 5,323
Increase in carrying amount of non-controlling

interest ( 1,256) ( 0,726)
Retained earnings - changes in parent’s

ownership interest in subsidiary (8 934) (% 1,403)
Capital surplus - changes in parent’s

ownership interest in subsidiary (8 322) § .
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GIH GAMA PAY
Year ended December 31,

2022 2022
Cash $ - (% 13,789)
Increase (decrease) in carrying amount of
non-controlling interest ( 3.958) 10,263
Retained earnings - changes in parent’s
ownership interest in subsidiary (% 2,021) ($ 3,526)
Capital surplus - changes in parent’s
ownership interest in subsidiary (% 1,937) § -
Gash Point
Year ended
December 31, 2022
Cash $ -
Decrease in carrying amount of non-controlling
interest 16,160
Capital surplus - changes in parent’s
ownership interest in subsidiary $ 16,160

. The subsidiary, AMI, redeemed treasury shares without consideration for the three months ended
March 31, 2022. Therefore, the share ownership of the Group increased by 1.84%, the carrying
amount of non-controlling interest decreased by $5,158 and capital surplus - changes in parent’s
ownership interest in subsidiary increased by $5,158.

. The subsidiary, JollyBuy, redeemed treasury shares with $915 for the nine months ended
September 30, 2022. Therefore, the share ownership of the Group increased by 1.1%, the
carrying amount of non-controlling interest decreased by $1,456 and capital surplus - changes in

parent’s ownership interest in subsidiary increased by $341.

. The subsidiaries, JollyBuy, GAMAPAY, Ciirco and NOWnews, increased capital by issuing new
shares for cash for the year ended December 31, 2021. However, the Group did not acquire
additional shares proportionately to its interest; thus, the share ownership increased by 0.86%,
7.03%, 0.06%, and 0.34%, respectively. The impact of the transaction attributed to owners of

parent is as follows:

Year ended December 31, 2021

Jollybuy GAMA PAY
Cash $ - $ -
Increase in carrying amount of
non-controlling interest ( 433) ( 19,444)
Capital surplus - changes in parent’s ownership
interest in subsidiary (% 435) (% 19,444)
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Year ended December 31, 2021

Ciirco NOWnews
Cash $ - 3 13.977
Increase in carrying amount of
non-controlling interest ( 29) ( 15,232)
Decrease in unappropriated retained earnings  ($ 29) ($ 1,255)
Year ended
December 31, 2021
JollyBuy
Cash $ -
Increase in carrying amount of
non-controlling interest ( 980)
Decrease in unappropriated retained earnings ($ 980)

(32) Supplemental cash flow information

Investing activities with partial cash payments:

Years ended December 31,

2022 2021
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment $ 143,984 $ 85,340
Add: Opening balance of other payables 22,484 24,590
Less: Ending balance of other payables ( 35,478) ( 22,484)
Cash paid during the vear $ 130,990 $ 87,446

Years ended December 31,

2022 2021
Acquisition of intangible assets $ 1,054,446 $ 290,762
Add: Opening balance of other payables 5,865 454,258
Less: Ending balance of other payables ( 4,019) ( 5,865)
Ending balance of other payables - related
parties - ( 450,000)
Cash paid during the year 5 1,056,292 § 289.155
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(33) Changes in liabilities from financing activities

In accordance with amendments to IAS 7, ‘Disclosure initiative’, movements for the years ended

December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

Long-term Liabilities from
Short-term borrowings Lease financing
borrowings {Note) liabilities oross
January 1, 2022 $§ 100,164 $ 80,000 § 95,667 § 275,831
Changes in cash flow from financing
activitics ( 17,726) ( 80,000) ( 33,139) ( 130,865)
Impact of changes in foreign exchange
rate 9,322 - 347 9,669
Changes in other non-cash items
Increase in right-of-use assets - - 11,809 11,809
Termination of right-of-use assets . - ( 381) ( 581)
December 31, 2022 5 91,760 $ - 3 74,103 § 165,863
Long-term Liabilities from
Short-term borrowings Lease financing
borrowings (Note) liabilities 21088
January 1, 2021 $ 226,148 § 240,000 $ 66,919 § 533,067
Changes in cash flow from financing
activitics ( 123,495) ( 160,000) ( 31,955) ( 315.,450)
Impact of changes in foreign exchange
rate ( 2,489) - ( 69) ( 2,558)
Changes in other non-cash items
Increase in right-of-use assets - - 67,933 67,953
Termination of right-of-use assets - - 7.181) ( 7,181)
December 31, 2021 § 100,164 $ 80,000 § 95,667 $ 275,831

Note: Including long-term loans due within one year or one business cycle.

7. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(1) Parent and ultimate controlling party

As the Company’s shares are widely held, the Company has no ultimate parent company and ultimate

controlling party.

(2) Names of related parties and relationship with the Company

Names of related parties Relationship with the Company

Pri-One Marketing Co., Ltd.

GungHo Gamania Co., Limited

Jsdway Digital Technology Co., Ltd. (Jsdway)
Aotter Inc.

Walker Media Co., Ltd.

Store Marais Co., Litd.
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Names of related parties Relationship with the Company
Gamania Cheer Up Foundation Other related party

»”

Wanwin International Co., Ltd.
Simsense Technology Sdn. Bhd.
Dapili International Marketing Co., Ltd.

I

I

(3) Significant transactions and balances with related parties

A. Operating revenue

Years ended December 31,

2022 2021
Sales of goods:
Associates $ 414 % 1,445
Other related parties 21,507 39,048
$ 21921 % 40,493
Sales of services:
Associates $ 10,368  § 22,350
Other related parties 126,512 89,981
$ 136,880 $ 112,331

(a) Sales of goods are on-line games revenue generated from game cards sold by associates and
sales revenue of server room equipment in accordance with mutual agreements. The online
games revenue has no similar transactions to compare with, and the payment term is the same
with non-related parties.

(b) Sales of services are generated from a certain percentage of value-added services provided to
related parties, customer services, production of advertisements, and providing IDC service

that are in accordance with mutual agreements.

B. Operating costs

Years ended December 31,

2022 2021
Service costs:
Associates $ 15 $ -
Other related parties 2,983 7.776
$ 2,998 $ 7,776

Service costs arise from the sales of services. All abovementioned costs are based on mutual

agreement.
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C. Operating expense (shown in selling expenses and general and administrative expenses)

Years ended December 31,

2022 2021
Associates $ 18,670 $ 20,741
Other related parties 29,242 10,729
$ 47,912 $ 31,470

The above includes expenses paid to associates and other related parties for the Company’s
advertisements and game development, which were based on mutual agreements.

D. Donation (shown in general and administrative expenses)

Years ended December 31,
2022 2021

Other related party
Gamania Cheer Up Foundation $ 19,000 $ 17,500

The Group made donations in support of projects for caring and encouraging the youth which had

been resolved by the Board of Directors.

E. Receivables

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

Accounts receivable:

Associates $ 17,093  § 8,230
Other related parties 3,558 3,111
$ 20,651 $ 11,341

Other receivables:
Associates $ 2,539 % 2,182
Other related parties 32 32
$ 2,571  § 2,214

(a) Accounts receivable arise mainly from service revenue, advertising revenue and IDC services.
Accounts receivable are not pledged as collateral, not subject to interest and no allowance was
provided on such receivables.

(b) Other receivables arise mainly from rent receivable from associates and payments on behalf

of others.
F. Pavables
December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Accounts payable:
Associates $ 1 $ -
Other related parties 1,571 7,187

$ 1,572 § 7,187
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December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

Other payables:
Associates $ 5441 §$ 5,863
Other related parties 346,235 152,721

$ 351,676 3§ 158,584

(a) Accounts payable are payables for costs relating to service revenue and are due 60 days after
the purchase. The payables do not bear interest.

(b) Other payables are receipts under custody arising from value-added services provided to
related parties, less a certain percentage of service revenue, and payables for mobile games

development and advertisements.

(4) Kev management compensation

Years ended December 31,

2022 2021
Short-term employee benefits $ 177,356  § 146,990
Post-employment benefits 108 229
$ 177,464 § 147,219
8. PLEDGED ASSETS
The Group’s assets pledged as collateral are as follows:
Book value
Pledged assets December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021 Pledge purpose
Other current assets
Demand deposits $ 196,680 $ 228,065 Guarantee for short-term borrowing
facility, performance bond of on-line
game card’s standard contracts,
trusted electronic payment accounts,
trust performance bond for E-
commerce service and performance
bond of stickers
Time deposits 30,708 - Guarantee for short-term borrowing

facility
Financial assets at
amortised cost-current
Time deposits 23,000 62,319 Guarantee for short-term borrowing
facility and credit card merchant

Property, plant and

equipment
Land 2,246,082 2,246,082 Short-term and long-term loans /
Credit lines
Buildings and 247,184 252,829 Short-term and long-term loans
structures / Credit lines

$ 2,743,654 % 2,789,295
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9. SIGNIFICANT CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND UNRECOGNISED CONTRACT COMMITMENTS

(1) Contingencies
None.

(2) Commitments
The Group contracted the use of cable lines, T1 and T3, with rental charges based on utilisation. In

addition, the Group contracted with several on-line game vendors and will pay royalty based on actual

usage.

10. SIGNIFICANT DISASTER L.OSS

None.

11. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE BAL.ANCE SHEET DATE
On March 9, 2023, the Company’s board of directors has approved the following significant events:

A. Please refer to Note 6(21) G. appropriations of retained carnings.

B. The company plan to increase shares issued by subsidiary, Jollybuy, by not over $70,000 in times.

12. OTHERS
(1) Capital risk management
The Group’s principal objectives when managing capital are to maintain an integrity credit rating
and a good capital structure to support operations and maximise stockholders’ equity. In order to
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to

shareholders.

(2) Financial instruments

A. Financial instruments by category

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

Financial assets
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Financial assets designated at fair
value through profit or loss $ 15000 % -
Financial assets at fair value through

other comprehensive income
Designation of equity mstruments $ 117,581 § 198,626
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December 31, 2022

December 31, 2021

Financial assets at amortised cost

Cash and cash equivalents S 3,737,319 § 3,418,890
Financial asscts at amortised cost 120,204 88,463
Notes receivable 11 752
Accounts receivable (including
related partics) 806,017 887.404
Other receivables (including
related parties) 535,528 262,703
Other financial assets 227388 228,065
Guarantee deposits paid 46,931 41,359
$ 5,473,398 % 4,927,702
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilitics at amortised cost
Short-term borrowings $ 91,760 % 100,164
Accounts payable (including
related partics) 616,934 571,334
Other payables (including related
parties) 2,568,719 1,973,186
Long-term borrowings (including
current portion) - 80,000
Guarantee deposits received 15,224 16,964
$ 3,292.637 §$ 2,741,648
Lease liability $ 74,103 § 95,667

B. Financial risk management policies

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including market risk (including

foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s

risk management program considers the effect of economic environment, competition and market

value risk. The Group attains to the best risk position, holds appropriate liquidity position and

centers on management of all the market risks. To reach the objective of risk management, the

Group’s hedged activities are focused on the market value risk and the cash flow risk.

C. Significant financial risks and degrees of financial risks
(a) Market risk

Foreien exchange risk

1. Each of the entities in the Group operates in different countries and is exposed to foreign

exchange risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily with respect to the USD.

Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions, recognised assets and

liabilities and net investments in foreign operations.
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ii. Management has set up a policy to require group companies to manage their foreign
exchange risk against their functional currency. To manage their foreign exchange risk
arising from future commercial transactions and recognised assets and liabilities, the
Group set the natural hedging as principle. Foreign exchange risk arises when future
commercial transactions, recognised assets or liabilities are denominated in a currency

that is not the entity’s functional currency.

iii. The Group’s businesses involve some non-functional currency operations. The
information on assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies of each entity in

the Group whose values would be materially affected by the exchange rate fluctuations is

as follows:
December 31, 2022
Foreign currency
(Foreign currency: Functional amount Book value
currency) (in thousands)  Exchange rate (NTD)
Financial assets
Monetary items
USD:NTD $ 14,158 30,710 § 434,792
HKD:NTD 8,497 3.938 33,461
HKD:USD (Note) 56,247 0.128 221,100
RMB:USD (Note) 23,382 0.144 103,401
NTD:USD (Note) 57,113 0.033 57,113
USD:HKD (Note) 8,882 7.798 272,753
Non-monetary items
USD:NTD 9,991 30.710 306,835
KRW:NTD 1.036,960 0.025 25,924
JPY:NTD 118,754 0.232 27,551
HKD:USD 91,375 3.938 359,835
Financial liabilities
Monetary items
USD:NTD 13,730 30.710 421,648
RMB:USD (Note) 19,299 0.144 85,344
USD:HKD (Note) 941 7.798 28,897

214



(Foreign currency: Functional
currency)
Financial assets
Monetary items
USD:NTD

HKD:NTD
HKD:USD (Note)
USD:HKD (Note)
Non-monetary items
USD:NTD
KRW:NTD
JPY:NTD
HKD:USD (Note)
Financial liabilities
Mone¢tary items
USD:NTD
HKD:USD
USD:HKD (Note)

December 31, 2021

Foreign currency

amount Book value
(in thousands)  Exchange rate (NTD)

$ 25,302 27.68 700,395
28,600 3.549 101,501
144,859 0.1282 514,043
8,597 7.7994 237,966
33,421 27.68 925,087
886,842 0.0235 20,841
112,163 0.2405 26,975
62,827 0.1282 222,947
10,229 27.68 283,139
8,022 3.549 28,470
1,290 7.7994 35,707

Note: Considering the functional currency of certain consolidated entities was not NTD,

they should be considered when disclosed.

iv. The total exchange gain, including realised and unrealised, arising from significant

foreign exchange variation on the monetary items held by the Group for the years ended
December 31, 2022 and 2021 amounted to $44.462 and $11,173, respectively.
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Analysis of foreign currency market risk arising from significant foreign exchange rate
fluctuations is as follows:

Year ended December 31, 2022
Sensitivity analysis
Effect on other

(Foreign currency: Functional Extent of Effect on profit comprehensive
currency) variation or loss mncome
Financial assets
USD:NTD 1% $ 4348 $ -
HKD:USD (Note) 1% 2,211 -
RMB:USD (Note) 1% 1,034 -
USD:HKD (Note) 1% 2,728 -

Financial liabilities
Monetary items

USD:NTD 1% 4,216 -
RMB:USD (Note) 1% 853 -
USD:HKD (Note) 1% 289 -

Year ended December 31, 2021

Sensitivity analysis

Effect on other

(Foreign currency: Functional Extent of Effect on profit comprehensive
currency) variation or loss income

Financial assets
Monetary items

USD:NTD 1% $ 7,004 $ -
HKD:NTD 1% 1,015 -
HKD:USD (Note) 1% 5,140 -
USD:HKD (Note) 1% 2,380 -

Financial liabilities
Monetary items

USD:NTD 1% 2,831 -
HKD:USD (Note) 1% 285 -
USD:HKD (Note) 1% 357 -

Note: Considering the functional currency of certain consolidated entities was not NTD,
they should be considered when disclosed.
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Price risk

i.

1.

The Group’s equity securities, which are exposed to price risk, are the held financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss and financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income. To manage its price risk arising from investments in equity
securities, the Group diversifies its portfolio. Diversification of the portfolio is done in
accordance with the limits set by the Group.

The Group’s investments in equity securities comprise shares and open-end funds issued
by the domestic companies. The prices of equity securities would change due to the
change of the future value of investee companies. However, the Group has set stop-loss
amounts for those assets; therefore, no material market risk is expected. If the prices of
these equity securities had increased by 1% with all other variables held constant, post-
tax profit for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 would have increased/
decreased by $130 and $0, respectively, as a result of gains/losses on equity securities
classified as at fair value through profit or loss. Other comprehensive income or loss for
the years ended December 31,2022 and 2021 would have increased by $1,176 and $1,986,
respectively, because equity investment is classified as financial asset at fair value through

other comprehensive income.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

i

ii.

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from borrowings issued at variable rates and expose
the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The interest rates for short-term borrowings of
the Group are mainly floating rate and for long-term borrowings are fixed and variable
rates. During the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Group’s borrowings at
variable rate were denominated in NTD.

At December 31, 2022 and 2021, if interest rates on borrowings had been 1% higher/lower
with all other variables held constant, post-tax profit for the years ended December 31,
2022 and 2021 would have been $60 and $49 lower/higher, respectively, mainly as a result

of higher/lower interest expense on floating rate borrowings.

(b) Credit risk

1.

ii.

Credit risk refers to the risk of financial loss to the Group arising from default by the
clients or counterparties of financial instruments on the contract obligations. The main
factor is that counterparties could not repay in full the accounts receivable based on the

agreed terms and the contract cash flows of debt instruments stated at amortised cost.

According to the Group’s credit policy, each local entity in the Group is responsible for
managing and analysing the credit risk for each of their new clients before standard
payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered. The internal risk control
management evaluates the credit quality of the customers, taking into account their
financial position, past experience and other factors. Individual risk limits are set based

on ratings from accounting and administration departments in accordance with limits set
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1il.

v,

vi.

Vii.

by the Board of Directors. The utilisation of credit limits is regularly monitored. Credit
risk mainly arose from debt instruments stated at amortised cost and receivables generated
from operating activity. Only banks and financial institutions with optimal credit ratings

are accepted.

The Group adopts assumptions under IFRS 9 to assess whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk on that instrument since initial recognition. When the payment is
past due 30 days based on the contract terms, there is a significant increase in credit risk

on financial assets since initial recognition.

In line with credit risk management procedure, the default occurs when the Group expects

that payments cannot be collected and reclassified as overdue receivables.

The Group classifies customer’s accounts receivable and contract assets in accordance
with product types. The Group applies the simplified approach using the provision matrix
to estimate expected credit loss.

The Group wrote-off the financial assets, which cannot be reasonably expected to be
recovered, after initiating recourse procedures. However, the Group will continue
executing the recourse procedures to secure their rights. On December 31, 2022, the

Group has no written-off financial assets that are still under recourse procedures.

The Group uses the forecastability to adjust historical and timely information to assess
the default possibility of accounts receivable and other receivables. On December 31,

2022 and 2021, the provision matrix is as follows:

December 31, 2022

Expected loss rate

Total book value

Loss allowance

Not past due 0.07%~2.10% $ 1,242,154 S 1,251
Up to 30 days 0.10%~7.89% 36,924 119
31 to 60 days 1.00%~9.20% 8,401 287
61 to 90 days 2.99%~12.28% 12,079 382
91 to 120 days 8.56%~60.44% 10,022 901
Over 121 days 68.36%~100% 38,295 46,612

$ 1,367,875 $ 49,552

December 31, 2021

Expected loss rate

Total book value

Loss allowance

Not past due 0.03%~6.76% $ 1,019,743  § 4,633
Up to 30 days (0.10%~25.71% 25,532 173
31 to 60 days 1.00%~30% 25,947 323
61 to 90 days 5.48%~38.87% 32,956 2,224
91 to 120 days 22.62%~35.52% 9,289 2,101
Over 121 days 58.03%~100% 77,757 45,158

$ 1,191,224 $ 54,612
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Note: The above does not include overdue receivables. All the overdue receivables had
been provided with loss allowance.

viil. Movements in relation to the Group applying the simplified approach to provide loss

allowance for accounts receivable (including overdue receivables) and other receivables
are as follows:

2022
Accounts receivable Other receivables Total
At January 1 $ 158,957 $ 1,998 % 160,953
(Reversal of)
provision for
impairment loss 1,273 994 2,267
Write-offs ( 68) ( 917) ( 985)
Effect of exchange
rate changes 1,398 178 1,576
At December 31 $ 161,560 $ 2,253 % 163,813
2021
Accounts receivable Other receivables Total
At January 1 $ 137,244 $ 7403 % 144,647
Provision for
impairment loss 68,723 1,811 70,534
Write-offs ( 46,152) ( 7.107) ( 53,259)
Effect of exchange
rate changes ( 838) ( 109) ( 267)
At December 31 $ 158,957 $ 1,998 $ 160,955

For provisioned loss for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, the (reversal of)
provision for losses arising from customers’ contracts were $2,267 and $70,534,
respectively.

(¢) Liquidity risk

1.

il

Cash flow forecasting is performed in the operating entities of the Group and aggregated
by the capital management department. Group treasury monitors rolling forecasts of the
Group’s liquidity requirements to ensure that it has sufficient cash to meet operational
needs.

The table below is the Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities which is presented
based on the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the contract maturity date and

undiscounted maturity amount based on the maturity date:
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Non-derivative financial liabilities

Less than Between 1 Over
December 31, 2022 1 year and 3 years 3 vears
Short-term borrowings $ 91,760 $ - 3 -
Accounts payable 615,362 - -
Accounts payable - related parties 1,572 - -
Other payables 2,217,043 - -
Other payables - related parties 351,676 - -
Lease labilities 31,466 44, 847 6,745
Less than Between 1 Over
December 31, 2021 1 year and 3 vears 3 vears
Short-term borrowings $ 100,164 $ - 5 -
Accounts payable 564,127 - -
Accounts payable - related parties 7,187 - -
Other payables 1,814,602 - -
Other payables - related parties 158,584 - -
Lease liabilities 30,686 40,716 26,303
Long-term borrowings
(including current portion) 80,420 - -

(3) Fair value information

A. The different levels that the inputs to valuation techniques are used to measure fair value of
financial and non-financial instruments have been defined as follows:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
entity can access at the measurement date. A market is regarded as active where a
market in which transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient
frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis. The fair
value of the Group’s investment in listed, OTC and emerging stocks is included in Level
1.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly. The fair value of the Group’s investment in
listed and OTC stocks of private placement is included in Level 2.

Level 3: Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. The fair value of the Group’s investment
in equity investment without active market is included in Level 3.

B. Financial instruments not measured at fair value

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, financial assets at amortised cost, notes

receivable, accounts receivable (including related parties), other receivables (including related

parties), other current assets, guarantee deposits paid, notes payable, accounts payable (including
related parties) and other payables (including related parties), lease liabilities and guarantee

deposits received, are approximate to the fair values.
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C. The related information on financial and non-financial instruments measured at fair value by level

on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the assets and liabilities 1s as follows:

December 31, 2022 Level 1 Level 2 Tevel 3 Total

Assets
Recurring fair value measurements

Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss

Equity securitics $ - 3 - $ 15000 $ 15,000
Financial assets at fair value through

other comprehensive income -

non-current

Equity securities $§ 60478 $§ - $ 57,103 $ 117,581
December 31, 2021 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets

Recurring fair value measurements
Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss
Equity securities $ - 3 - 3 - $ -

Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income -
non-current
Equity securities $ 110,709 $

$ 87917 § 198,626

D. The methods and assumptions the Group used to measure fair value are as follows:
(a) The instruments the Group used market quoted prices as their fair values (that is, Level 1)

are listed below by characteristics:

Open-end Listed (OTC) and
fund emerging stocks

Market quoted price Net asset value Closing price

(b) Except for financial instruments with active markets, the fair value of other financial
instruments 1s measured by using valuation techniques or by reference to counterparty quotes.
The fair value of financial instruments measured by using valuation techniques method can
be referred to current fair value of instruments with similar terms and characteristics in
substance, discounted cash flow method or other valuation methods, including calculated by
applying model using market information available at the consolidated balance sheet date.

(¢) For highly complex financial instruments, the fair value is measured by using self-developed
valuation model based on the valuation method and technique widely used within the same
industry. The valuation model is normally applied to derivative financial instruments, debt
instruments with embedded derivatives or securitised instruments. Certain inputs used in the
valuation model are not observable at market, and the Group must make reasonable estimates
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based on its assumptions. The effect of unobservable inputs to the valuation of financial

instruments is provided in Notes 12(3) H and 1.

(d) The output of valuation model is an estimated value and the valuation technique may not be
able to capture all relevant factors of the Group’s financial and non-financial instruments.
Therefore, the estimated value derived using valuation model is adjusted accordingly with
additional inputs, for example, model risk or liquidity risk and etc. In accordance with the
Group’s management policies and relevant control procedures relating to the valuation
models used for fair value measurement, management believes adjustment to valuation is
necessary in order to reasonably represent the fair value of financial and non-financial
instruments at the consolidated balance sheet. The inputs and pricing information used during

valuation are carefully assessed and adjusted based on current market conditions.

E. For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, there was no transfer between Level 1 and
Level 2.

F. The following chart is the movement of Level 3 for the years ended December 31, 2022 and
2021:

Equity securities

2022 2021
At January 1 $ 87,917 $ 125,991
Acquired during the year 15,000 -
Disposals during the year ( 31,208) ( 41,529)
Loss recognised in other comprehensive income  ( 5,976) 4,908
Effects of foreign exchange 6,370 ( 1,453)
At December 31 $ 72,103 $ 87.917

G. Treasury department is in charge of valuation procedures for fair value measurements being
categorised within Level 3, which is to verify independent fair value of financial instruments.
Such assessment is to ensure the valuation results are reasonable by applying independent
information to make results close to current market conditions, confirming the resource of
information is independent, reliable and in line with other resources and represented as the
exercisable price, and frequently calibrating valuation model, updating inputs used to the
valuation model and making any other necessary adjustments to the fair value.
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H. The following is the qualitative information of significant unobservable inputs and sensitivity
analysis of changes in significant unobservable inputs to valuation model used in Level 3 fair

value measurement:

Fair value at Significant Range Relationship of
December 31,  Valuation  unobservable (weighted mputs to
2022 technique mput average) fair value
Non-derivative equity
instruments
Unlisted and non-  § 57,103 Market Enterprise value  28.21~34.37  The higher the
OTC shares comparable  to operating (28.21) multiple, the
companies  income ratio higher the fair
multiple value
Discount for 25% The higher the
lack of (25%0) discount for
marketability lack of
marketability,
the lower the
fair value
TV shows 15,000 Discounted  Weighted 13.26% The higher the
production cash flow average (13.26%) weighted
mvesting sharing method cost of capital average cost of
agreement capital, the
lower the fair
value
Fair value at Significant Range Relationship of
December 31,  Valuation  unobservable (weighted inputs to
2021 technique input average) fair value
Non-derivative equity
mstruments
Unlisted and non-  $ 87,917 Market Enterprise value  32.36~52.19  The higher the
OTC shares comparable  to operating (41.16) multiple, the
companics income ratio higher the fair
multiple value
Discount for 25% The higher the
lack of (25%0) discount for
marketability lack of
marketability,
the lower the
fair value
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I. The Group has carefully assessed the valuation models and assumptions used to measure fair
value. However, use of different valuation models or assumptions may result in different
measurement. The following is the effect on profit or loss or on other comprehensive income

from financial assets categorised within Level 3 if the inputs used to valuation models have

changed:
December 31, 2022
Recognised in Recognised in other
profit or loss comprehensive income
Favourable Unfavourable Favourable Unfavourable
Input Change  change change change change

Financial assets
Equity Enterprise value =+1% § - 5 - 5 - % -
mstruments  to operating
income ratio

multiple
Discount for +1% - - 269 ( 269)
lack of
marketability
Weighted +1% 150 ( 150) - -
average cost
of capital
December 31, 2021
Recognised in Recognised in other
profit or loss comprehensive income
Favourable Unfavourable Favourable Unfavourable
Input Change  change change change change

Financial assets
Equity Enterprisc value +1%  § - 5 - 5 338 (% 338)
mstruments  to operating
income ratio
multiple

Discount for +1% - - 607 ( 607)
lack of
marketability
13. SUPPLEMENTARY DISCLOSURES

(1) Significant transactions information

A. Loans to others: None.
B. Provision of endorsements and guarantees to others: Refer to table 1.

C. Holding of marketable securities at the end of the period (not including subsidiaries, associates

and joint ventures): Refer to table 2.
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D. Acquisition or sale of the same security with the accumulated cost exceeding $300 million or
20% of the Company’s paid-in capital: None.

E. Acquisition of real estate reaching $300 million or 20% of paid-in capital or more: None.
F. Disposal of real estate reaching $300 million or 20% of paid-in capital or more: None.

G. Purchases or sales of goods from or to related parties reaching $100 million or 20% of paid-in
capital or more: Refer to table 3.

H. Receivables from related parties reaching $100 million or 20% of paid-in capital or more: Refer
to table 4.

I. Trading in derivative instruments undertaken during the reporting periods: None.
J. Significant inter-company transactions during the reporting periods: Refer to table 5.

(2) Information on investees

Names, locations and other information of investee companies (not including investees in Mainland
China): Refer to table 6.

(3) Information on investments in Mainland China

A. Basic information: Refer to table 7.

B. Significant transactions, either directly or indirectly through a third area, with investee companies
in the Mainland Area: None.

(4) Major shareholders information

Major shareholders information: Refer to table 8.
14. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(1) General information

Management has determined the operating segments based on the reports reviewed by the chief

operating decision-maker which are used to make strategic decisions.

(2) Assessment of segment information

The chief operating decision-maker assesses the performance of the operating segments based on
net income or loss of the reporting period.
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(3) Information on segment profit (loss). assets and liabilities

The segment information on reportable segments provided to the chief operating decision-maker for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 is as
follows:

Year ended December 31, 2022

Gash Point Company
Limited and Gash
Gamania Digital Point (Hong Kong)
Entertainment Co., Ltd. Company Limited Others Total
Revenue from external customers g 8,032,776 $ 396,689 $ 2,958,556 $ 11,388,021
Inter-segment revenue 95,809 783,345 984,839 1,863,993 Note 1
Segment operating profit 1,414,733 271,191 72,638 1,758,562
Segment profit (loss), net of tax 1,279,696 297,591 ( 299,180) 1,278,107
Segment profit (loss) includes:
Depreciation and amortisation ( 435,532) ( 8,107) ( 138,592) ( 582,231)
Income tax expense ( 247,737) ( 66,626) ( 115,978) ( 430,341)
Investment income (loss) accounted 93,747 75,207 ( 199.388) ( 30,434) Note 2
for under equity method
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Year ended December 31, 2021

Gamania Digital

Gash Point Company
Limited and Gash
Point (Hong Kong)

Entertainment Co., Ltd. Company Limited Others Total
Revenue from external customers $ 7,995,718 § 264,634 $ 3,112,125  § 11,372,477
Inter-segment revenue 289.685 663,212 792,326 1,745,223 Note 1
Segment operating profit 1.651,055 171,847 ( 88,807) 1,734,095
Segment profit (loss), net of tax 1.106,281 109,637 ( 206,803) 1,009,115
Segment profit (loss) includes:
Depreciation and amortisation ( 740,678) ( 17,795) ( 132,798) ( 891,271)
Income tax expense ( 324.375) ( 31,253) ( 80,353) ( 435.981)
Investment income (loss) accounted ( 166,642) ( 32,166) 81,189 ( 117,619) Note 2

for under equity method

Note 1: The transaction had been eliminated in the consolidated financial statements.

Note 2: The inter-segment investment income or loss had been eliminated.
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(4) Reconciliation information of segment profit (loss)

The segment reports provided to the chief operating decision-maker are measured in a manner
congsistent with that used for the statement of comprehensive income. There is no difference between
the presentation of segment report and income statement and accordingly, no reconciliation is

required to be disclosed.

(5) Reconciliation information of segment profit (loss)

Details are provided in Note 6(23).
The reportable segments of the Group are based on different companies. The reconciliation with

Note 6(23) operating revenue is as follows:

Year ended December 31, 2022

Gamania Gash Point and
Digital Gash Point
Entertainment {(Hong Kong)
Co., Lid. Company Limited Others Total
Online and mobile games revenue  $ 7.898.564 §$ - 3 1,136,239  § 9,034,803
Service revenue 134,212 - 1,232,188 1,366,400
Sales revenue - - 530,759 530,759
Revenue from stored-values - 396,689 59,370 456,059
h 8,032,776 § 396,689 § 2,958,556 % 11,388,021

Year ended December 31, 2021

Gamania Gash Point and
Digital Gash Point
Entertainment {(Hong Kong)
Co., Ltd. Company Limited Others Total
Online and mobile games revenue  $ 7,976,709 § - 3 1,108,140 §$ 9,087,849
Service revenue 16,009 - 1,303,759 1,319,768
Sales revenue - - 666,931 666,931
Revenue from stored-values - 264,634 33,295 297,929
3 7.995718 % 264,634 % 3,112,125 % 11,372,477

(6) Geographical information

Geographical information for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 is as follows:

Year ended December 31, 2022 Year ended December 31, 2021
Revenue Non-current assets Revenue Non-current assets
Taiwan $ 9,542,562 $ 3,736,715  §$ 9,659,101 $ 3.257,600
Asia 1,845,459 118,937 1,713,376 50,952
$ 11,388,021 % 3,855,652 § 11,372,477 $ 3.308,552

(7) Major customer informaation

No single customer accounts for more than 10% of the consolidated operating revenue for the years
ended December 31, 2022 and 2021.
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Gamania Digital Entertainment Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries
Provision of endorsements and guarantees to others

Year ended December 31, 2022

Table 1 Expressed in thousands of NTD
(Except as otherwise indicated)
Ratio of
Party being accumulated
endorsed/guaranteed Maximum endorsement/ Provisionof ~ Provision of  Provision of
outstanding Outstanding guarantee endorsements/ endorsements/ endorsements/
Limit on endorsement/ endorsement/ Amountof  amount to net Ceiling on guarantees by guarantees by  guarantees to
Relationshipwith  endorsements/ guarantee guarantee endorsements/ asset valueof  total amount of parent subsidiaryto  the party in
the endorser/ guarantees amount as of amount at guarantees  the endorser/  endorsements/ company to parent Mainland
Number Endorser/ guarantor provided for a December 31,  December 31,  Actual amount  secured with  guarantor guarantees subsidiary company China
(Note 1) guarantor Company name (Note 2) single party 2022 2022 drawn down collateral company provided (Note 5) (Note 5) (Note 5) Footnote
0 The Company HaPodDigital Technology Co., Ltd. 2 $ 585,203 $ 70,862 § 67,558 $ 30,708 $ 30,708 121§ 5,852,032 Note 3
0 The Company JollyBuy Digital Technology Co., Ltd. 2 585,203 30,000 30,000 - - 0.51 5,852,032 v N N Note 3
1 Jollywiz Digital Technology Co., Ltd.  Jollywiz Digital Business Co., Ltd. 4 101,682 31,585 26,505 21,204 10,902 1043 101,682 N N v Note 4
2 Achieve Made International (BVI) Jollywiz Digital Technology Co., Ltd. 4 105,062 18,000 - - - 0.00 105,062 N N N Note 4

Note 1: The numbers filled in for the loans provided by the Company or subsidiaries are as follows:
(1) The Company is *0°.
(2) The subsidiaries are numbered in order starting from ‘1°.
Note 2: Relationship between the endorser/guarantor and the party being endorsed/guaranteed is classified into the following seven categories; fill in the number of category each case belongs to:
(1) Having business relationship.
(2) The company in which the endorser/guarantor parent company directly and indirectly owns more than 50% of the voting shares.
(3) The company that directly or indirectly owns more than 50% of the voting shares of the endorser/guarantor parent company.
(4) The endorsed/gnaranteed parent company directly or indirectly owns more than 90% voting shares of the endorser/guarantor subsidiary.
(5) Mutual guarantee of the trade as required by the construction contract.
(6) Due to joint venture, each shareholder provides endorsements/guarantees to the endorsed/guaranteed company in proportion to its ownership.
(7) A joint and several guarantee for the performance of the pre-sale house sales contract between the industry and the consumer protection law.
Note 3:The total amount of the Company's external endorsement guarantee shall not exceed 100% of the net assets of the Company's latest financial statements. The limit of the endorsement guarantee for the same enterprise shall not exceed
10% of the net assets of the Company's latest financial statements,and shall not exceed the paid in capital of the endorsement guarantee company.
Note 4: The limit on total endorsements is 40% of the endorser’s/guarantor’s net assets, and limit on endorsements to the same party is 40% of the endorser’s/guarantor’s net assets.
Note 5: Y means provision of endorsements / guarantees by parent company to subsidiary, provision of endorsements / guarantees by subsidiary to parent company or provision of endorsements / guarantees to the party in Mainland China.
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Gamania Digital Entertainment Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries
Holding of marketable securities at the end of the period (not including subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures)

December 31, 2022
Table 2 Expressed in thousands of NTD
(Except as otherwise indicated)

As of December 31, 2022

Type of marketable securities General Number of shares
Securities held by (Note 1) Relationship with the security holders ledger account (in thousands) Book value Percentage Market value (Note 2) Footnote
The Company XPEC Entertainment Inc. - None Financial assets at fair value 4,907 $ 26,941 268 % 26,941
stock through other comprehensive

income - non-curent

The Company Pili International Multimedia Other related parties Financial assets at fair value 1,958 54,040 3.82 54,040
Co., Ltd. - stock through other comprehensive
income - non-curent

Gamania Asia Investment Co., One Production Film Co., Ltd. None Financial assets at fair value 420 6,438 1.76 6,438
Ltd. - stock through other comprehensive
income - non-curent

Gamania Asia Investment Co., Gokube Inc. - stock None Financial assets at fair value 400 - 1.77 -
Ltd. through other comprehensive
income - non-curent

Gamania International Vantage Metro Limited - stock None Financial assets at fair value 192 30,162 2.59 30,162
Holdings Ltd. through other comprehensive
income - non-curent

Note 1: Marketable securities in the table refer to stocks, bonds, beneficiary certificates and other related derivative securities within the scope of IFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments®.
Note 2: Fill in the amount after adjusted at fair value and deducted by accumulated impairment for the marketable securities measured at fair value; fill in the acquisition cost or amortised cost deducted by accumulated impairment
for the marketable securities not measured at fair value.

230



Gamania Digital Entertainment Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries

Purchases or sales of goods from or to related parties in excess of $100 million or 20% of capital

Year ended December 31, 2022

Table 3 Expressed in thousands of NTD
(Except as otherwise indicated)
Differences in transaction terms compared to
Transaction third party transactions Notes/accounts receivable (payable)
Percentage of Percentage of
Relationship with the  Purchases total purchases total
Purchaser/seller Counterparty counterparty (sales) Amount (sales) Credit term Unit price Credit term Balance notes/accounts Footnote
Gash Point Co., Ltd. The Company Parent company Service 3 465,506 53.36 Note Note Note $ 27,830 384
revenue
Conetter Comarketing Co., Ltd. The Company Parent company Service 182,045 24.53 Note Note Note 51,721 54.89
revenue
Digicentre Company Limited The Company Parent company Sales 295,269 37.58 Note Note Note 30,771 19.60
revenue
Ants' Power Co., Ltd. The Company Parent company Sales 126,271 64.35 Note Note Note 21,965 57.39
revenue
Digicentre Company Limited Digicentre (HK) Company Limited Fellow subsidiary Sales 144,978 1845 Note Note Note 30,204 19.24
revenue

Note: The aforementioned purchase term is based on the product types, market competition and other transaction terms, there is no similar transaction to compare with for the transaction price and credit term with related parties.

231



Gamania Digital Entertainment Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries
Receivables from related parties in excess of $100 million or 20% of capital

Year ended December 31, 2022

Table 4 Expressed in thousands of NTD
(Except as otherwise indicated)
Overdue receivables
Amount collected
subsequent to the
Balance as of Action adopted for ~ balance sheet date Allowance for
Name of creditor Transaction parties Relationship December 31, 2022 Turnover rate Amount overdue accounts (Note 1) doubtful accounts Footnote
The Company Gash Point Co., Ltd. Subsidiary $ 621,116 - 8 - - 621,116 $ 39 Note 2

Note 1: The subsequent collections represent collections from the balance sheet date to February 22, 2023.
Note 2: Represents receivables for selling game cards through the subsidiary.
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Gamania Digital Entertainment Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries
Significant inter-company transactions during the reporting period

Year ended December 31, 2022

Table 5 Expressed in thousands of NTD
(Except as otherwise indicated)
Transaction
Number Relationship Percentage of total operating revenues or
(Note 1) Company name Counterparty (Note 2) General ledger account Amount Transaction terms total assets (Note 3)
0 The Company Gamania Digital Entertainment (H.X.) Co., Ltd. 1 Accounts receivable 19,053 Notes 4 and 5 018
0 The Company Gamania Digital Entertainment (HX.) Co., Ltd. 1 Revenue from royalties 93,067 Notes 4 and 5 082
0 The Company Gamania Digital Entertainment (HX.) Co., Ltd. 1 Sales of services 37,256 Notes 4 and 5 0.33
0 The Company Gash Point Co., Ltd. 1 Accounts receivable 621,116 Note 5 598
0 The Company HaPod Digital Technology Co., Ltd. 1 Sales of services 11,010 Note 5 0.10
1 Gamania Digital Entertainment (HK.) Co.,  The Company 2 Accounts receivable 29,937 Note 5 0.29
Ltd.
1 Gamania Digital Entertainment (HK.) Co.,  Gash Point Co., Ltd. 3 Accounts receivable 62,048 Note 5 0.60
Ltd.
1 Gamania Digital Entertainment (H.K.) Co.,  Gash Point (HK) Co., Ltd. 3 Accounts receivable 18,555 Note 5 0.18
Ltd.
2 Gash Point Co., Ltd. The Company 2 Accounts receivable 27,830 Note 5 027
2 Gash Point Co., Ltd. The Company 2 Sales of services 465,506 Note 5 4.09
2 Gash Point Co., Ltd. Gash Point (HK) Co., Ltd. 3 Sales of services 24,677 Note 5 022
3 Ants’ Power Clo., Ltd. The Company 2 Operating revenue 126,271 Note 5 111
3 Ants’ Power Co., Ltd. The Company 2 Accounts receivable 21,965 Note 5 0.21
4 Gash Point (HK) Co., Ltd. Gash Point Co., Ltd. 3 Other receivables 47,715 Note 5 046
5 Digicentre Company Limited The Company 2 Accounts receivable 30,771 Note 5 030
5 Digicentre Company Limited The Company 2 Operating revenue 295,269 Note 5 259
5 Digicentre Company Limited Digicentre (HK) Company Limited 3 Accounts receivable 30,204 Note 5 0.29
5 Digicentre Company Limited Digicentre (HK) Company Limited 3 Operating revenue 144,978 Note 5 127
5 Digicentre Company Limited Gash Point Co., Ltd. 3 Operating revenue 25,132 Note 5 022
5 Digicentre Company Limited GAMA PAY Co,, Ltd. 3 Operating revenue 30,516 Note 5 0.27
6 Conetter CoMarketing Co., Ltd. The Company 2 Accounts receivable 51,721 Notes 4 and 5 0.50
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Gamania Digital Entertainment Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries
Significant inter-company transactions during the reporting period
Year ended December 31, 2022
Table 5 Expressed in thousands of NTD

(Except as otherwise indicated)

Transaction
Number Relationship Percentage of total operating revenues or
(Note 1) Company name Counterparty (Note 2) General ledger account Amount Transaction terms total assets (Note 3)
6 Conetter CoMarketing Co., Ltd. The Company 2 Sales of services $ 182,045 Notes 4 and 5 1.60
7 Hyperg Smart Security Technolgy Pte. Ltd.  Digicentre Company Limited 3 Sales of services 12,809 Note 5 0.11

Note 1: The numbers filled in for the transaction company in respect of inter-company transactions are as follows:

(1) Parent company is ‘0°.
(2) The subsidiaries are numbered in order starting from *1°.

Note 2: Relationship between transaction company and counterparty is classified into the following three categories ; fill in the number of category each case belongs to (if transactions between parent company and subsidiaries or between
subsidiaries refer to the same transaction, it is not required to disclose twice. For example, if the parent company has already disclosed its transaction with a subsidiary, then the subsidiary is not required to disclose the transaction;
for transactions between two subsidiaries, if one of the subsidiaries has disclosed the transaction, then the other is not required to disclose the transaction):

(1) Parent company to subsidiary.
(2) Subsidiary to parent company.
(3) Subsidiary to subsidiary.

Note 3:Regarding percentage of transaction amount to consolidated total operating revenues or total assets, it is computed based on period-end balance of transaction to consolidated total assets for balance sheet
accounts and based on accumulated transaction amount for the period to consolidated total operating revenues for income statement accounts.

Note 4:There is no similar transaction to compare with. It will follow the agreed price and transaction terms.

Note 5:The disclosure standard reaches above $10,000 for the transaction amount.
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Gamania Digital Entertainment Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries

Information on investee companies (not including investees in Mainland China)

Year ended December 31, 2022

Table 6 Expressed in thousands of NTD
(Except as otherwise indicated)
Original investment cost (Note 1) Shares held as at December 31, 2022
Income (loss) Investment income
Balance as at Balance as at incurred by the (loss) recognised by
Company Name of investee Location Main business activities December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021  Number of shares Percentage Book value investee the Compan Footnote
The Company Gamania Holdings Ltd. Cayman Islands ~ Holding company $ 1,555,579 § 2,374,061 20,100,000 100.00 § 84,504 $ 179,110 § 130,223
The Company Gamania Digital Entertainment (HK.) Co., Hong Kong Software services and 217,671 - 25,500,000 100.00 359,835 262,503 51,931
Ltd. sales
The Company Gamania Asia Investment Co., Ltd. Taiwan Investment company 239,549 239,549 18,900,000 100.00 102,067 ( 13,477) ( 13477)
The Company Fundation Digital Entertainment Co., Ltd. ~ Taiwan Publishing of magazines 220,000 220,000 316,522 100.00 - ( 2N ( 27)
and periodicals
The Company Tollybuy Digital Tech. Co., Ltd. Taiwan Supply of electronic 620,000 540,000 32,600,000 98.89 62,181 ( 67,298) ( 66,780)
information services
The Company Digicentre Company Limited Taiwan Software services 302,637 302,637 16,016,000 67.48 358,307 44,520 27,223
The Company Two Tigers Co. Ltd. Taiwan Animation production 6,269 6,269 626,892 51.00 5926 ( 1,451 ( 740)
The Company Gash Point Co., Ltd. Taiwan Information software 169,000 169,000 13,500,000 90.00 432,712 213,213 191,892
and supply of electronic
information services
The Company Indiland Co., Ltd. Taiwan Third-party payment 69,000 60,000 5,000,000 100.00 15,333 ( 11,938) ( 11,938)
The Company Ants' Power Co., Ltd. Taiwan Customer services 10,000 10,000 1,000,000 100.00 68,696 28,591 28,591
The Company Chuang Meng Shr Ji Co., Ltd. Taiwan Venture Capital 57,000 57,000 3,996,774 33.03 22,984 ( 9,857) ( 3,256)
Industry
The Company WeBackers Co., Ltd. Taiwan Crowd funding 51,040 51,040 373,529 93.38 210 14 14
The Company Coture New Media Co., Ltd. Taiwan Producing TV programs 203,500 203,500 1,314,699 93.08 6,736 111 104
and general advertising
services
The Company MadSugr Digital Technology Co., Ltd. Taiwan Information software 45,900 45,900 4,590,000 51.00 3,131 1 -
and supply of electronic
information services
The Company GAMAY PAY Co,, Ltd. Taiwan Electronical payment 1,103,018 839,229 65,010,045 81.26 429,846 ( 223.875) ( 160,494)
The Company NOWnews Network Co., Ltd. Taiwan Broadcast and TV 535,342 494,303 41,052,015 79.44 180,737 ( 74,820) ( 73,016)
shows services
The Company BeanGo! Co., Ltd. Taiwan Communication 214,000 214,000 400,000 100.00 7,705 ( 3 ( 34
software
The Company Ciirco Inc. Taiwan Sales and research and 229,400 229,400 8,990,649 99.90 21,976 ( 554) ( 554)
development of
software services
The Company 4-Way Voice Cultural Co., Ltd. Taiwan Newspaper and 1,900 1,900 190,000 0.00 - ( 1,272) ( 483)

magazine publishing
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Gamania Digital Entertainment Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries

Information on investee companies (not including investees in Mainland China)

Year ended December 31, 2022

Table 6 Expressed in thousands of NTD
(Except as otherwise indicated)
Original investment cost (Note 1) Shares held as at December 31, 2022
Income (loss) Investment income
Balance as at Balance as at incurred by the (loss) recognised by
Company Name of investee Location Main business activities December 31,2022 December 31,2021  Number of shares Percentage Book value investee the Compan Footnote
The Company Hao-Ji film Ltd. Taiwan TV shows production $ 30,000 $ 3,000,000 4286 $ 30,021 $ 56 $ 21
The Company Walkermedia Co., Ltd. Taiwan Publishing of magazines 30,000 30,000 3,000,000 30.00 5,105 ( 19.669) ( 5.901)
and general advertising
services
Jollybuy Digital Technology Co., Store Marais Co., Ltd. Taiwan Import of household 10,000 10,000 125,000 7.69 11,192 19,230 2,525
Ltd. furniture and retail of
other home accessories
Digicentre Company Limited Digicentre (HK) Company Limited Hong Kong Software services 1,181 1,181 300,000 100.00 38,664 6,912 4,665
Digicentre Company Limited Hyperg Smart Security Technology Pte. Ltd. Singapore Software services 30,710 30,710 1,000,000 51.00 15,299 ( 9,459) ( 3,256)
Ciirco Inc. Ciirco (HK) Co., Ltd. Hong Kong Software services - 53,743 - 0.00 - ( 182) ( 182)
Gamania Asia Investment Co., Ltd.  Pri-One Commercial Production Co., Ltd.  Taiwan Sales and research and 1,500 1,500 150,000 30.00 3,348 3,049 915
development of
software
Gamania Asia Investment Co., Ltd.  Jsdway Digital Technology Co., Ltd. Taiwan Software information 55,125 55,125 5,250,000 37.18 49,485 4,932 2,417
and supply of electronic
services
Gamania Asia Investment Co., Ltd.  Taiwan e-sports Co., Ltd. Taiwan E-sports 63,702 48,931 2,067,867 2954 7224 ( 43,770) ( 12,930)
Gamania Asia Investment Co., Ltd.  The China Post Co., Ltd. Taiwan Newspaper and 1 1 500,000 100.00 - ( 23) ( 23)
magazin¢ publishing
Gamania Asia Investment Co., Ltd.  Bjolly Co., Ltd. Taiwan Supply of electronic 5,000 5,000 45,455 417 20 6,414 267
information services
Gamania Asia Investment Co., Ltd.  Aotter Inc. Taiwan Research and 25,000 25,000 170,473 2148 6,045 ( 19,008) ( 4,083)
development of internet-
related technology
Gash Point Co., Ltd. Gash Point (Japan) Co., Ltd. Japan Information software 32,536 32,536 600 100.00 27,551 1,452 1,307
and supply of ¢lectronic
information services
Gash Point Co., Ltd. Gash Point (Hong Kong) Co., Ltd. Hong Kong Information software 13,990 13,990 750,000 100.00 222331 84,378 75,940
and supply of electronic
information services
Gash Point Co., Ltd. Gash Point Korea Co., Ltd. South Korea Information software 11,662 11,662 138,268 100.00 25,924 3,890 3,501
and supply of electronic
information services
Gash Point Co., Ltd. Conetter CoMarketing Co., Ltd. Taiwan Information software 29,250 29,250 2,625,000 7998 79,456 41,279 29,714
and supply of electronic
information services
Gash Point Co., Ltd. GAMA PAY Co., Ltd. Taiwan Electronic payment 150,000 150,000 4,972,098 622 32,851 ( 223.875) ( 18,214)
Gash Point (Hong Kong) Company GAMAPAY Co., Ltd. Taiwan Electronic payment 130,000 130,000 6,703,125 838 44,317 ( 223,875) ( 24,561)

Limited
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Gamania Digital Entertainment Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries

Information on investee companies (not including investees in Mainland China)

Year ended December 31, 2022

Table 6 Expressed in thousands of NTD
(Except as otherwise indicated)
Original investment cost (Note 1) Shares held as at December 31, 2022
Income (loss) Investment income
Balance as at Balance as at incurred by the (loss) recognised by
Company Name of investee Location Main business activities December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021  Number of shares Percentage Book value investee the Compan Footnote
Gamania Holdings Ltd. Gamania International Holdings Ltd. Cayman Islands  Investment and holding § 1,503,408 $ 1,503,408 50,400,000 10000 § 118,433 § 179,233 § 179,233
company
Gamania International Holdings Ltd. Gamania China Holdings Ltd. Cayman Islands  Investment and holding 812,324 812,324 33,497,476 98 85 5,320 213,475 211,009
company
Gamania International Holdings Ltd. Joymobee Entertainment Co., Ltd. Hong Kong Design and research and 121,305 121,305 30,701,775 100.00 5125 ( 3,230) ( 3,230)
development of
software
Gamania International Holdings Ltd. Firedog Creative Co., Ltd. Hong Kong Design and research and 9,766 9,766 992,000 40.00 -
development of
software
Gamania International Holdings Ltd. Achieve Made International Ltd. British Virgin Investment and holding 213,514 213,514 7,297,649 4540 109,559 ( 8,467) ( 5,429)
Islands company
Gamania International Holdings Ltd. ACCI Group Limited Hong Kong Sales of agricultural 1477 1477 375,000 30.00 -
products
Gamania International Holdings Ltd. HaPod Digital Technology Co., Ltd. Hong Kong Software services and 67,562 67,562 2,200,000 100.00 ( 36,555) ( 19,781) ( 19,781)
sales
Gamania International Holdings Ltd. GungHo Gamania Co., Limited Hong Kong Operations of mobile 263,338 263,338 343 49.00 - ( 29,087) ( 9,659)
games
Achieve Made International Ltd. Jollywiz Digital Technology Co., Ltd. Taiwan Supply of electronic 654,440 650,360 26,145,712 100.00 115,466 ( 7,266) ( 3,299)
information services
Jollywiz Digital Technology Co., Bjolly Co., Ltd. Taiwan Supply of electronic 25,000 25,000 1,045,455 95.83 204 6,414 2,791
Ltd. information services
Jollywiz Digital Technology Co., Cyber Look Properties Ltd. British Virgin Investment and holding 150479 150479 4,900,000 100.00 7,074 25,114 11,402
Ltd. Islands company
Jollywiz Digital Technology Co., Jollywiz International (HK) Co., Ltd. Hong Kong Supply of electronic 31,973 31,973 39,600,000 100.00 3,986 ( 7.855) ( 3,566)
Ltd. information services
Jollywiz Digital Technology Co., NOWnews Network Co., Ltd. Taiwan Broadcast and TV 10,000 10,000 515,000 0.94 10,083 ( 74,820) ( 703)
Ltd. shows services
Gamania China Holdings Ltd. Gamania Sine Holdings Ltd. Cayman Islands  Investment and holding 1,213,659 1,213,659 39,520,000 100.00 ( 1,114) 980 969
company
Gamania China Holdings Ltd. Gamania Digital Entertainment (HX.) Co., Hong Kong Software services and 100419 - 0.00 - 262,503 204,844

Ltd.

Note 1: Initial investment amount is translated to NTD at the spot rate at the period end.

sales
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Gamania Digital Entertainment Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries
Information on investments in Mainland China
Year ended December 31, 2022
Table 7 Expressed in thousands of NTD

(Except as otherwise indicated)

Amount remitted from Taiwan to
Mainland China/

Accumulated

Accumulated Accumulated amount

amount of Amount remitted back to Taiwan amount Net income of Investment income of investment

for the nine months ended

remittance from of remittance  investee for the Ownership held  (loss) recognised ~ Book value of income
Taiwan to December 31, 2022 from Taiwan to  nine months by by the Company  investments in remitted back to
Investment Mainland China Mainland China ended the Company for the nine Mainland China ~ Taiwan as of
Main business method as of January 1, Remitted to Remitted back as of December December 31, (direct or months ended as of December December 31, Footnote
Investee in Mainland China activities Paid-in capital (Notel) 2022 Mainland China to Taiwan 31, 2022 2022 indirect) December 31, 2022 31,2022 2022 (Note 2)
Gamania Digital Entertainment (Beijing) Co., Ltd. Design and salesof  § 1,084,063 2 $ 794468 $ - 3 - 8 794,468 § 1,033 9885 § 1,337 (8 2,771) $ - Notes3and 6
software
MoNoKos Studio Technology Co., Ltd. Research and - 2 46,065 - - 46,065 - - - - - Notesdand 7
development of
software
Legion Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. Supply of electronic 121,305 2 121,305 - - 121,305 17918 4540 8,278 6,724 - Notes3and 8
information services
Jollywiz Digital Business Co., Ltd. Supply of electronic 22,040 2 - - - - 19,792 4540 11,469 ( 8,242) - Notes3and 8
information services
Ju Shr Da Jiu (Shanghai) International Trading Co., Ltd. Sales of agricultural 15,355 2 - - - - - 38.66 - - - Notes5and 9

products

Note 1: The methods for engaging in investment in Mainland China include the following:
(1) Direct investment in Mainland China.
(2) Fndirectly investment in Mainland China through companies registered in a third region.
(3) Other methods.
Note 2: The accumulated remittance as of January 1, 2022, remitted or collected this year, accumulated as of December 31, 2022 was translated into New Taiwan dollars at the average exchange rate of NTD30.71 to US$1 and NTD4.408 to RMBS$1 at the balance sheet date.
Note 3: The investment loss of the investee company for the year ended December 31, 2022 was recognised based on their financial statements for the corresponding period, which were audited by R.O.C. parent company's CPA.
Note 4: MoNokos Studio Technology Co., Ltd. completed liquidation proceedings on September 22, 2013. However, the investment amount has not yet been remitted back to Taiwan as of December 31, 2022.
Note 5: Investment income or losses are recognised based on unaudited financial statements.
Note 6: It was invested through Gamania Sino Holdings Ltd invested.
Note 7: It was invested through Gamania Holdings Ltd. invested.
Note 8: It was invested through Cyber Look Properties Limited invested.
Note 9: It was invested through ACCI Group Limited and Gamania Digital Entertainment (H.X.) Co., Ltd. invested.

Investment amount approved by

Accumulated amount of remittance from the Investment Commission of the Ceiling on investments in
Taiwan to Mainland China as of Ministry of Economic Affairs Mainland China imposed by the
Company name December 31, 2022 (MOEA) Investment Commission of MOEA
The Company (Note) $ 840533 § 1,409,988 § 3,511,219
Jollywiz Digital Technology Co., Ltd. 121,305 121,305 152,598

Note: The total investment amount approved by the Investment Commission, MOEA, was USD45,913 thousand or $1,409,988 based on 30.71 spot exchange rate at December 31, 2022.
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Gamania Digital Entertainment Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries
Major sharcholders information
December 31, 2022
Table 8

Shares|

(Name of major shareholders

Number of shares held

Ownership (%)

Liu, Po-Yuan 17,491,305 9.96%
'Wanwin International Co., Ltd. 15,101,000 8.60%
Shiang Sheng Invesement Ltd. 13,600,000 T7.74%

12,859,000 7.32%

Joy Develop Co., Ltd. Taiwan Branch

Note 1: The major shareholders information was derived from the data that the Company issued common shares (including treasury shares) and preference shares in dematerialised form which were registered and held by the shareholders above 5% on the last operating date

of each quarter and was calculated by Taiwan Depository & Clearing Corporation. The share capital which was recorded in the financial statements may differ from the actual number of shares issued in dematerialised form because of a different calculation basis.

Note 2: If the aforementioned data contains shares which were held in trust by the sharehoelders, the data disclosed represents the settlor’s separate account for the fund set by the trustee. As for the shareholder who reports share equity as an insider whose shareholding ratio

is greater than 10% in accordance with the Securities and Exchange Act, the shareholding ratio includes the self-owned shares and shares held in trust, and the trust assets which can be allocated. For the information of reported share equity of insider, please refer to

Market Observation Post System.
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V. 2022 Individual Financial Report of the Company Audited and

Certified by CPAs

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

PWCR 22000550
To the Board of Directors and Sharcholders of Gamania Digital Entertainment Co., Ltd.
Opinion
We have audited the accompanying parent company only balance sheets of Gamania Digital
Entertainment Co., Ltd. (the “Company™) as at December 31, 2022 and 2021, and the related parent

company only statements of comprehensive income, of changes in equity and of cash flows for the years
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, based on our audits and the audit reports of other auditors, the accompanying parent
company only financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Company as at December 31, 2022 and 2021, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the
years then ended in accordance with the “Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports
by Securities Issuers™.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Auditing and Attestation of
Financial Statements by Certified Public Accountants and Standards on Auditing of the Republic of
China. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors ' responsibilities
Jor the audit of the parent company only financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the Norm of Professional Ethics for Certified Public Accountant of
the Republic of China, and we have fulfilled our other cthical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our opinion.
Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the parent company only financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the parent company only financial statements as a whole and, in

forming our opinion thercon, we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Given that the financial performance of Gamania Digital Entertainment (H.K.) Co., Ltd., a subsidiary
directly held by the Company accounted for using the equity method, has been assessed to have
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a significant impact on the Company’s parent company only financial statements, we consider the
estimation of recognition of the subsidiary’s online and mobile games revenue and contract liability as
a key audit matter.

Estimation of revenue recognition of online and mobile games revenue

Description

Refer to Note 4(24) for accounting policies on revenue recognition, Note 5(2) for the critical accounting
estimates and assumptions and Note 6(20) for the details of accounting applied on revenue recognition.

The Company and the subsidiary, Gamania Digital Entertainment (H.K.) Co., Ltd., are primarily engaged
in providing online and mobile game services. The game players purchase game stored-value cards or
value-added to play the game or exchange for virtual items. The Company and the subsidiary, Gamania
Digital Entertainment (H.K.) Co., Ltd., recognise receipt of payments for game stored-value card
purchases or value-added by players as ‘contract liability’, and recognises revenue over the period of the
service or the estimated delivery period of the virtual items when the game stored-value cards or value-
added is used for the purchase of service or virtual items, respectively.

The estimation of the virtual items delivery period, which is the same as the expected users” relationship
period, 1s based on historical data on item consumption and item transfer by management. The Company
has implemented processes and controls to develop and periodically review these estimates. Given that
the Company has many transactions of game revenue and the deferral of virtual items and the estimation
of users relationship period involve management’s subjective judgement, we consider the estimation of

recognition of online and mobile games revenue and contract liability as a key audit matter.

How our audit addressed the matter

We performed the following audit procedures on the above key audit matter:

A. Assessed and tested the relevant internal controls over revenue recognition for online and mobile

games revenuc.

B. Tested on a sample basis the consumption information generated from the Company’s data collection

systems and verified against the consumption report provided by the Company’s accountant.

C. Tested on a sample basis the virtual items information generated from the Company’s data collection
systems and verified against the advance receipts as shown in the trial balance sheet provided by the

Company’s accountant.
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D. Tested on a sample basis the expected users’ relationship periods as reflected in the data collection

systems, and compared with expected consumption based on the Company’s accounting policy.

Im pairment assessment of premium on investments accounted for under equity method

Description

Refer to Notes 4(13) and 4(17) for accounting policy on impairment assessment of investments
accounted for under equity method, Notes 6(6) and 6(12) for details of impairment assessment of
investments accounted for under equity method, and Note 5(2) for uncertainty of accounting estimates

and assumptions in relation to impairment assessment of investments accounted for under equity method.

As of December 31, 2022, the investments of Gamania Digital Entertainment Co., Ltd. in NOWnews
Network Co., Ltd. and Digicentre Company Limited arc material and there is a premium arising from
goodwill. The future cash flows projections of the expected recoverable amount was calculated based
on management’s estimation and expectation of the future operations, which involve management’s
subjective judgement and significant estimation, and the result is significant to the financial statements.
Thus, we consider impairment assessment of investments accounted for using equity method a key audit

matter.

How our audit addressed the matter:

We performed the following audit procedures relative to the above key audit matter:

A. Assessed whether the valuation models adopted by the Company are reasonable for the industry,

environment and the valued assets of the Company;

B. Confirmed whether the expected future cash flows adopted in the valuation model are in agreement

with the budget provided by the cash-generating units;

C. Assessed the appointed cxternal appraisers in conformity with the rules of qualification and
independence, and evaluated the reasonableness of material assumptions, such as expected growth

rates, operating profit margin and discount rates, by:

(1) Reviewing the appraisal method and calculation formulas used by the independent appraisal

expert.

(2) Comparing the expected growth rate and operating profit margin with historical data;
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(3) Reviewing the discount rate and comparing similar return on similar assets in the market.

D. Compared the recoverable value and book value of each cash-generating unit in order to assess the

reasonableness of the book value.
Other matter — Scope of the Audit

As described in Note 6(6), we did not audit the financial statements of certain investments accounted for
under the equity method and the related information disclosed in Note 13, which were audited by other
auditors. Therefore, our opinion expressed herein, insofar as it relates to the amounts included in respect
of these associates, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors. For the years ended December
31, 2022 and 2021, the comprehensive income amounted to NT$63,104 thousand and NT$37,081
thousand, respectively, and the balance of investments accounted for under equity method amounted to
NT$1,075,658 thousand and NT$860,190 thousand as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the parent company only
Sfinancial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the parent company only financial
statements in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by
Securities Issuers, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of parent company only financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the parent company only financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting

process.
Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the parent company only financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the parent company only financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 1ssue an
auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
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and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to

influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these parent company only financial

statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China, we exercise

professional judgment and professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

1.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the parent company only financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in

a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of entities or
business activities within the Company to express an opinion on the parent company only financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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